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ALLETE begins 2005 with a clear vision of the future, increased

energy demand from its major customers, valuable real estate

assets in Florida and its strongest balance sheet in years.

Our company has undergone a transformation. We completed

the sale of our water services businesses, which yielded more

than $300 million cash after taxes and payment of debt. We

successfully spun off our automotive business, ADESA, Inc.

(NYSE: KAR). Concurrent with the spin-off, we completed a one-

for-three reverse stock split. 

Most important, the businesses remaining at the core of ALLETE

performed superbly throughout the year. Earnings from

continuing operations climbed 31% from 2003. A resurgence in

taconite production on Minnesota’s Iron Range positively

impacted our energy business. This turnaround, combined with

an improved economy, has created an optimistic business outlook

unseen in our region for decades. Several energy-intensive

industrial projects are now under consideration in our territory.

ALLETE Properties is moving confidently ahead with major

development projects in robust areas of Florida. Much activity is

focused within the high growth northeast part of the state near

Palm Coast. This area of Florida is among the fastest growing in

the country. 

While we’re encouraged by the prospects for energy and real

estate, ALLETE cannot be content with the status quo. We have

a long history of both acquiring and selling companies in a

variety of industries, and these activities have contributed

significantly to our financial results.

ALLETE’s exit from the automotive and water businesses

strengthened our financial position. Some of the cash from the

sale of our water utilities and proceeds received in the ADESA

separation were used to reduce debt. The resulting lower interest

charges and better cash position enable us to invest in our two

primary businesses while exploring other avenues for growth.

Late last year our subsidiary Rainy River Energy agreed to pay

$73 million (about $47 million after taxes) to withdraw from a

long-term agreement to buy 275 megawatts of non-regulated

power from a gas-fired generating station in Kendall County, IL.

Buying out of this agreement averts the ongoing financial burden

we’ve experienced from this project and supports our strategic

decision to withdraw from the merchant power business in areas

outside our service territory.  

We’re doing everything necessary to support our long-range

goal of providing low-cost, reliable energy. Contractors have

largely completed the Minnesota portion of the Duluth-to-

Wausau 345-kilovolt transmission line. This major project, a

cooperative venture between Minnesota Power, Wisconsin

Public Service and the American Transmission Company, is

essential to electric reliability in the upper Midwest. ALLETE’s

BNI Coal subsidiary took delivery on a new $38 million dragline 
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that will be used to uncover lignite deposits at its Center Mine in North Dakota for decades to come. BNI supplies about 4.5 million tons of

coal every year to the nearby M.R. Young Generating Station. Minnesota Power, in turn, purchases a portion of the power generated by a 435-

megawatt unit of the Young Station.

The ALLETE board of directors also reflects the transformation of our company. The following new ALLETE board members were seated in

2004: Don Shippar, CEO and President, with a broad range of experience across 28 years at ALLETE; Roger Peirce, a former CEO of  a

fabricated metal products company; Heidi Eddins, Executive Vice President, Secretary, and General Counsel of a Florida real est ate and

transportation firm; and Madeleine Ludlow, former CEO of a utility expense management services company.

The transformation of our workforce is ongoing. Sixty-five union apprentices on the payroll of Minnesota Power and Superior Water, Light and

Power may be the highest number ever employed at ALLETE. These men and women, members of the International Brotherhood of Electrical

Workers, work in 14 different crafts. We’re thrilled to welcome them onto a talented and resourceful team of employees. 

We sincerely thank you, our shareholders, for your continued support during the transformation of ALLETE. We’re excited about the future of

our company and dedicated to making it more valuable for you.  

Bruce W. Stender, Donald J. Shippar,

Chairman President, CEO

Financial Highlights *

2004 2003 2002

Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Operating Revenue $ 751.4 $ 692.3 $ 643.0 

Net Income
Continuing Operations $ 39.1 $ 29.8 $ 24.7 
Discontinued Operations 73.1 206.6 112.5 
Change in Accounting Principle (7.8) – –

$ 104.4 $ 236.4 $ 137.2

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock
Continuing Operations $ 1.37 $ 1.08 $ 0.91 
Discontinued Operations 2.57 7.44 4.13 
Change in Accounting Principle (0.27) – –

$ 3.67 $ 8.52 $ 5.04 

Diluted Average Shares Outstanding 28.4 27.8 27.2 

Dividends Per Share of Common Stock $ 2.8425 $ 3.39 $ 3.30 

Total Assets $ 1,431.4 $ 3,101.3 $ 3,147.2 

Capital Expenditures $ 79.2 $ 136.3 $ 201.2 

* Adjusted for the Sept 20, 2004 one-for-three reverse stock split.

2004 Reflected the spin-off of ALLETE's Automotive Services business on September 20, 2004.

2003 Included a $71.6 million, or $2.59 per share, gain on the sale of substantially all of ALLETE's Water Services businesses. 

2002 Included a $5.5 million, or $0.20 per share, charge related to the indefinite delay of a generation project in Superior, Wiscon sin.
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Simon Shi, Vice President, United Mining Co., Ltd., poses with U.S. Rep. James

Oberstar and Cleveland-Cliffs, Inc. Chairman and CEO John Brinzo as taconite

pellets are loaded onto rail cars at United Taconite in Eveleth, MN. The facility’s

reopening under the ownership of Cleveland-Cliffs Inc and Laiwu Steel Group of

China helped revitalize the taconite industry in northeast Minnesota, which is

served with electricity by Minnesota Power. 

A rebounding steel industry fueled by high demand from China

and a growing need for electricity contributed to a strong 2004 for

Minnesota Power and raised expectations of continued strength.

Unique as an energy provider because of its high proportion of

industrial electric load, Minnesota Power benefited by an

improving national economy and an upturn in the market for native

natural resources the utility has served for nearly a century.

Industrial customers crucial to Minnesota Power
Twelve of Minnesota Power’s largest industrial electric users

account for about half of the energy sold by the company. Of these

largest customers, five produce taconite pellets for the steel

industry and four manufacture paper. Taconite production from

Minnesota’s Mesabi Iron Range reached nearly 41 million tons in

2004, the highest level since 2000.

Overall, industrial electric sales at Minnesota Power were 8%
higher in 2004 than they were the year before. Taconite customers
used 11% more electricity. 

To appreciate this resurgence, one must only look back a few
years to see the downside of the industrial cycle. Severe
downward price pressures, escalating legacy costs, a strong
dollar and high imports forced major consolidation of integrated
steel companies in the United States. 

In 2002 steel tariffs were instituted to protect against foreign steel
dumping and to give the U.S. steel industry time to reorganize. In
the resulting shakeout, just three major integrated U.S. steel
companies remained standing: U.S. Steel, Ispat Inland and
International Steel Group (ISG). Ispat Inland has announced plans
to purchase ISG, which, if accomplished, will leave just two major
integrated steel producers in the U.S. Both are long-term
customers of Minnesota Power.

Demand from Asia reaches Minnesota’s Iron Range
Globalization also played a role in the transformation of the
taconite industry on the Iron Range. In December 2003, EVTAC
Mining–which had filed for bankruptcy and closed eight months
earlier–was reopened by Cleveland-Cliffs and Laiwu Steel Group
of China as United Taconite. 

“Few would have imagined that the globalization that contributed to
EVTAC’s demise would also work to insure its future,” said U.S.
Rep. James Oberstar. For decades, EVTAC had been one of
Minnesota Power’s biggest customers. Suddenly, 64 megawatts of
Minnesota Power electric load had reappeared. And strong
demand for taconite pellets from China has stimulated production
of the low-grade iron-bearing rock across Minnesota’s Iron Range. 

During 2004, approximately $100 million worth of new taconite
expansion investments were announced. These investments
include $25 million for restarting a production line at United
Taconite, $29 million for expansion at Northshore Mining, 
$24 million for emissions scrubbers at U.S. Steel’s Keewatin
Taconite and a potential $10 million for alternative fuels at U.S.
Steel’s Minntac facility.

Large customer investments on the drawing board
A new method of processing low-grade iron ore, represented by
the upstart company Mesabi Nugget, has also raised hopes for
sustaining growth in the northeast Minnesota steel industry. The
company’s owners include Kobe Steel, Cleveland-Cliffs and Steel
Dynamics. Mesabi Nugget converts Iron Range taconite into pig
iron that can be used in electric arc furnaces as well as integrated
steel mills. The process, developed by Kobe Steel Ltd. of Japan,
uses less energy to produce pig iron. And the product is less
costly to ship than taconite, because it is 96% iron, compared with
the 65% iron content in taconite pellets.

The technology behind Mesabi Nugget has been successfully
tested since 2001 at a pilot plant in Silver Bay, MN. Environmental
permitting for a Mesabi Nugget plant in northeast Minnesota is
underway; Minnesota Governor Tim Pawlenty last spring signed into
law a bill condensing the usual 18-month environmental review. 

Transformation in steel industry drives increased electric load



ALLETE’s BNI Coal in Center, ND. The dragline, christened

“Liberty,” has an expected life of more than 30 years and cost

approximately $38 million. The lignite unearthed at the Center

Mine fuels the nearby M.R. Young Generating Station, owned by

two generating cooperatives. Minnesota Power purchases power

from a 435-MW unit of the Young Station.

Enventis Telecom
ALLETE subsidiary Enventis Telecom expanded its fiber network

and its visibility in the market as a regional telecommunications

and network solutions provider. Enventis offers high bandwidth

transport services, network solutions and hosted communications

for business and enterprise customers.

Enventis expanded its fiber optic network to Eau Claire, and

LaCrosse, WI in 2004. With about 1,600 route miles of fiber,

Enventis’ network reaches approximately 75% of Minnesota’s

population and a growing share of Wisconsin’s. 

A commitment to the environment
Minnesota Power was recognized on a national and regional level

in 2004 for promoting environmental stewardship and energy

conservation. The company’s efforts to combat mercury pollution

were recognized in July by the Lake Superior Binational Program,

a partnership of American and Canadian government agencies.

Minnesota Power was named a winner in the Industry and

Business category for having attacked the mercury emissions

issue “from both the production and consumption side.” The

company was cited for its mercury emissions control technology

testing at Laskin Energy Center in Hoyt Lakes, MN, and for its

construction of a model energy-saving home in Duluth. 

Minnesota Power was also honored in March 2004 by the U.S.

Environmental Protection Agency and the Department of Energy

for its regional, state and community leadership in energy

efficiency through the Energy Star program. Minnesota Power has

worked with more than 120 retailers in its service territory to

promote the purchase of discounted energy-efficient appliances

and compact fluorescent bulbs. Minnesota Power estimates that

its customers have saved nearly 20 million kilowatthours of

electricity through the program. 
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Gearl Fenster, an American Legion honor guard member, holds an American flag as it’s hoisted up the boom of the new BNI Coal dragline in Center, ND. A large crowd

gathered in October for tours of the huge machine, followed by its christening as “Liberty.” Fenster is a retired foreman of BNI Coal, a subsidiary of ALLETE.  
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ALLETE has had a profitable involvement with Florida real estate
since 1991. Our real estate investments represent a larger share of
corporate earnings since we sold our water services businesses
in the Southeast and spun off our automotive business. 

With more than 16,000 acres of property in desirable Florida
locations (100% ownership of 11,567 acres and 80% ownership
of 5,731 acres), ALLETE Properties is poised for growth. Our
strategy has remained constant: acquire real estate portfolios
and large land tracts at bulk prices, add value through
entitlements and infrastructure improvements, and resell the
property over time to developers, investors and other end-users. 

Leveraging relationships and expertise
Experienced staff members at ALLETE Properties use their
relationships, understanding of real estate markets and expertise
in development and sales to provide revenue and earnings
growth opportunities. ALLETE Properties is headquartered in
Fort Myers, FL, the location of its southwest Florida regional
office. The company’s regional office in Palm Coast, FL,
oversees northeast Florida operations.

The bulk of our Florida real estate is located in northeast Florida
in the Palm Coast-Ormond Beach area, where population 
growth exceeds eight percent annually. ALLETE Properties is
spearheading three major development projects: Town Center at
Palm Coast, Palm Coast Park, and Ormond Crossings.

A new downtown for Palm Coast
Town Center at Palm Coast is a 1,550 acre mixed-use planned
development with a neo-traditional downtown design. ALLETE
Properties staff has successfully navigated Florida’s land use
approval process to design a whole new “integrated mixed-use
urban area.” 

ALLETE first invested in Palm Coast in 1996 when it purchased
developed residential lots, a portfolio of receivables and about
13,000 acres of property from ITT Development Corp. The
subsidiary of International Telephone and Telegraph had platted
42,000 lots in Palm Coast beginning in the 1960s originally
intended as a planned retirement community. 

Palm Coast, located midway between Jacksonville and Orlando,
is the largest community in Flagler County, which has had one of
America’s highest rates of population growth since 1990. By the
time the citizens of Palm Coast voted to incorporate as a city in
1999, that growth had clogged the commercial heart of the
community and made pedestrian traffic difficult at best.  

Palm Coast’s new Town Center will be built six miles south of
the current center of town, conveniently situated between a
hospital built in 2002, the county airport and the high school.
Flanked by Interstate 95 and other major arterial roads, the
development is designed as a pedestrian-friendly town with bike
trails, wildlife corridors and wetland preserves. A new city hall is
a centerpiece of the project. Details of the finished development
will depend upon future market conditions.

At build-out, the development is expected to include 2,950
residential units, 2.2 million square feet of commercial space,
and 1.4 million square feet of office space. All major land use

approvals for the project have been received. Construction of
the infrastructure (roads, utilities, drainage and landscaping) is
expected to begin in March 2005.

Other developments along I-95
Palm Coast Park is a 4,700 acre mixed-use development in
northwest Palm Coast along US Highway 1, a mile south of its
intersection with Interstate 95. At build-out, the project is
expected to include 3,600 residential units, 1.6 million square
feet of commercial space, 800,000 square feet of office space,
and 800,000 square feet of industrial use. Final development
details will, of course, depend on future market conditions. In
December 2004, development order approval was received for
the project. 

Ormond Crossings is a 5,850 acre mixed-use planned
development located along Interstate 95 in northwest Ormond
Beach.  The property features three miles of frontage on the east
and west sides of Interstate 95, is adjacent to the local airport
and has access to a major rail line. Annexed into the City of
Ormond Beach in 2004, land use approvals are in progress.
Again, final development details will depend upon future market
conditions in the future.

In the midst of Town Center are several high-quality wetlands that have been

carefully studied and will be preserved throughout the development process.

In addition to these major development projects, ALLETE property
in northeast Florida includes 4,000 acres of land, most of it dating
back to the 1996 acquisition from ITT Development Corp. 

Southwest Florida operations consist of land sales and third-party
brokerage businesses, with limited land development activities.
Inventory includes 1,200 acres of commercial and residential land
located in Lehigh Acres and Cape Coral. The operation also
generates rental income from a 186,000 square foot, retail
shopping center in Winter Haven, FL.

ALLETE Properties: Transforming real estate into shareholder value
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ALLETE Executive Officers 
 
Donald J. Shippar President and Chief Executive Officer 
Deborah A. Amberg Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 
Warren L. Candy Senior Vice President – Utility Operations 
Laura A. Holquist President ALLETE Properties 
David J. McMillan Senior Vice President – Marketing and Public Affairs 
Mark A. Schober Senior Vice President and Controller 
Donald W. Stellmaker Treasurer 
Timothy J. Thorp Vice President – Investor Relations  
James K. Vizanko Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Claudia Scott Welty Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer  
 
 

Investor Information 
 

Shareholder Information and Assistance 
 
For shareholder information and assistance, write or call 
Shareholder Services at our corporate headquarters. 
 

ALLETE Shareholder Services 
30 West Superior Street 
Duluth, MN 55802-2093 

Toll-free phone: 800-535-3056 
Duluth area number: 218-723-3974 

Fax: 218-720-2502 
E-mail: shareholder@allete.com 

 
Invest Direct 
 
ALLETE offers Invest Direct—a multi-featured direct 
stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan. For 
information, contact ALLETE Shareholder Services. 
 
Analyst Inquiries 
 
Security analysts seeking information about us may 
contact one of the following: 
 

Timothy J. Thorp 
Vice President – Investor Relations 

Phone: 218-723-3953 
Fax: 218-720-2507 

E-mail: tthorp@allete.com 
 

Vincent J. Meyer 
Senior Investor Relations Analyst 

Phone: 218-723-3952 
Fax: 218-720-2507 

E-mail: vmeyer@allete.com 
 
Annual Meeting 
 
Our Annual Meeting of Shareholders is held the second 
Tuesday in May. Shareholders are invited to attend the 
2005 Annual Meeting, beginning at 10:30 a.m., May 10, 
at the Duluth Entertainment and Convention Center, 350 
Harbor Drive, Duluth, MN. 
 
Corporate Website 
 
www.allete.com 

Stock Exchange Listings 
 
ALLETE common stock is listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the symbol ALE and our CUSIP 
number is 018522300 (formerly 018522102). Price 
quotes on our common stock may be found in many 
newspapers under the New York Stock Exchange 
composite transaction listing or at various Internet sites. 
 
Transfer Agents and Registrars for Common Stock 
 
ALLETE, Duluth, MN 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., South St. Paul, MN 
 
Common Stock Dividend Payment Dates 
 
March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1 
 
Annual Report 
 
This Annual Report and Form 10-K, and the financial 
statements contained herein, are submitted for the 
general information of our shareholders and not in 
connection with the sale or offer for sale of, or 
solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities. A copy of 
this Annual Report and Form 10-K will be furnished 
without charge to any shareholder upon written request 
to the address listed above. 
 
We have included as Exhibit 31 (a) and (b) to our 2004 
Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, certificates of the Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer of ALLETE certifying the 
quality of ALLETE’s public disclosure. We have also 
submitted to the New York Stock Exchange a certificate 
of the Chief Executive Officer of ALLETE certifying 
that he is not aware of any violation by ALLETE of  
New York Stock Exchange corporate governance listing 
standards. 
 
This Annual Report and Form 10-K makes use of 
Centura Gloss, a premium coated paper that contains a 
minimum of 10% post-consumer recycled fiber. Centura 
Gloss is produced by Stora Enso North America. 
Minnesota Power provides electricity to Stora Enso 
North America’s paper mill in Duluth, MN. ALLETE is 
proud to use the high quality product of a valued 
customer in this report. 



The ALLETE Board of Directors are, left to right: Bruce Stender , 62, President and CEO of Labovitz Enterprises, which owns and

manages commercial real estate, Duluth, MN; Heidi Eddins , 48, Executive Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel at Florida East

Coast Industries, Inc., a transportation and real estate company, St. Augustine, FL; Roger Peirce , 67, retired Vice Chairman and CEO of

Super Steel Products Corp., a manufacturer of fabricated metal products, Mequon, WI; Peter J. Johnson , 68, Chairman of Hoover

Construction, Virginia, MN; Donald J. Shippar , 55, President and CEO of ALLETE, Duluth, MN; Madeleine Ludlow , 50, former CEO of

Cadence Network, Inc., a web-based provider of utility expense management services, Cincinnati, OH; George L. Mayer , 60, President of

Manhattan Realty Group, Larchmont, NY; Jack I. Rajala , 65, Chairman and CEO of Rajala Companies, lumber manufacturing and trading

firms, Grand Rapids, MN; and Nick Smith , 68, Chairman of Northeast Ventures, a venture capital firm. 
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Definitions 
 

The following abbreviations or acronyms are used in the text. References in this report to “we,” “us” and “our” are to 
ALLETE, Inc. and its subsidiaries, collectively. 
 
Abbreviation or Acronym Term  

ADESA ADESA, Inc. 
AICPA American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
ALLETE ALLETE, Inc.  
ALLETE Properties ALLETE Properties, Inc. 
APB Accounting Principles Board  
Aqua America Aqua America, Inc. 
BNI Coal BNI Coal, Ltd. 
Boswell Boswell Energy Center 
CIP Conservation Improvement Programs 
Company ALLETE, Inc. and its subsidiaries 
Constellation Energy Commodities  Constellation Energy Commodities Group, Inc. 
DOC Minnesota Department of Commerce 
EITF Emerging Issues Task Force  
Enventis Telecom Enventis Telecom, Inc. 
EPA Environmental Protection Agency 
ESOP Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board 
FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
Florida Water Florida Water Services Corporation 
Form 8-K ALLETE Current Report on Form 8-K 
Form 10-K ALLETE Annual Report on Form 10-K 
Form 10-Q ALLETE Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
FPSC Florida Public Service Commission 
FSP Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position  
GAAP Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States 
Hibbard Hibbard Energy Center 
Invest Direct ALLETE’s Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
IPO Initial Public Offering 
kWh Kilowatthour(s) 
kV Kilovolt(s) 
Laskin Laskin Energy Center 
LSP-Kendall Energy  LSP-Kendall Energy, LLC  
MAPP Mid-Continent Area Power Pool 
MBtu Million British thermal units 
Minnesota Power An operating division of ALLETE, Inc. 
Minnkota Power Minnkota Power Cooperative, Inc. 
MISO Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. 
Moody’s Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. 
MPCA Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
MPUC Minnesota Public Utilities Commission 
MW Megawatt(s) 
MWh Megawatthour(s) 
Note ___ Note ___ to the consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K 
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
NYSE New York Stock Exchange 
PSCW Public Service Commission of Wisconsin 
Rainy River Energy Rainy River Energy Corporation 
SEC Securities and Exchange Commission 
SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
Split Rock Energy Split Rock Energy LLC 
Square Butte Square Butte Electric Cooperative 
Standard & Poor’s  Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. 
SWL&P Superior Water, Light and Power Company 
Taconite Harbor Taconite Harbor Energy Center 
WDNR Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
WPPI Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. 
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Safe Harbor Statement 
Under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 

 
In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, we are hereby filing 
cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those 
projected in forward-looking statements (as such term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995) 
made by or on behalf of ALLETE in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in presentations, in response to questions or 
otherwise. Any statements that express, or involve discussions as to, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions 
or future events or performance (often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as “anticipates,” 
“believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “projects,” “will likely result,” “will continue” or similar expressions) are 
not statements of historical facts and may be forward-looking. 
 
Forward-looking statements involve estimates, assumptions, risks and uncertainties and are qualified in their entirety by 
reference to, and are accompanied by, the following important factors, which are difficult to predict, contain uncertainties, 
are beyond our control and may cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those contained in forward-
looking statements: 
 

• our ability to successfully implement our strategic objectives; 
• prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including those of the United States Congress, state 

legislatures, the FERC, the MPUC, the FPSC, the PSCW, and various local and county regulators, and city 
administrators, about allowed rates of return, financings, industry and rate structure, acquisition and disposal of 
assets and facilities, real estate development, operation and construction of plant facilities, recovery of 
purchased power and capital investments, present or prospective wholesale and retail competition (including but 
not limited to transmission costs), and zoning and permitting of land held for resale; 

• effects of restructuring initiatives in the electric industry; 
• economic and geographic factors, including political and economic risks; 
• changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies; 
• weather conditions; 
• natural disasters; 
• war and acts of terrorism; 
• wholesale power market conditions; 
• population growth rates and demographic patterns; 
• the effects of competition, including competition for retail and wholesale customers; 
• pricing and transportation of commodities; 
• changes in tax rates or policies or in rates of inflation; 
• unanticipated project delays or changes in project costs; 
• unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 
• global and domestic economic conditions; 
• capital market conditions; 
• changes in interest rates and the performance of the financial markets; 
• competition for economic expansion or development opportunities; 
• our ability to manage expansion and integrate acquisitions; and 
• the outcome of legal and administrative proceedings (whether civil or criminal) and settlements that affect the 

business and profitability of ALLETE. 
 
Additional disclosures regarding factors that could cause our results and performance to differ from results or performance 
anticipated by this report are discussed in Item 7 under the heading “Factors that May Affect Future Results” beginning on 
page 36 of this Form 10-K. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, 
and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date 
on which that statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to 
time, and it is not possible for management to predict all of these factors, nor can it assess the impact of each of these 
factors on the businesses of ALLETE or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results 
to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. Readers are urged to carefully review and 
consider the various disclosures made by us in our 2004 Form 10-K and in our other reports filed with the SEC that 
attempt to advise interested parties of the factors that may affect our business. 
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Part I 
 
Item 1. Business 
 
ALLETE has been incorporated under the laws of Minnesota since 1906. ALLETE’s corporate headquarters are in Duluth, 
Minnesota. As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately 1,500 employees, 100 of which were part-time. Statistical 
information is presented as of December 31, 2004, unless otherwise indicated. All subsidiaries are wholly owned unless 
otherwise specifically indicated. References in this report to “we,” “us” and “our” are to ALLETE and its subsidiaries, 
collectively. 
 
ALLETE files annual, quarterly, and other reports and information with the SEC. You can read and copy any information 
filed by ALLETE with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. 
You can obtain additional information about the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In 
addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site (www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and 
other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, including ALLETE. ALLETE also maintains an 
Internet site (www.allete.com) that contains documents as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is 
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. 
 
ALLETE’s operations are comprised of four business segments. Regulated Utility includes retail and wholesale rate 
regulated electric, water and gas services in northeastern Minnesota and northwestern Wisconsin under the jurisdiction of 
state and federal regulatory authorities. Nonregulated Energy Operations includes nonregulated generation (non-rate 
base generation sold at market-based rates to the wholesale market) consisting primarily of generation from Taconite 
Harbor in northern Minnesota, and our coal mining activities in North Dakota. Nonregulated Energy Operations also 
includes generation secured through the Kendall County power purchase agreement, which is expected to be transferred 
in April 2005. (See Item 7 – Outlook.) Real Estate includes our Florida real estate operations. Other includes our 
telecommunications activities, investments in emerging technologies, earnings on cash, and general corporate charges 
and interest not specifically related to any one business segment. General corporate charges include employee salaries 
and benefits, as well as legal and other outside service fees. Discontinued Operations includes our Automotive Services 
business that was spun off on September 20, 2004, our Water Services businesses, the majority of which were sold in 
2003, and costs incurred by ALLETE associated with the spin-off of ADESA.  
 
For a detailed discussion of results of operations and trends, see Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations. For business segment information, see Notes 1 and 2. 
 
 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 
 
Consolidated Operating Revenue — Millions $751  $692  $643 
 
Percentage of Consolidated Operating Revenue 
 
 Regulated Utility 
  Industrial 
   Taconite Producers 23% 22% 23% 
   Paper and Wood Products 9  8  10 
   Pipelines and Other Industries 6  6  6 
 
    Total Industrial 38  36  39 
  Residential 10  10  11 
  Commercial 11  11  11 
  Other Power Suppliers 5  7  7 
  Other Revenue 10  10  10 
 
    Total Regulated Utility 74  74  78 
 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 14  15  13 
 
 Real Estate  6  6  5 
 
 Other   6  5  4 
 
     100% 100% 100% 
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Spin-Off of Automotive Services. On September 20, 2004, the spin-off of Automotive Services was completed by 
distributing to ALLETE shareholders all of ALLETE’s shares of ADESA common stock. Through a June 2004 IPO, our 
Automotive Services business, doing business as ADESA, Inc. (NYSE: KAR), issued 6.3 million shares of common stock. 
This represented 6.6% of ADESA’s common stock outstanding. ALLETE owned the remaining 93.4% of ADESA until the 
spin-off was completed. (See Note 3.)  
 
Discontinued operations included the operating results of our Automotive Services business until the spin-off. Automotive 
Services, which does business independently as ADESA, operates businesses that are integral parts of the vehicle 
redistribution industry in North America. Those businesses include used and salvage vehicle auctions and related 
services, and dealer financing. ADESA’s SEC filings are available through the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.  
 
Sale of Water Plant Assets. In mid-2004, we completed the sales of our North Carolina water and wastewater assets, 
and our remaining 72 water and wastewater systems in Florida. In early 2005, we sold our wastewater services business 
in Georgia. The net cash proceeds from the sale of all water and wastewater assets in 2003 and 2004, after transaction 
costs, retirement of most Florida Water debt and payment of income taxes, were approximately $300 million. The 
transaction relating to the sale of 63 water and wastewater systems in Florida to Aqua America remains subject to 
regulatory approval by the FPSC. The approval process may result in an adjustment to the final purchase price, based on 
the FPSC’s determination of plant investment for the systems. A decision is expected in late 2005. 
 
 
Regulated Utility 
 
Minnesota Power, an operating division of ALLETE, provides regulated utility electric service in a 26,000 square mile 
service territory in northeastern Minnesota. Minnesota Power supplies regulated utility electric service to 136,000 retail 
customers and wholesale electric service to 16 municipalities. SWL&P provides regulated utility electric, natural gas and 
water service in northwestern Wisconsin. SWL&P has 14,000 electric customers, 12,000 natural gas customers and 
10,000 water customers. 
 
Minnesota Power had an annual net peak load of 1,498 MW on January 30, 2004. Our regulated power supply sources 
are listed below. 
 
    For the Year Ended 
Regulated Utility Unit Year Net Winter December 31, 2004 
Power Supply No. Installed Capability Electric Requirements 

 MW MWh % 
Steam 
 Coal-Fired 
  Boswell Energy Center 1 1958 69 
  near Grand Rapids, MN 2 1960 69 
    3 1973 350 
    4 1980 430 
 
      918 5,814,505 48.4% 
 
  Laskin Energy Center  1 1953 55 
  in Hoyt Lakes, MN 2 1953 55 
 
      110 626,478 5.2 
 
 Purchased Steam 
  Hibbard Energy Center in Duluth, MN 3 & 4 1949, 1951 46 69,521 0.6 
 
   Total Steam   1,074 6,510,504 54.2 
 
Hydro 
 Group consisting of ten stations in MN Various  115 454,713 3.8 
 
Purchased Power 
 Square Butte burns lignite coal near Center, ND   322 2,005,776 16.7 
 All Other – Net   – 3,047,401 25.3 
 
   Total Purchased Power   322 5,053,177 42.0 
 
   Total   1,511 12,018,394 100.0% 
 
We have electric transmission and distribution lines of 500 kV (8 miles), 230 kV (606 miles), 161 kV (43 miles), 138 kV 
(66 miles), 115 kV (1,300 miles) and less than 115 kV (6,767 miles). We own and operate 184 substations with a total 
capacity of 8,868 megavoltamperes. Some of our transmission and distribution lines interconnect with other utilities. 
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We own offices and service buildings, an energy control center and repair shops, and lease offices and storerooms in 
various localities. Substantially all of our electric plant is subject to mortgages, which collateralize the outstanding first 
mortgage bonds of Minnesota Power and of SWL&P. Generally, we hold fee interest in our real properties subject only to 
the lien of the mortgages. Most of our electric lines are located on land not owned in fee, but are covered by appropriate 
easement rights or by necessary permits from governmental authorities. WPPI owns 20% of Boswell Unit 4. WPPI has the 
right to use our transmission line facilities to transport its share of Boswell generation. (See Note 10.) 
 
Split Rock Energy was a joint venture between Minnesota Power and Great River Energy. In March 2004, we terminated 
our ownership interest upon receipt of FERC approval.  
 
Electric Sales 
 
Our regulated utility operations include retail and wholesale activities under the jurisdiction of state and federal regulatory 
authorities. (See Regulatory Issues.) 
 
Regulated Utility Electric Sales 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 
Millions of Kilowatthours 
 
Retail and Municipals 
 Residential 1,053 1,065 1,044 
 Commercial 1,282 1,286 1,257 
 Industrial 7,071 6,558 6,946 
 Municipals and Other 902 921 898 
 
  10,308 9,830 10,145 
Other Power Suppliers 918 1,314 987 
 
  11,226 11,144 11,132 
 
Minnesota Power has wholesale contracts with 16 municipal customers, SWL&P and Dahlberg Light & Power Company in 
rural Wisconsin. (See Regulatory Issues – Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.) 
 
Approximately 60% of the ore consumed by integrated steel facilities in the United States originates from six taconite 
customers of Minnesota Power. Taconite, an iron-bearing rock of relatively low iron content that is abundantly available in 
Minnesota, is an important domestic source of raw material for the steel industry. Taconite processing plants use large 
quantities of electric power to grind the ore-bearing rock, and agglomerate and pelletize the iron particles into taconite 
pellets. Strong worldwide steel demand, driven largely by extensive infrastructure development in China, has resulted in 
very robust world iron ore and steel pricing and has consequently resulted in very high demand for iron ore and steel. This 
globalization of demand has positively impacted Minnesota taconite producers, which all produced near their rated 
capacities in 2004. Annual taconite production in Minnesota was 41 million tons in 2004 (35 million tons in 2003; 39 million 
tons in 2002). Recent consolidation activities, combined with the strong steel market, have placed the Minnesota taconite 
producers in a strong position. Cleveland-Cliffs Inc and U.S. Steel Corp. have each announced planned significant capital 
investments to either bring mothballed pellet production capacity back on line or to ensure existing capacity continues to 
operate with an investment in required pollution control equipment.  
 
In addition to serving the taconite industry, Minnesota Power also serves a number of customers in the paper and pulp 
and wood products industry. In total, we serve four major paper and pulp mills directly and one paper mill indirectly by 
providing wholesale service to the retail provider of the mill. Minnesota Power also serves four wood products 
manufacturers.  
 
After suffering through a consecutive number of down years since 2000, the North American paper industry rebounded in 
2004. The reasons for the rebound included the decline of the dollar in comparison to the Euro, which resulted in fewer 
imports to the United States, a recovering economy and closing some capacity over the past several years. The past 
trend of the mills in Minnesota Power’s service territory being acquired by new owners continued in 2004. In 2004, Boise 
Cascade sold its paper, wood products and timber holdings to Madison Dearborn Partners, including the International 
Falls paper mill which Minnesota Power serves, the former Potlatch-Brainerd/Missota Paper mill was acquired by 
Wausau-Mosinee Paper Corporation, and Potlatch’s oriented strand board (plywood substitute) plants, including the 
Grand Rapids plant served by Minnesota Power, were purchased by Ainsworth Lumber Company Ltd. of Vancouver, 
Canada.  
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Large Power Customer Contracts. Minnesota Power has large power customer contracts with 12 customers (Large 
Power Customers), 11 of which require 10 MW or more of generating capacity and one of which requires 8 MW or more of 
generating capacity. Large Power Customer contracts require Minnesota Power to have a certain amount of generating 
capacity available. (See Minimum Revenue and Demand Under Contract table.) In turn, each Large Power Customer is 
required to pay a minimum monthly demand charge that covers the fixed costs associated with having this capacity 
available to serve the customer, including a return on common equity. Most contracts allow customers to establish the 
level of megawatts subject to a demand charge on a biannual (power pool season) basis and require that a portion of their 
megawatt needs be committed on a take-or-pay basis for at least a portion of the agreement. In addition to the demand 
charge, each Large Power Customer is billed an energy charge for each kilowatthour used that recovers the variable 
costs incurred in generating electricity. Six of the Large Power Customers have interruptible service for a portion of their 
needs, which provides a discounted demand rate and energy priced at Minnesota Power’s incremental cost after serving 
all firm power obligations. Minnesota Power also provides incremental production service for customer demand levels 
above the contract take-or-pay levels. There is no demand charge for this service and energy is priced at an increment 
above Minnesota Power’s cost. Incremental production service is interruptible. Contracts with 8 of the 12 Large Power 
Customers provide for deferral without interest of one-half of demand charge obligations incurred during the first three 
months of a strike or illegal walkout at a customer’s facilities, with repayment required over the 12-month period following 
resolution of the work stoppage. 
 
All contracts continue past the contract termination date, unless the required advance notice of cancellation has been 
given. The advance notice of cancellation varies from one to four years. Such contracts minimize the impact on earnings 
that otherwise would result from significant reductions in kilowatthour sales to such customers. Large Power Customers 
are required to purchase all electric service requirements from Minnesota Power for the duration of their contracts. The 
rates and corresponding revenue associated with capacity and energy provided under these contracts are subject to 
change through the same regulatory process governing all retail electric rates. (See Regulatory Issues – Electric Rates.) 
 
The MPUC allows Minnesota Power to require taconite-producing Large Power Customers to pay weekly for electric 
usage based on monthly energy usage estimates. A normal thirty-day billing cycle with a 15-day payment period left 
Minnesota Power greatly exposed to a significant revenue loss if the customer did not or could not make payment due to 
discontinued operations, or delayed making payment for electric service pending a Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing. The 
customers receive estimated bills based on Minnesota Power’s prediction of the customer’s energy usage, forecasted 
energy prices, and fuel clause adjustment estimates. Minnesota Power’s five taconite-producing Large Power Customers 
have generally predictable energy usage on a week-to-week basis, which makes the variance between the estimated 
usage and actual usage small. Taconite-producing Large Power Customers subject to weekly billings receive interest on 
the money paid to Minnesota Power within the billing cycle. 
 
Minimum Revenue and Demand Under Contract Minimum Monthly 
As of February 1, 2005 Annual Revenue (a) Megawatts 
 
 2005 $69.1 421 
 2006 $39.4 210 
 2007 $32.5 178 
 2008 $25.8 148 
 2009 $5.8 36 
 
(a) Based on past experience, we believe revenue from our Large Power Customers will be substantially in excess of the minimum 

contract amounts. 
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Contract Status for Minnesota Power Large Power Customers 
As of February 1, 2005 
    Earliest 
Customer Industry  Location  Ownership  Termination Date 
 
Hibbing Taconite Co. (a,b) Taconite Hibbing, MN 62.3% International Steel February 28, 2009 
     Group Inc. 
    23% Cleveland-Cliffs Inc 
    14.7% Stelco Inc. 

Ispat Inland Mining Company (a,b) Taconite  Virginia, MN Ispat Inland Mining Company February 28, 2009 

U.S. Steel Corp. (USS) Minntac (a) Taconite Mt. Iron, MN U.S. Steel Corp. February 28, 2009 

USS Keewatin Taconite (a) Taconite Keewatin, MN U.S. Steel Corp. February 28, 2009 

United Taconite LLC (a) Taconite Eveleth, MN 70% Cleveland-Cliffs Inc February 28, 2009 
    30% Laiwu Steel Group 

UPM, Blandin Paper Mill Paper Grand Rapids, MN UPM-Kymmene Corporation April 30, 2007 

Boise White Paper, LLC Paper International Falls, MN Madison Dearborn December 31, 2008
    Partnership 

Sappi Cloquet LLC (a) Paper Cloquet, MN Sappi Limited February 28, 2009 

Stora Enso North America, Paper and Pulp Duluth, MN Stora Enso Oyj April 30, 2009 
 Duluth Paper Mill and 
 Duluth Recycled Pulp Mill 

USG Interiors, Inc. (c) Manufacturer Cloquet, MN  USG Corporation  February 28, 2006 

Enbridge Energy Company, Pipeline Deer River, MN Enbridge Energy Company, February 28, 2006 
 Limited Partnership (c) Floodwood, MN   Limited Partnership 

Minnesota Pipeline Company (c) Pipeline Staples, MN 60% Koch Pipeline Co. L.P. February 28, 2006 
   Little Falls, MN 40% Marathon Ashland 
   Park Rapids, MN  Petroleum LLC 
 
(a)  The contract will terminate four years from the date of written notice from either Minnesota Power or the customer. No notice of 

contract cancellation has been given by either party. Thus, the earliest date of cancellation is February 28, 2009. 
(b)  In 2004, Ispat International and International Steel Group (ISG) announced a merger. At the same time, Ispat International changed 

its name to Mittal Steel Company N.V. (Mittal Steel). The merger of Mittal Steel and ISG is anticipated to be completed in the first 
quarter of 2005. A successful merger will result in Mittal Steel becoming the world’s largest steel producer. Mittal Steel is expected 
to become the owner of the Ispat Inland Mining Company and will be the majority partner in Hibbing Taconite. 

(c)  The contract will terminate one year from the date of written notice from either Minnesota Power or the customer. No notice of 
contract cancellation has been given by either party. Thus, the earliest date of cancellation is February 28, 2006. 

 
Purchased Power 
 
Minnesota Power has contracts to purchase capacity and energy from various entities. The largest contract is with Square 
Butte. Under an agreement with Square Butte expiring at the end of 2026, Minnesota Power is currently entitled to 
approximately 71% (66% beginning in 2006; 60% in 2007) of the output of a 455-MW coal-fired generating unit located 
near Center, North Dakota. (See Note 11.) 
 
Fuel 
 
Minnesota Power purchases low-sulfur, sub-bituminous coal from the Powder River Basin coal field located in Montana. 
Coal consumption in 2004 for electric generation at Minnesota Power’s coal-fired generating stations was about 
5.1 million tons. As of December 31, 2004, Minnesota Power had a coal inventory of about 516,000 tons. Minnesota 
Power has three coal supply agreements with various expiration dates extending through 2009. Under these agreements, 
Minnesota Power has the tonnage flexibility to procure 70% to 100% of its total coal requirements. In 2005, Minnesota 
Power will obtain coal under these coal supply agreements and in the spot market. This diversity in coal supply options 
allows Minnesota Power to manage market price and supply risk and to take advantage of favorable spot market prices. 
Minnesota Power is exploring future coal supply options. We believe that adequate supplies of low-sulfur, sub-bituminous 
coal will continue to be available. 
 
In 2001, Minnesota Power and Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company (Burlington Northern) entered into a 
long-term agreement under which Burlington Northern transports all of Minnesota Power’s coal by unit train from the 
Powder River Basin directly to Minnesota Power’s generating facilities or to a designated interconnection point. Minnesota 
Power also has agreements with the Canadian National Railway and Midwest Energy Resources Company to transport 
coal from the Burlington Northern interconnection point to certain Minnesota Power facilities. 
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Coal Delivered to Minnesota Power 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 
 
Average Price per Ton $19.01 $20.02 $21.48 
Average Price per MBtu $1.04 $1.12 $1.19 
 
The Square Butte generating unit operated by Minnkota Power burns North Dakota lignite coal supplied by BNI Coal, in 
accordance with the terms of a contract expiring in 2027. Square Butte’s cost of lignite burned in 2004 was approximately 
74 cents per MBtu. The lignite acreage that has been dedicated to Square Butte by BNI Coal is located on lands 
essentially all of which are under private control and presently leased by BNI Coal. This lignite supply is sufficient to 
provide the fuel for the anticipated useful life of the generating unit. 
 
Regulatory Issues 
 
We are exempt from regulation under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 (PUHCA), except as to Section 
9(a)(2), which relates to acquisition of securities of public utility companies. Efforts to repeal PUHCA continue at the 
national level. We cannot predict the future of these legislative efforts. 
 
We are subject to the jurisdiction of various regulatory authorities. The MPUC has regulatory authority over Minnesota 
Power’s service area in Minnesota, retail rates, retail services, issuance of securities and other matters. The FERC has 
jurisdiction over the licensing of hydroelectric projects, the establishment of rates and charges for the sale of electricity for 
resale and transmission of electricity in interstate commerce, and certain accounting and record keeping practices. The 
PSCW has regulatory authority over the retail sales of electricity, water and gas by SWL&P. The MPUC, FERC and 
PSCW had regulatory authority over 56%, 7% and 7%, respectively, of our 2004 consolidated operating revenue. 
 
Electric Rates. Minnesota Power has historically designed its electric service rates based on cost of service studies 
under which allocations are made to the various classes of customers. Nearly all retail sales include billing adjustment 
clauses, which adjust electric service rates for changes in the cost of fuel and purchased energy, and recovery of current 
and deferred CIP expenditures. 
 
In addition to Large Power Customer contracts, Minnesota Power also has contracts with large industrial and commercial 
customers with monthly demands of more than 2 MW but less than 10 MW of capacity. The terms of these contracts vary 
depending upon the customer’s demand for power and the cost of extending Minnesota Power’s facilities to provide 
electric service. 
 
Minnesota Power requires that all large industrial and commercial customers under contract specify the date when power 
is first required. Thereafter, the customer is generally billed monthly for at least the minimum power for which they 
contracted. These conditions are part of all contracts covering power to be supplied to new large industrial and 
commercial customers and to current customers as their contracts expire or are amended. All rates and other contract 
terms are subject to approval by appropriate regulatory authorities. 
 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The FERC has jurisdiction over our wholesale electric service and operations. 
Minnesota Power’s hydroelectric facilities, which are located in Minnesota, are licensed by the FERC. (See Environmental 
Matters – Water.) 
 
Minnesota Power has contracts with 16 Minnesota municipalities receiving wholesale electric service. One contract is for 
service through 2005 (8,000 MWh purchased in 2004) and one expires in 2006, while the other 14 are for service through 
at least 2007. In 2004, these municipal customers purchased 712,000 MWh from Minnesota Power. Minnesota Power 
also has a contract for wholesale service to Dahlberg Light & Power Company in Wisconsin. Dahlberg purchased 
106,000 MWh in 2004. 
 
Minnesota Power and SWL&P are members of the MISO. MISO was the first regional transmission organization (RTO) 
approved by FERC as meeting its Order No. 2000 criteria. Minnesota Power and SWL&P retain ownership of their 
respective transmission assets and control area functions, but their transmission network is under the regional operational 
control of the MISO, and they take and provide transmission service under the MISO open access transmission tariff. 
MISO continues its efforts to standardize rates, terms and conditions of transmission service over the broad region 
encompassing all or parts of 15 states and one Canadian province, and over 100,000 MW of generating capacity. MISO 
operations were phased in during the first half of 2002. In late 2003, MISO and PJM Interconnection LLC, a RTO serving 
all or parts of Pennsylvania, New Jersey, the District of Columbia, Maryland, Ohio, Virginia, West Virginia, Delaware, 
Illinois, Indiana and Kentucky, executed a joint operating agreement. The joint operating agreement, filed with the FERC, 
provides detailed information about each RTO’s operations and establishes procedures to strengthen and coordinate 
reliability. MISO has continued to develop and implement its operations, focusing on enhancing transmission system 
reliability and its performance of independent market monitoring functions.  
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Under MISO Day 2, the method by which Minnesota Power transacts wholesale energy will change, with both Minnesota 
Power load and generation participating in MISO’s day-ahead and real-time markets. Generation will also become subject 
to MISO economic dispatch authority. MISO Day 2 will start up on April 1, 2005. As a result of MISO Day 2 
implementation, energy transactions to serve retail customers will be sourced by wholesale transactions with MISO as the 
counter party. Minnesota Power anticipates filing with the MPUC in February 2005 a petition to amend the fuel clause to 
accommodate costs and revenue related to MISO Day 2 market implementation. We are unable to predict the outcome of 
this pending matter. 
 
On November 9, 2004, Minnesota Power and Rainy River Energy jointly filed their triennial market power analysis with 
FERC. This filing is a requirement for Minnesota Power and Rainy River Energy to maintain their market-based rate sales 
authority, and the two entities must prove that they lack the ability to exercise market power. Revised FERC screening 
methods generally result in failure to meet one of the screens by integrated utilities that are not participating in qualified 
RTOs. A mitigating factor that should allow the companies to maintain their market-based rate authority is their 
membership in MISO, and MISO’s move to the Day 2 market (which includes a central energy market and FERC-
approved market power monitoring and mitigation program) in April 2005.  
 
Minnesota Power also participates in MAPP, a power pool operating in parts of eight states in the Upper Midwest and in 
two provinces in Canada. MAPP functions include a regional transmission committee and a generation reserve-sharing 
pool. Minnesota Power is also a member of the Midwest Reliability Organization that was established as a regional 
reliability council within the North American Electric Reliability Council on January 1, 2005.  
 
Minnesota Public Utilities Commission. Minnesota Power’s retail rates are based on a 1994 MPUC retail rate order 
that allows for an 11.6% return on common equity dedicated to utility plant. Minnesota Power does not expect to file a 
request to increase rates for its retail utility operations during 2005. We will, however, continue to monitor the costs of 
serving our retail customers and evaluate the need for a rate filing in the future. 
 
As required by the MPUC, on December 23, 2004, Minnesota Power filed for approval of a Rider for Distributed 
Generation Services, along with a revised Rider for Standby Services, necessary to implement state law and the MPUC’s 
order regarding the establishment of generic standards for utility tariffs for interconnection and operation of distributed 
generation facilities. Distributed generation is small-scale, customer-based generation. Minnesota Power’s filing utilizes 
the statewide generic interconnection agreement format, while implementing a distributed generation rider that is 
particular to Minnesota Power’s system for the costs of connecting distributed generation systems to Minnesota Power’s 
distribution system.  
 
In June 2003, the MPUC initiated an investigation into the continuing usefulness of the fuel clause as a regulatory tool for 
electric utilities. Minnesota Power’s initial comments on the proposed scope and procedure of the investigation were filed 
in July 2003. In November 2003, the MPUC approved the initial scope and procedure of the investigation. The 
investigation will focus on whether the fuel clause continues to be an appropriate regulatory tool. The initial steps will be to 
review the clause’s original purpose, structure and rationale (including its current operation and relevance in today’s 
regulatory environment), and then address its ongoing appropriateness and other issues if the need for continued use of 
the fuel adjustment clause is shown. In April 2004, the DOC issued comments providing a wide array of alternatives, 
including closing the investigation as one option and eliminating the fuel clause as another. The MPUC has not taken 
action on any proposal and, as a result, we are unable to predict the outcome or impact of this proceeding at this time. 
 
Minnesota requires investor-owned electric utilities to spend a minimum of 1.5% of gross annual retail electric revenue on 
CIP each year. These investments are recovered from retail customers through a billing adjustment and amounts included 
in retail base rates. The MPUC allows utilities to accumulate, in a deferred account for future recovery, all CIP 
expenditures, as well as a carrying charge on the deferred account balance. Minnesota Power’s CIP investment goal was 
$3.1 million for 2004 ($2.9 million for 2003 and 2002), with actual spending of $3.1 million in 2004 ($5.0 million in 2003; 
$4.0 million in 2002). These amounts satisfied current spending requirements and all prior years’ spending shortfalls. 
 
In September 2004, Minnesota Power filed our Integrated Resource Plan (Resource Plan), which predicts that energy 
demand by customers in our service territory will increase at an average annual rate of 1.7% over the next decade. 
Growth of 20 MW to 30 MW per year primarily from residential and smaller commercial expansion and a positive outlook 
from Large Power Customers in northeastern Minnesota, such as taconite processing facilities and paper mills, is included 
in the Resource Plan. Minnesota Power will also realize a reduction in generating resource supply over the next three 
years, under the terms of a long-term energy supply contract with Square Butte. The combination of increased demand 
and reduced supply means Minnesota Power will need to secure additional capacity and energy to serve our customers in 
future years. In the Resource Plan, we provide several options designed to meet the predicted growing demand in the 
region. The options range from purchasing additional power to building new energy generation facilities. In January 2005, 
at the DOC’s request, Minnesota Power filed a supplement to the main filing that described a “representative” resource 
plan for the DOC’s analysis. This plan is considered preliminary according to the supplemental filing, since Minnesota 
Power is still in the process of gathering and analyzing information on potential resources for actual resource decision-
making.  
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A Request for Proposal (RFP) to external bidders for additional supply was issued by Minnesota Power in October 2004. 
In December 2004, Minnesota Power received bids for renewable and non-renewable resources, as well as short- and 
long-term purchase offers. All RFP bids are being reviewed for completeness and compliance with our requirements. A 
simultaneous, though separate, analysis of Minnesota Power’s self-build and turnkey plant options is also occurring to 
arrive at a refined list of those options. Once the RFP bids and self-build/turnkey options are screened to identify the best 
choices among them, a portfolio analysis process will occur, looking at combinations of supply alternatives to meet our 
forecasted resource need. We will continue to work with state regulators and other stakeholders over the next several 
months to further develop the Resource Plan and anticipate that the MPUC will formally consider the Resource Plan 
during 2005. 
 
Public Service Commission of Wisconsin. SWL&P’s current electric retail rates are based on a September 2001 
PSCW retail rate order that allows for a 12.25% return on common equity and resulted in an average rate decrease of 
3.4%.  
 
In June 2004, SWL&P filed an application with the PSCW for authority to increase retail utility rates an average of 6.1%. 
This average increase is comprised of a 4.0% increase in electric rates, a 7.0% increase in gas rates and a 12.1% 
increase in water rates. The proposed increases are due to increased operating costs, primarily pension, insurance, gross 
receipts tax and parent company service costs. SWL&P is requesting a 12.25% return on common equity. Hearings took 
place in January 2005 and a final order is anticipated in the first half of 2005. 
 
In December 2003, the PSCW unanimously approved the revised $420 million cost estimate for the Wausau-to-Duluth 
electric transmission line. Minnesota Power and transmission planners throughout the region believe the 220-mile, 345-kV 
transmission line is necessary. Minnesota Power has been actively involved in the permitting. Construction activities in 
Minnesota began in January 2004. Minnesota Power does not intend to finance or own the proposed line.  
 
Competition 
 
Industry Restructuring. State efforts across the country to restructure the electric utility industry have slowed. Legislation 
or regulation that would allow retail customer choice of their electric service provider has not gained momentum in either 
Minnesota or Wisconsin.  
 
At the national level, the FERC continues in its efforts to have companies join an RTO. FERC’s sweeping Standard 
Market Design rulemaking, renamed Wholesale Market Platform, appears to have stalled, although FERC remains 
committed to implementing most of the rule in a more piecemeal fashion. Minnesota Power supports the creation of a 
robust wholesale electric market. 
 
Potential federal energy legislation would seek to maintain reliability, increase investments in new transmission capacity 
and energy supply, and address wholesale price volatility, while encouraging wholesale competition. These types of 
provisions remain the subject of significant controversy. We cannot predict the timing or substance of any future 
legislation or regulation. 
 
Franchises 
 
Minnesota Power holds franchises to construct and maintain an electric distribution and transmission system in 90 cities 
and towns located within its electric service territory. SWL&P holds similar franchises for electric, natural gas and/or water 
systems in 15 cities and towns within its service territory. The remaining cities and towns served do not require a franchise 
to operate within their boundaries. Our exclusive service territories are established by state regulatory agencies. 
 
 
Nonregulated Energy Operations 
 
BNI Coal owns and operates a lignite mine in North Dakota. BNI Coal is the lowest-cost supplier of lignite in North 
Dakota, producing about 4 million tons annually. Two electric generating cooperatives, Minnkota Power and Square Butte, 
presently consume virtually all of BNI Coal’s production of lignite under cost-plus, fixed fee, coal supply agreements 
expiring in 2027. (See Fuel and Note 11.) The mining process disturbs and reclaims approximately 210 acres per year. 
The law requires that the reclaimed land be at least as productive as it was prior to mining. That means if the land we 
mine once grew crops, it must be able to do so again after reclamation. The cost to reclaim one acre of land averages 
about $15,000 and can run as high as $30,000. BNI Coal has the equipment necessary for the reclamation process. In 
September 2004, BNI Coal entered into a master lease agreement with Farm Credit Leasing Services Corporation (Farm 
Credit). Under this new agreement, BNI Coal leases a new dragline that went into operation in October 2004. BNI Coal is 
obligated to make lease payments totaling $2.8 million annually for the 23-year lease term, which expires in 2027. BNI 
Coal will have the option at the end of the lease term to renew the lease at a fair market rental, to purchase the dragline at 
fair market value, or to surrender the dragline to Farm Credit and pay a $3.0 million termination fee. With lignite reserves 
of an estimated 600 million tons combined with new dragline equipment, BNI Coal has ample capacity to expand 
production. 
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Nonregulated Generation. Nonregulated generation is primarily non-rate base generation sold at market-based rates to 
the wholesale market. In addition, we have 18,600 acres of land acquired in 2001 at the time we purchased Taconite 
Harbor from LTV Steel Mining Co., which is available for sale. (See Regulated Utility – Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission for MISO Day 2 discussion.) 
 
Taconite Harbor. In 2002, we commenced operation of the Taconite Harbor generating facilities, which we purchased in 
2001. The generation output is primarily being sold in the wholesale market and is sold in limited circumstances to 
Minnesota Power’s utility customers. 
 
Kendall County. In 1999, Rainy River Energy entered into a 15-year power purchase agreement (Kendall County). The 
Kendall County agreement includes the purchase of the output of one entire unit (approximately 275 MW) of a four-unit 
(approximately 1,100 MW) natural gas-fired combined cycle generation facility located near Chicago, Illinois. Construction 
of the generation facility was completed in 2002. Rainy River Energy’s obligation to pay fixed capacity related charges 
began May 1, 2002 and would end in September 2017, unless assigned as described below. We currently have 130 MW 
of long-term capacity and energy sales contracts for the Kendall County generation, with 50 MW expiring in April 2012 
and 80 MW expiring in September 2017. 
 
In December 2004, Rainy River Energy entered into an agreement to assign its Kendall County agreement to 
Constellation Energy Commodities. Under the terms of the agreement, Rainy River Energy will pay Constellation Energy 
Commodities $73 million in cash (approximately $47 million after taxes) to assume the Kendall County agreement. The 
proposed transaction is subject to the approvals of LSP-Kendall Energy, the owner of the energy generation facility, as 
well as of its project lenders and the FERC. Pending these approvals, the transaction is scheduled to close in April 2005. 
The long-term capacity and energy sales contracts will also be transferred to Constellation Energy Commodities at 
closing.  
 
Rainy River Energy is engaged in the acquisition and development of nonregulated generation and wholesale power 
marketing. Rainy River Energy is a party to the 15-year Kendall County agreement that is expected to be assigned in April 
2005. (See Nonregulated Generation – Kendall County.)  
 
Rainy River Energy Corporation – Wisconsin continues to study the feasibility of the construction of a natural gas-fired 
electric generating facility in Superior, Wisconsin. In accordance with the PSCW’s final order approving the project, Rainy 
River Energy Corporation – Wisconsin undertook preliminary site preparation work in late 2003. 
 
In 2004, we sold 1.5 million MWh of nonregulated generation (1.5 million in 2003; 1.2 million in 2002). 
 
 Unit Year Year Net 
Nonregulated Power Supply No. Installed Acquired Capability 

 MW 
Steam 
 Coal-Fired 
  Taconite Harbor Energy Center 1, 2 & 3 1957, 1957, 1967 2001 200 
  in Taconite Harbor, MN 
 
  Cloquet Energy Center 5 2001 2001 23 
  in Cloquet, MN 
 
  Rapids Energy Center (a) 6 & 7 1980 2000 29 
  in Grand Rapids, MN 
 
Hydro 
 Conventional Run-of-River 
  Rapids Energy Center (a) 4 & 5 1917 2000 1 
  in Grand Rapids, MN 
 
Power Purchase Agreement 
 Kendall County (Rainy River Energy) 3 2002 2002 275 
 located southwest of Chicago, IL (b) 
 
(a) The net generation is primarily dedicated to the needs of one customer. 
(b) Expected to be transferred in April 2005. 
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Real Estate 
 
ALLETE Properties is our real estate business that has operated in Florida since 1991. ALLETE Properties acquires real 
estate portfolios and large land tracts at bulk prices, adds value through entitlements and/or infrastructure improvements, 
and resells the property over time to developers, end-users and investors. Management at ALLETE Properties uses their 
business relationships, understanding of real estate markets and expertise in the land development and sales processes 
to provide revenue and earnings growth opportunities to ALLETE.  
 
ALLETE Properties is headquartered in Fort Myers, Florida, the location of its southwest Florida regional office. We also 
have a regional office in Palm Coast, Florida, which oversees northeast Florida operations. 
 
Southwest Florida operations consist of land sales and third-party brokerage businesses, with limited land development 
activities. Inventory includes commercial and residential land located in Lehigh Acres and Cape Coral. The property 
represents the remaining properties acquired in 1991 from the Resolution Trust Corporation and in 1999 from Avatar 
Properties, Inc. The operation also generates rental income from a 186,000 square foot retail shopping center located in 
Winter Haven, Florida. The center is anchored by Burdines-Macy’s and Belk’s department stores, along with Staples. 
 
Northeast Florida operations focus on land sales and development activities. Development activities involve mainly 
zoning, permitting, platting and master infrastructure construction. Development costs are financed through a combination 
of community development districts, bank loans, and company funds. Our three major development projects include Town 
Center at Palm Coast, Palm Coast Park and Ormond Crossings. 
 
Town Center at Palm Coast is a mixed-use, planned development with a neo-traditional downtown design. Surrounded by 
major arterial roads, including Interstate 95, the development was selected as the site for the City of Palm Coast’s new 
city hall and is adjacent to the local hospital, county airport and high school. At build-out, the development is expected to 
include 2,950 residential units, 2.2 million square feet of commercial space, and 1.4 million square feet of office space. 
Actual build-out will depend on future market conditions. All major land use approvals for the project have been received. 
Platting, infrastructure construction and marketing efforts continue. 
 
Palm Coast Park is a mixed-use, planned development located in northwest Palm Coast along U.S. Highway 1, one mile 
south of its intersection with Interstate 95, with major rail line access. At build-out, the project is expected to include 3,600 
residential units, 1.6 million square feet of commercial space, 800,000 square feet of office space and 800,000 square 
feet of industrial use. Actual build-out will depend on future market conditions. In December 2004, we received 
development order approval for the project. Platting and infrastructure design are proceeding. 
 
Ormond Crossings is a mixed-use, planned development located along Interstate 95, at its interchange with U.S. 
Highway 1, in northwest Ormond Beach. This property has three miles of frontage on the east and west sides of 
Interstate 95, is adjacent to the local airport and has access to a major railroad line. In 2004, the property was annexed 
into the City of Ormond Beach and land-use approvals are in progress. Once approvals are received, the project build-out 
mix can be estimated. 
 
In addition to the major development projects, land inventories in Florida include 5,200 acres of property. Several smaller 
development projects are under way to plat these properties, and modify and enhance existing zonings. 
 
Property sale prices may vary depending on location; parcel size; whether parcels are sold as raw land, partially 
developed land or individually developed lots; degree and status of entitlement; and whether the land is ultimately 
purchased for residential, commercial or other form of development.  
 
ALLETE Properties occasionally provides seller financing, and outstanding finance receivables were $9.7 million at 
December 31, 2004, with maturities ranging up to ten years. Outstanding finance receivables accrue interest at market-
based rates. 
 
Summary of Development Projects  Total  Residential Commercial Office Industrial 
At December 31, 2004 Ownership Acres (a) Units (b) Sq. Ft. (b) Sq. Ft. (b)  Sq. Ft. (b) 
    
Town Center at Palm Coast 80% 1,550 2,950 2,175,000 1,350,000 – 
Palm Coast Park 100% 4,705 3,600 1,600,000 800,000 800,000 
Ormond Crossings (c) 100% 5,850 – – – – 
 
  12,105 6,550 3,775,000 2,150,000 800,000 
 
(a) Acreage amounts are approximate and shown on a gross basis, including wetlands and minority interest. Acreage amounts may 

vary due to platting or surveying activity. Wetland amounts vary by property and are often not formally determined prior to sale. 
(b) Estimated and includes minority interest. The actual property breakdown at full build-out may be different than the estimates. 
(c) Units and square footage have not been determined. 
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Summary of Other Land Inventories    
At December 31, 2004 Ownership Total Mixed Use Residential Commercial Agricultural 

Acres (a) 
 
Palm Coast Holdings 80% 3,099 2,040 513 291 255 
Lehigh 80% 1,082 840 140 93 9 
Cape Coral 100% 104 – 1 103 – 
Other 100% 908 – – – 908 
 
  5,193 2,880 654 487 1,172 
 
(a) Acreage amounts are approximate and shown on a gross basis, including wetlands and minority interest. Acreage amounts may 

vary due to platting or surveying activity. Wetland amounts vary by property and are often not formally determined prior to sale. The 
actual property breakdown at full build-out may be different than the estimates. 

 
Regulation 
 
A substantial portion of our development properties in Florida is subject to federal, state and local regulations, and 
restrictions that may impose significant costs or limitations on our ability to develop the properties. Much of our property is 
vacant land and some is located in areas where development may affect the natural habitats of various protected wildlife 
species or in sensitive environmental areas such as wetlands. 
 
Development of real property in Florida entails an extensive approval process involving overlapping regulatory 
jurisdictions. Real estate projects must generally comply with the provisions of the Local Government Comprehensive 
Planning and Land Development Regulation Act (Growth Management Act). In addition, development projects that exceed 
certain specified regulatory thresholds require approval of a comprehensive Development of Regional Impact (DRI) 
application. The Growth Management Act requires counties and cities to adopt comprehensive plans guiding and 
controlling future real property development in their respective jurisdictions. The DRI review process includes an 
evaluation of a project’s impact on the environment, infrastructure and government services, and requires the involvement 
of numerous state and local environmental, zoning and community development agencies. Compliance with the Growth 
Management Act and the DRI process is usually lengthy and costly. 
 
Competition 
 
The real estate industry is very competitive. Our properties are located in Florida, which continues to attract competitive 
real estate operations at many different levels in the land development pipeline. Competitors include local and out of state 
institutional investors, real estate investment trusts and real estate operators, among others. These competitors, both 
public and private alike, compete with us in seeking real estate for acquisition, resources for development and sales to 
prospective buyers. Consequently, competitive market conditions may influence the timing and profitability of our real 
estate transactions. 
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Other 
 
Our Other segment consists of our telecommunications business, investments in emerging technologies related to the 
electric utility industry, earnings on cash, and general corporate charges and interest not specifically related to any one 
business segment. General corporate charges include employee salaries and benefits, as well as legal and other outside 
service fees. 
 
Enventis Telecom is an integrated data services provider offering fiber optic-based communication and advanced data 
services to businesses and communities in the Upper Midwest. Enventis Telecom provides converged IP (or Internet 
Protocol) services that allow all communications (voice, video and data) to use the same fiber optic-based delivery 
technology. Enventis Telecom owns or has rights to approximately 1,600 route miles of fiber optic cable. These route 
miles contain multiple fibers that total approximately 47,000 fiber miles. We also have extensive local fiber optic rings that 
directly connect Enventis Telecom network with its larger clients (health care, government, education, etc.). Other local 
fiber rings connect Enventis Telecom’s network to the local telephone company’s central offices, from which locations 
Enventis Telecom can utilize the telephone company’s connections to access our smaller clients. Enventis Telecom also 
owns optronic and data switching equipment that is used to “light up” the fiber optic cable. We serve customers from 
facilities that are primarily leased from third parties. Enventis Telecom has offices in Duluth, Rochester, Plymouth and 
Bloomington, Minnesota. Enventis Telecom has a strong business relationship with Cisco Systems, Inc. and is recognized 
by Cisco Systems as a Gold Partner. Enventis Telecom is a regional leader in deploying leading edge technologies such 
as Voice over Internet (VoIP) technology and IP Call Centers. 
 
Emerging Technology Portfolio. As part of our emerging technology portfolio, we have several minority investments in 
venture capital funds and direct investments in privately-held, start-up companies. Since 1985, we have invested in start-
up companies, which are developing technologies that may be utilized by the electric utility industry. We are committed to 
invest an additional $4.5 million at various times through 2007 and do not have plans to make any additional investments. 
The investments were first made through emerging technology funds (Funds) initiated by other electric utilities and us. We 
have also made investments directly in privately-held companies.  
 
Companies in the Funds’ portfolios may complete IPOs, and the Funds may, in some instances, distribute publicly 
tradable shares to us. Some restrictions on sales may apply, including but not limited to underwriter lock-up periods that 
typically extend for 180 days following an IPO. As companies included in our emerging technology portfolio are sold, we 
will recognize a gain or loss. 
 
We account for our investment in venture capital funds under the equity method and account for our direct investment in 
privately-held companies under the cost method. The total carrying value of our emerging technology portfolio was 
$13.6 million at December 31, 2004, down $23.9 million from December 31, 2003. The decline was primarily due to a 
change to the equity method of accounting for the venture capital funds (see Note 14) and impairments related to 
investments in privately-held companies. Our policy is to review these investments quarterly for impairment by assessing 
such factors as continued commercial viability of products, cash flow and earnings. Any impairment would reduce the 
carrying value of the investment. In 2004, we recorded $6.5 million ($4.1 million after tax) of impairment losses primarily 
related to direct investments in certain privately-held, start-up companies whose future business prospects have 
diminished significantly. Recent developments at these companies indicated that future commercial viability is unlikely, as 
is new financing necessary to continue development.  
 
 
Environmental Matters 
  
Our businesses are subject to regulation by various federal, state and local authorities concerning environmental matters. 
We consider our businesses to be in substantial compliance with those environmental regulations currently applicable to 
their operations and believe all necessary permits to conduct such operations have been obtained. We anticipate that 
potential expenditures for environmental matters will be material in the future, due to stricter environmental requirements 
through legislation and/or rulemakings that are expected to require significant capital investments. We are unable to 
predict if and when any such stricter environmental requirements will be imposed and the impact they will have on the 
Company. We review environmental matters on a quarterly basis. Accruals for environmental matters are recorded when 
it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated, based on 
current law and existing technologies. These accruals are adjusted periodically as assessment and remediation efforts 
progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Accruals for environmental liabilities are 
included in the balance sheet at undiscounted amounts and exclude claims for recoveries from insurance or other third 
parties. Costs related to environmental contamination treatment and cleanup are charged to expense unless recoverable 
in rates from customers. 
 
Air. Clean Air Act. Minnesota Power’s generating facilities mainly burn low-sulfur western sub-bituminous coal and the 
Square Butte generating facility, located in North Dakota, burns lignite coal. All of these facilities are equipped with 
pollution control equipment such as scrubbers, baghouses or electrostatic precipitators. The federal Clean Air Act 
Amendments of 1990 (Clean Air Act) created emission allowances for sulfur dioxide. Each allowance is an authorization 
to emit one ton of sulfur dioxide, and each utility must have sufficient allowances to cover its annual emissions. Emission 
requirements are currently being met by all of Minnesota Power’s generating facilities. Most Minnesota Power facilities 
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have surplus sulfur dioxide emission allowances. Taconite Harbor is meeting its sulfur dioxide emission allowance 
requirements by annually purchasing allowances, since it receives no allowance allocation. The Square Butte generating 
facility is meeting its sulfur dioxide emission allowance requirements through increased use of existing scrubbers. 
 
In accordance with the Clean Air Act, the EPA has established nitrogen oxide limitations for electric generating units. To 
meet nitrogen oxide limitations, Minnesota Power installed advanced low-emission burner technology and associated 
control equipment to operate the Boswell and Laskin facilities at or below the compliance emission limits. Nitrogen oxide 
limitations at Taconite Harbor and Square Butte are being met by combustion tuning.  
 
Mercury Emissions. In December 2000, the EPA announced its decision to regulate mercury emissions from coal and oil-
fired power plants under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act. Section 112 will require all such power plants in the United 
States to adhere to the EPA maximum achievable control technology standards for mercury. The EPA issued a proposed 
rule in December 2003. Final regulations defining control requirements are planned for March 2005. The proposed rule 
offers two different types of regulation: (1) imposition of an annual average mercury emission limitation applied at each 
unit or facility average under Section 112; and (2) imposition of a cap and trade program under Section 111, where an 
allocation of mercury credits would be assigned and utilities would need to provide for a combination of emission 
reductions and credit purchases to demonstrate compliance. The EPA has solicited comments about these approaches. 
In either approach, continuous monitoring of mercury stack emissions is required to be in service around 2008. Minnesota 
Power’s preliminary estimates suggest that all of our affected facilities can be outfitted with continuous mercury emission 
monitors for under $2 million. Our unit mercury emissions tests indicate that all of our units are expected to comply with 
the proposed unit specific target emission rate without significant additional cost. Cost estimates about mercury cap and 
trade program impacts are premature at this time. The EPA is still reviewing comments about this proposed alternative 
program and associated final mercury credit allocations to units that have not yet been defined. 
 
New Source Review Rules. In December 2002, the EPA issued changes to the existing New Source Review rules. These 
rules changed the procedures for MPCA review of projects at our electric generating facilities. In October 2003, the EPA 
announced changes clarifying the application of certain sections of the New Source Review rules. These changes are not 
expected to have a material impact on Minnesota Power. In December 2003, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of 
Columbia Circuit stayed the implementation of the October 2003 rule pending their further review, which is expected in 
2006. Subsequently, the EPA has announced they are accepting further public comments on the proposed New Source 
Review rule revisions.  
 
The EPA is pursuing an industry-wide investigation assessing compliance with the New Source Review and the New 
Source Performance Standards (emissions standards that apply to new and changed units) of the Clean Air Act at electric 
generating stations. There is also ongoing litigation involving the EPA and other electric utilities for alleged violations of 
these rules. It is expected that the outcome of some of the cases could provide the utility industry direction on this topic. 
We are unable to predict what actions, if any, may be required.  
 
In June 2002, Minnkota Power, the operator of Square Butte, received a Notice of Violation from the EPA regarding 
alleged New Source Review violations at the M.R. Young Station, which includes the Square Butte generating unit. The 
EPA claims certain capital projects completed by Minnkota Power should have been reviewed pursuant to the New 
Source Review regulations, potentially resulting in new air permit operating conditions. Discussions with the EPA are 
ongoing and we are unable to predict the outcome or cost impacts. If Square Butte is required to make significant capital 
expenditures to comply with EPA requirements, we expect such capital expenditures to be debt financed. Our future cost 
of purchased power would include our pro rata share of this additional debt service. (See Note 11.) 
 
Water. The Federal Water Pollution Control Act requires National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permits to be obtained from the EPA (or, when delegated, from individual state pollution control agencies) for any 
wastewater discharged into navigable waters. Minnesota Power has obtained all necessary NPDES permits, including 
NPDES storm water permits for applicable facilities, to conduct its electric operations. 
 
FERC Licenses. Minnesota Power holds FERC licenses authorizing the ownership and operation of seven hydroelectric 
generating projects with a total generating capacity of about 115 MW. In June 1996, Minnesota Power filed in the U.S. 
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit a petition for review of the license as issued by the FERC for 
Minnesota Power’s St. Louis River Hydro Project. Separate petitions for review were also filed by the U.S. Department of 
the Interior and the Fond du Lac Band of Lake Superior Chippewa (Fond du Lac Band), two intervenors in the licensing 
proceedings. Beginning in 1996, and most recently in February 2005, Minnesota Power filed requests with the FERC for 
extensions of time to comply with certain plans and studies required by the license that might conflict with settlement 
discussions. The Fond du Lac Band, the U.S. Department of the Interior and Minnesota Power have reached a settlement 
agreement for the St. Louis River Hydro Project. This settlement must be approved by the FERC. Upon approval, the 
FERC would then amend the project license to reflect the conditions of the settlement agreement. Minnesota Power 
submitted an application for amendment of the FERC license, based upon the terms and conditions of the settlement 
agreement in November 2004. In addition to a one-time retroactive payment of approximately $600,000, the Company 
estimates that it will spend $100,000 to $250,000 per year for the use of tribal lands, to fund fishery and natural resource 
enhancements by the Fond du Lac Band and the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources, and to conduct a mercury 
study under the terms of the settlement. 
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Clean Water Act – Aquatic Organisms. In July 2004, the EPA issued Section 316(b) Phase II Rule of the Clean Water Act 
to ensure that the location, design, construction and capacity of cooling water intake structures at electric generating 
facilities reflect the best technology available to protect aquatic organisms from being killed or injured by impingement 
(being pinned against screens or other parts of a cooling water intake structure) or entrainment (being drawn into cooling 
water systems and subjected to thermal, physical or chemical stresses). It requires electric generating facilities that 
withdraw more than 50 million gallons of cooling water per day and that use 25% of withdrawn water for cooling purposes 
only to reduce fish impingement by 80% to 95% and fish entrainment by 60% to 90%. The new rule for fish impingement 
requirements apply to the Boswell, Laskin, Hibbard and Square Butte generating facilities. The impingement and 
entrainment requirements apply to Taconite Harbor because it is located on Lake Superior. The rule requires biological 
studies and engineering analyses to be performed within the 2005 to 2008 time frame. The estimated total cost of these 
studies for our facilities is expected to be in the range of $0.5 million to $1.0 million. If modifications and/or installation of 
intake structure technology (wedge-wire screens, fine mesh traveling screens, etc.) are needed, these capital costs are 
not expected to be incurred until 2009 to 2011. Due to the flexibility of compliance options and litigation activities related to 
the new rule, it is not possible to estimate the capital expenditures that may be required. 
 
Solid and Hazardous Waste. The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 regulates the management and 
disposal of solid wastes and hazardous wastes. As a result of this legislation, the EPA has promulgated various 
hazardous waste rules. Minnesota Power is required to notify the EPA of hazardous waste activity and routinely submits 
the necessary annual reports to the EPA. The MPCA and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) are 
responsible for administering solid and hazardous waste rules on the state level with oversight by the EPA. 
 
PCB Inventories. In response to the EPA Region V’s request for utilities to participate in the Great Lakes Initiative by 
voluntarily removing remaining polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) inventories, Minnesota Power has scheduled replacement 
of PCB capacitor banks and PCB-contaminated oil by the end of 2005. The total cost is expected to be about $2 million, of 
which $1.5 million was spent through December 31, 2004. 
 
SWL&P Manufactured Gas Plant. In May 2001, SWL&P received notice from the WDNR that the City of Superior had 
found soil contamination on property adjoining a former Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) site owned and operated by 
SWL&P’s predecessors from 1889 to 1904. The WDNR requested SWL&P to initiate an environmental investigation. The 
WDNR also issued SWL&P a Responsible Party letter in February 2002. The environmental investigation is under way. In 
February 2003, SWL&P submitted a Phase II environmental site investigation report to the WDNR. This report identified 
some MGP-like chemicals that were found in the soil near the former plant site. During March and April 2003, sediment 
samples were taken from nearby Superior Bay. The report on the results of this sampling was completed and sent to the 
WDNR during the first quarter of 2004. The next phase of the investigation is to determine any impact to soil or ground 
water between the former MGP site and Superior Bay. The site work for this phase of the investigation was performed 
during October 2004, and the final report is expected to be sent to the WDNR during the first quarter of 2005. It is 
anticipated that additional site investigation will be needed during 2005. Although it is not possible to quantify the potential 
clean-up cost until the investigation is completed, a $0.5 million liability was recorded in December 2003 to address the 
known areas of contamination. We have recorded a corresponding dollar amount as a regulatory asset to offset this 
liability. The PSCW has approved SWL&P’s deferral of these MGP environmental investigation and potential clean-up 
costs for future recovery in rates, subject to a regulatory prudency review. ALLETE maintains pollution liability insurance 
coverage that includes coverage for SWL&P. A claim has been filed with respect to this matter. The insurance carrier has 
issued a reservation of rights letter and we continue to work with the insurer to determine the availability of insurance 
coverage. 
 
 
Employees 
 
At December 31, 2004, ALLETE had 1,500 employees, of which 1,400 were full-time. 
 
Minnesota Power, SWL&P and Enventis Telecom have 621 employees who are members of the International 
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local 31. A two-year labor agreement between Minnesota Power and 
Local 31, which includes Enventis Telecom, is in effect through January 31, 2006, as is the agreement with SWL&P. The 
agreements provided wage increases of 3.25% in each of the two contract years.  
 
BNI Coal has 95 employees who are members of the IBEW Local 1593. BNI Coal and Local 1593 have a labor 
agreement, which expires on March 31, 2005. Negotiations are under way for a new contract. 
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Executive Officers of the Registrant 
 
Executive Officers Initial Effective Date 
 
Donald J. Shippar, Age 55 
 President and Chief Executive Officer – ALLETE January 21, 2004 
 Executive Vice President – ALLETE and President – Minnesota Power May 13, 2003 
 President and Chief Operating Officer – Minnesota Power January 1, 2002 
 
Deborah A. Amberg, Age 39 
 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary March 8, 2004 
 
Warren L. Candy, Age 55 
 Senior Vice President – Utility Operations February 1, 2004 
 
Laura A. Holquist, Age 43 
 President – ALLETE Properties September 6, 2001 
 
David J. McMillan, Age 43 
 Senior Vice President – Marketing and Public Affairs October 2, 2003 
 
Mark A. Schober, Age 49 
 Senior Vice President and Controller February 1, 2004 
 Vice President and Controller April 18, 2001 
 Controller March 1, 1993 
 
Donald W. Stellmaker, Age 47 
 Treasurer July 24, 2004 
 
Timothy J. Thorp, Age 50 
 Vice President – Investor Relations July 1, 2004 
 Vice President – Investor Relations and Corporate Communications November 16, 2001 
 
James K. Vizanko, Age 51 
 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  July 24, 2004 
 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer January 21, 2004 
 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer August 28, 2001 
 Vice President and Treasurer April 18, 2001 
 Treasurer March 1, 1993 
 
Claudia Scott Welty, Age 52 
 Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer  February 1, 2004 
 
All of the executive officers have been employed by us for more than five years in executive or management positions. 
Prior to election to the positions shown above, the following executives held other positions with the Company during the 
past five years. 
 

Mr. Shippar was chief operating officer of Minnesota Power. 
Ms. Amberg was a senior attorney. 
Mr. Candy was a vice president of Minnesota Power. 
Ms. Holquist was senior vice president of MP Real Estate Holdings, Inc., and vice president and chief financial officer 

of Lehigh Acquisition Corporation. 
Mr. McMillan was senior vice president strategic accounts and governmental affairs, and  

a vice president of Minnesota Power. 
Mr. Stellmaker was director of financial planning, and manager of corporate finance, planning and budgets. 
Mr. Thorp was director of investor relations. 
Ms. Welty was vice president strategy and technology development. 

 
There are no family relationships between any of the executive officers. All officers and directors are elected or appointed 
annually. 
 
The present term of office of the executive officers listed above extends to the first meeting of our Board of Directors after 
the next annual meeting of shareholders. Both meetings are scheduled for May 10, 2005. 
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Item 2. Properties 
 
Properties are included in the discussion of our business in Item 1 and are incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 
 
Material legal and regulatory proceedings are included in the discussion of our business in Item 1 and are incorporated by 
reference herein. 
 
We are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. Also in the normal course of business, we are 
involved in tax, regulatory and other governmental audits, inspections, investigations and other proceedings that involve 
state and federal taxes, safety, compliance with regulations, rate base and cost of service issues, among other things. 
While the resolution of such matters could have a material effect on earnings and cash flows in the year of resolution, 
none of these matters are expected to change materially our present liquidity position, nor have a material adverse effect 
on our financial condition. 
 
 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004. 
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Part II 
 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and  
 Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 
 
We have paid dividends without interruption on our common stock since 1948. A quarterly dividend of $0.30 per share on 
our common stock will be paid on March 1, 2005 to the holders of record on February 15, 2005. Our common stock is 
listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ALE and our CUSIP number is 018522300 (formerly 
018522102). Dividends paid per share, and the high and low prices for our common stock for the periods indicated as 
reported by the New York Stock Exchange on its NYSEnet website, are in the accompanying chart. 
 
The amount and timing of dividends payable on our common stock are within the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. 
In 2004, we paid out 77% of our per share earnings in dividends.  
 
Our Articles of Incorporation, and Mortgage and Deed of Trust contain provisions, which under certain circumstances 
would restrict the payment of common stock dividends. As of December 31, 2004, no retained earnings were restricted as 
a result of these provisions. At February 1, 2005, there were approximately 33,000 common stock shareholders of record.  
 

 2004 2003 
 
  Price Range (a) Dividends Price Range (a) Dividends 
 Quarter High Low Paid (b) High Low Paid (b) 
 
 First $35.52 $30.00 $0.8475 $24.05 $18.75 $0.8475 
 Second 36.71 31.62 0.8475 26.70 20.50 0.8475 
 Third     27.86 25.45 0.8475 
  July 1 – Sept. 20 33.70 26.02 0.8475 
  Sept. 21 – Sept. 30 32.54 30.76  – 
 Fourth 37.46 32.20 0.3000 31.00 27.05 0.8475 
 
 Annual Total   $2.8425   $3.39 
 
(a)  Price ranges prior to September 21, 2004 are not comparable due to the spin-off of Automotive Services on September 20, 2004 

(see Note 3) and do not reflect the one-for-three reverse stock split (see Note 9). 
(b) Adjusted for the September 20, 2004 one-for-three reverse stock split. 
 
 
    Total Number Maximum 
    of Shares Number of 
    Purchased as Shares that 
    Part of May Yet Be 
  Total  Publicly Purchased 
ALLETE Common Stock Repurchases Number of Average Announced  Under the 
For the Quarter Ended Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or 
December 31, 2004  Purchased (a) Per Share Programs Programs 
 
For the Calendar Month  
 October 80,600 $33.65 – – 
 November 669,578 $35.05 – – 
 December 262,600 $35.93 – – 
 
  1,012,778 $35.16 – – 
 
(a) Reflected shares of ALLETE common stock repurchased pursuant to the ALLETE Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan in 

connection with the spin-off of ADESA. (See Note 17.) 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 
 
Operating results of our Water Services businesses, our Automotive Services business, and our retail stores are included 
in discontinued operations, and accordingly, amounts have been adjusted for all periods presented. (See Note 3.) 
Common share and per share amounts have also been adjusted for all periods to reflect our September 20, 2004 one-for-
three common stock reverse split.  
 
 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Millions 
 
Balance Sheet 
 
Assets 
 Current Assets $ 366.1  $ 223.3  $ 190.7  $ 320.4  $ 266.2 
 Discontinued Operations – Current  2.0   476.7   471.4   575.1   464.8 
 Property, Plant and Equipment  883.1   919.3   880.5   877.3   792.4 
 Investments  124.5   175.7   170.9   155.4   116.5 
 Other Assets  52.8   59.0   62.0   67.6   60.1 
 Discontinued Operations – Other  2.9   1,247.3   1,371.7   1,286.7   1,214.0 
 
   $ 1,431.4  $ 3,101.3  $ 3,147.2  $ 3,282.5  $ 2,914.0 
 
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 
 Current Liabilities $ 96.7  $ 185.5  $ 438.7  $ 343.7  $ 430.3 
 Discontinued Operations – Current  12.0   340.7   299.5   360.8   276.7 
 Long-Term Debt  390.2   514.7   567.7   836.0   720.5 
 Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities   –   –  75.0   75.0   75.0 
 Other Liabilities  302.0   305.4   296.4   274.8   261.4 
 Discontinued Operations   –  294.8   237.5   248.4   249.3 
 Shareholder’s Equity  630.5   1,460.2   1,232.4   1,143.8   900.8 
 
   $ 1,431.4  $ 3,101.3  $ 3,147.2  $ 3,282.5  $ 2,914.0 
 
Income Statement 
 
Operating Revenue 
 Regulated Utility $ 555.0  $ 510.0  $ 497.9  $ 535.0  $ 528.0 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations  106.8   106.6   84.7   50.4   49.0 
 Real Estate  41.9   42.6   33.6   61.1   52.5 
 Other  47.7   33.1   26.8   23.7   2.4  
 
    751.4   692.3   643.0   670.2   631.9 
 
Operating Expenses 
 Fuel and Purchased Power  287.9   252.5   234.8   230.7   229.0
 Operating and Maintenance  285.1   263.1   250.9   254.1   227.3 
 Depreciation  49.7   51.2   48.9   46.2   46.7 
 Taxes Other than Income  28.9   29.4   30.2   24.9   33.3 
 
  Total Operating Expenses  651.6   596.2   564.8   555.9   536.3 
 
Operating Income from Continuing Operations  99.8   96.1   78.2   114.3   95.6 
 
Other Income (Expense) 
 Interest Expense  (31.8)  (50.6)  (49.3)  (47.7)  (43.8) 
 Other  (12.1)  2.5   8.1   16.6   29.2 
 Income from Investment in ACE Limited   –   –   –   –  48.0 
 
  Total Other Income (Expense)  (43.9)  (48.1)  (41.2)  (31.1)  33.4 
 
Income from Continuing Operations 
 Before Income Taxes  55.9   48.0   37.0   83.2   129.0 
 
Income Tax Expense  16.8   18.2   12.3   29.1   42.0 
 
Income from Continuing Operations Before 
 Change in Accounting Principle  39.1   29.8   24.7   54.1   87.0 
 
Income from Discontinued Operations – Net of Tax  73.1   206.6   112.5   84.6   61.6 
 
Change in Accounting Principle – Net of Tax (a)  (7.8)   –   –   –   – 
 
Net Income  104.4   236.4   137.2   138.7   148.6 
 
Preferred Dividends   –   –   –   –  0.9 
 
Earnings Available for Common Stock  104.4   236.4   137.2   138.7   147.7 
 
Common Stock Dividends  79.7   93.2   89.2   81.8   74.5 
 
Retained in Business $ 24.7  $ 143.2  $ 48.0  $ 56.9  $ 73.2 
 
(a)  See Note 14. 
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 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
 
Shares Outstanding – Million 
 Year-End 29.7 29.1 28.5 28.0 24.9 
 Average (a) 
  Basic 28.3 27.6 27.0 25.3 23.3 
  Diluted 28.4 27.8 27.2 25.5 23.4 
 
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
 Continuing Operations $1.37 (b) $1.08 $0.91 (d) $2.12 (e) $3.69 (f) 
 Discontinued Operations 2.57 7.44 (c) 4.13 3.32 2.63 
 Change in Accounting Principle (0.27)  –  –  –  – 
 
   $3.67 $8.52 $5.04 $5.44 $6.32 
 
Return on Common Equity 8.3% 17.7% 11.4% 13.3% 17.1% 
 
Common Equity Ratio 61.7% 64.4% 51.7% 49.9% 46.3% 
 
Dividends Paid Per Share $2.8425 $3.39 $3.30 $3.21 $3.21 
 
Dividend Payout 77% 40% 66% 59% 51% 
 
Book Value Per Share at Year-End $21.23 $50.18 $43.24 $40.85 $36.18 
 
Employees 1,515 13,115 14,181 13,763 12,633 
 
Net Income (Loss) 
 Regulated Utility $ 42.8 $ 37.9 $ 50.4 $ 49.4 $ 43.4 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations  (0.3)  3.7  (8.7) (d)  0.7  1.3 
 Real Estate  14.7  14.1  11.2  20.8 (e)  12.9 
 Other  (18.1) (b)  (25.9)  (28.2)  (16.8)  29.4 (f) 
 
 Continuing Operations  39.1  29.8  24.7  54.1  87.0 
 Discontinued Operations  73.1  206.6 (c)   112.5  84.6  61.6 
 Change in Accounting Principle  (7.8)   –   –   –   – 
 
   $ 104.4 $ 236.4 $ 137.2 $ 138.7 $ 148.6 
 
Average Electric Customers – Thousands 150.1 148.2 146.8 145.7 144.0 
 
Electric Sales – Millions of MWh 
 Regulated Utility 11.2 11.1 11.1 10.9 11.7 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 1.5 1.5 1.2 0.2 0.2 
 Company Use and Losses 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 
 
   13.6 13.3 13.0 11.8 12.5 
 
Power Supply – Millions of MWh 
 Regulated Utility 
  Steam Generation 6.5 7.1 7.2 6.9 6.4 
  Hydro Generation 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 
  Long-Term Purchases – Square Butte 2.0 2.3 2.3 1.9 2.3 
  Purchased Power 3.0 1.9 1.8 2.3 3.1 
 
   12.0 11.7 11.8 11.6 12.3 
 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 
  Steam 1.2 1.2 0.8  –  – 
  Hydro 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 
  Purchased Power 0.3 0.3 0.3  –  – 
 
   1.6 1.6 1.2 0.2 0.2 
 
   13.6 13.3 13.0 11.8 12.5 
 
Coal Sold – Millions of Tons 4.2 4.3 4.6 4.1 4.4 
 
Capital Expenditures – Millions 
 Continuing Operations $63.0 $ 73.6 $ 86.6 $ 59.9 $ 64.1 
 Discontinued Operations 16.2  62.7  114.6  89.3  104.6 
 
   $79.2 $136.3 $ 201.2 $149.2 $168.7 
 
(a) Excludes unallocated ESOP shares. 
(b) Included a $10.9 million, or $0.38 per share, after-tax debt prepayment cost incurred as part of ALLETE’s financial restructuring in 

preparation for the spin-off of ADESA and an $11.5 million, or $0.41 per share, gain on the sale of ADESA shares related to 
ALLETE’s Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan. 

(c) Included a $71.6 million, or $2.59 per share, gain on the sale of the Water Services businesses. 
(d) Included a $5.5 million, or $0.20 per share, charge related to the indefinite delay of a generation project in Superior, Wisconsin. 
(e) Included an $11.1 million, or $0.45 per share, gain on the sale of the Company’s largest single real estate transaction ever. 
(f) Included a $30.4 million, or $1.32 per share, gain on the sale of 4.7 million shares of ACE Limited. 



  

Page 23 ALLETE 2004 Form 10-K 

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
 
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes to those 
statements and the other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report. In addition to historical information, the 
following discussion and other parts of this report contain forward-looking information that involves risks and uncertainties. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
ALLETE went through a significant transformation in 2004, and at the same time, performed exceptionally well. We are 
stronger as a result, and from what we have accomplished, we are poised for substantial earnings growth in 2005, 
excluding an anticipated one-time charge related to the Kendall County agreement. (See – Outlook.) Two significant 
strategic objectives were achieved—the spin-off of our Automotive Services business and the sale of our Water Services 
businesses. 
 
On September 20, 2004, we spun off our Automotive Services business by distributing to ALLETE shareholders all of 
ALLETE’s shares of ADESA common stock. In June 2004, our Automotive Services business, doing business as ADESA, 
Inc. (NYSE: KAR), completed an IPO through the issuance and sale of 6.3 million shares of its common stock. This 
represented 6.6% of ADESA’s common stock outstanding. ALLETE owned the remaining 93.4% of ADESA until the spin-
off was completed. (See Note 3.) ADESA’s SEC filings are available through the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. 
 
In mid-2004, we completed the sales of our North Carolina water and wastewater assets, and the remaining 72 water and 
wastewater systems in Florida. In early 2005, we sold our wastewater services business in Georgia. The net cash 
proceeds from the sale of all water and wastewater assets in 2003 and 2004, after transaction costs, retirement of most 
Florida Water debt and payment of income taxes, were approximately $300 million.  
 
Using a combination of internally generated funds, proceeds from the sale of our Water Services assets and proceeds 
received from ADESA, we repaid $183.1 million in outstanding debt in 2004 ($356.5 million of debt and $75 million of 
mandatorily redeemable preferred securities in 2003), which significantly strengthened our balance sheet and reduced 
interest expense in 2004. Our debt to total capital ratio was 38% at December 31, 2004. 
 
Income from continuing operations represents the activities that are part of ALLETE subsequent to the spin-off of ADESA 
and the sale of our Water Services businesses. Regulated Utility includes retail and wholesale rate-regulated electric, 
water and gas services in northeastern Minnesota and northwestern Wisconsin under the jurisdiction of state and federal 
regulatory authorities. Nonregulated Energy Operations includes nonregulated generation (non-rate base generation 
sold at market-based rates to the wholesale market) consisting primarily of generation from Taconite Harbor in northern 
Minnesota and generation secured through the Kendall County power purchase agreement. Nonregulated Energy 
Operations also includes our coal mining activities in North Dakota. Real Estate includes our Florida real estate 
operations. Other includes our telecommunications activities, investments in emerging technologies, earnings on cash, 
and general corporate charges and interest not specifically related to any one business segment. General corporate 
charges include employee salaries and benefits, as well as legal and other outside service fees.  
 
Income from continuing operations before the change in accounting principle was $39.1 million, or $1.37 per diluted 
share, for 2004 ($29.8 million, or $1.08 per diluted share, for 2003; $24.7 million, or $0.91 per diluted share, for 2002). 
Strong earnings in 2004 were attributed to increased sales to our industrial customers, as a result of their higher 
production levels, and a significant reduction in interest expense due to lower debt balances. The following significant 
factors impact the comparisons between years: 
 

• Debt Prepayment Cost. In 2004, we incurred a $10.9 million, or $0.38 per share, after-tax debt prepayment cost 
as part of ALLETE’s financial restructuring in preparation for the spin-off of ADESA. 

• Gain on ADESA Shares. In 2004, we recognized an $11.5 million, or $0.41 per share, gain on the sale of 
ADESA shares related to our ESOP. (See Note 17.) 

• Charge. In 2002, Nonregulated Energy Operations incurred a $5.5 million, or $0.20 per share, after-tax charge 
related to the indefinite delay of a generation project in Superior, Wisconsin.  

 
In total, net income and diluted earnings per share for 2004 decreased 56% and 57%, respectively, from 2003. The 
decrease was primarily attributable to reduced earnings from discontinued operations, which included both Water 
Services and Automotive Services. The decrease also reflected a $7.8 million non-cash after-tax charge for a change in 
accounting principle related to investments in our emerging technology portfolio. (See Note 14.) Gains recognized in 2003 
on the sale of substantially all of our water and wastewater systems in Florida contributed to higher earnings in 2003, as 
did a full year of Automotive Services operations. 
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 2004 2003 2002 

Millions Except Per Share Amounts 
 
Operating Revenue  
 Regulated Utility $555.0 $510.0  $497.9 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 106.8 106.6  84.7 
 Real Estate 41.9 42.6  33.6 
 Other 47.7 33.1  26.8 
 
   $751.4 $692.3  $643.0 
 
Operating Expenses 
 Regulated Utility $468.2 $430.2  $403.7 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 107.6 100.8  100.6 
 Real Estate 16.5 18.2  15.5 
 Other 59.3 47.0  45.0 
 
   $651.6 $596.2  $564.8 
 
Interest Expense 
 Regulated Utility $18.5 $20.4  $20.6 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 1.5 1.8  0.3 
 Real Estate 0.3 0.2   – 
 Other 11.5 28.2  28.4 
 
   $31.8 $50.6  $49.3 
  
Other Income (Expense) 
 Regulated Utility $ 0.1 $2.9 $7.7 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations  0.6 1.9 0.6 
 Real Estate   –  –  – 
 Other  (12.8) (2.3) (0.2) 
 
   $(12.1) $2.5 $8.1 
 
Net Income (Loss) 
 Regulated Utility $ 42.8 $ 37.9 $ 50.4 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations  (0.3)  3.7  (8.7) 
 Real Estate  14.7  14.1  11.2 
 Other  (18.1)  (25.9)  (28.2) 
 
 Continuing Operations  39.1  29.8  24.7 
 Discontinued Operations  73.1  206.6  112.5 
 Change in Accounting Principle  (7.8)   –   – 
 
   $104.4 $ 236.4 $137.2 
 
Diluted Average Shares of Common Stock 28.4 27.8  27.2 
 
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock 
 Continuing Operations $1.37 $1.08 $0.91 
 Discontinued Operations 2.57 7.44 4.13 
 Change in Accounting Principle (0.27)  –  – 
 
  $3.67 $8.52 $5.04 
 
Return on Common Equity 8.3% 17.7% 11.4% 
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 2004 2003 2002 

Millions  
 
Kilowatthours Sold 
 Regulated Utility 
  Retail and Municipals 
   Residential 1,053 1,065 1,044 
   Commercial 1,282 1,286 1,257 
   Industrial 7,071 6,558 6,946 
   Municipals 823 842 820 
   Other 79 79 78 
 
    10,308 9,830 10,145 
  Other Power Suppliers 918 1,314 987 
 
    11,226 11,144 11,132 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations 1,496 1,462 1,149 
 
    12,722 12,606 12,281 
 
 
Net Income 
 
Regulated Utility contributed net income of $42.8 million in 2004 ($37.9 million in 2003; $50.4 million in 2002). The 13% 
increase in 2004 net income from 2003 reflected an 8% increase in kilowatthour sales to our industrial customers. Higher 
expenses for pension, and increased costs associated with maintenance outages at Company generating facilities and a 
scheduled outage at the Square Butte generating facility, were partially offset by lower depreciation and interest expense. 
Overall, regulated utility kilowatthour sales in 2004 were similar to 2003 and 2002. In 2004, a 5% increase in sales to retail 
and municipal customers reduced the energy available for sale to other power suppliers. In addition, Regulated Utility net 
income in 2004 also reflected the absence of equity income from Split Rock Energy, a joint venture which we terminated 
in March 2004 ($1.7 million in 2003; $4.3 million in 2002). Equity income from Split Rock Energy in 2003 included a 
$2.3 million charge to exit the joint venture. In 2002, a $2.3 million one-time deferral of costs recoverable through the 
regulated utility fuel clause increased income. 
 
Nonregulated Energy Operations reported a $0.3 million net loss in 2004 (net income of $3.7 million in 2003; an 
$8.7 million net loss in 2002). The decrease in 2004 net income was primarily due to a reduction in net income at Taconite 
Harbor and a one-time cost to terminate a transmission contract related to the Kendall County power purchase 
agreement. Net income at Taconite Harbor in 2004 decreased, primarily due to costs associated with a scheduled 
maintenance outage in 2004 and increased costs for sulfur dioxide emission allowances. In addition, wholesale power 
prices were lower in 2004. Generation at Taconite Harbor first came online at various times during the first half of 2002. 
Wholesale power prices were higher in 2003 compared to 2002.  
 
Generation secured through the Kendall County power purchase agreement began in May 2002. An after-tax loss of 
approximately $8 million, which included a $0.7 million cost to terminate a transmission contract, was recognized in 2004. 
In December 2004, we entered into an agreement to assign this power purchase agreement to Constellation Energy 
Commodities. (See Outlook.)  
 
In 2002, a $5.5 million charge related to the indefinite delay of a generation project in Superior, Wisconsin, reduced 
income, while 2003 reflected a $0.5 million reduction in the 2002 charge related to that project.  
 
Real Estate contributed net income of $14.7 million in 2004 ($14.1 million in 2003; $11.2 million in 2002). A strong 
southwest Florida real estate market starting in the fall of 2003 and continuing into 2004 was the main reason for higher 
net income in 2004 and 2003, as well as an increase in the number and the profitability of real estate sales. The timing of 
the closing of real estate sales varies from period to period and impacts comparisons between years. 
 
Other reflected a net loss of $18.1 million in 2004, down from a $25.9 million net loss in 2003 ($28.2 million net loss in 
2002). A $9.8 million reduction in interest expense resulting from lower debt balances was the main reason for the 
improvement in 2004. Financial results for 2004 also included an $11.5 million gain on the sale of ADESA stock related to 
our ESOP (see Note 17), a $10.9 million debt prepayment cost associated with the retirement of long-term debt as a part 
of our financial restructuring in preparation for the spin-off of ADESA (see Note 8) and $4.1 million of impairment losses 
related to our emerging technologies portfolio. In addition, $1.6 million of equity losses on emerging technology funds 
were recognized in 2004. In 2003, we reported net losses on the sale of shares we held directly in publicly-traded, 
emerging technology investments. Financial results for 2002 included net gains on the sale of certain emerging 
technology investments and losses related to our trading securities portfolio, which was liquidated during the second half 
of 2002. 
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Discontinued Operations includes our Automotive Services business that was spun off on September 20, 2004, our 
Water Services businesses, the majority of which were sold in 2003, costs incurred by ALLETE associated with the spin-
off of ADESA, and our retail stores, which we exited in 2002. 
 
Automotive Services contributed net income of $74.4 million in 2004 ($113.6 million in 2003; $88.2 million in 2002). Net 
income in 2004 was down $39.2 million from 2003, reflecting a 6.6% reduction in our ownership of ADESA since the June 
2004 IPO and the absence of ADESA operations since the spin-off on September 20, 2004. Net income in 2004 was also 
down due to debt prepayment costs related to the early redemption of ADESA debt in August 2004, ALLETE’s costs 
associated with the business separation, and additional corporate charges and separation expenses incurred by ADESA 
as it prepared to be a stand-alone, publicly-traded company. In addition, 2004 net income included $4.1 million of charges 
in connection with a lawsuit related to ADESA’s vehicle import business. Net income in 2003 reflected strong vehicle 
sales, fee increases, the introduction and expansion of service offerings, lower interest expense due to lower debt 
balances at the time, gains on sale of property and strong receivable portfolio management at the floorplan financing 
business. Net income in 2003 also included a $1.3 million recovery from the settlement of a lawsuit associated with 
ADESA’s vehicle transport business. Net income in 2002 included a $2.7 million exit charge related to ADESA’s vehicle 
transport business. 
 
Water Services financial results were a $1.3 million net loss in 2004 (net income of $93.0 million in 2003; net income of 
$25.5 million in 2002). Net income in 2004 decreased $94.3 million from 2003, primarily because 2003 included the sale 
of substantially all of our water and wastewater systems serving various counties and communities in Florida. A 
$71.6 million after-tax gain was recognized on the sale of these systems in 2003, net of all selling, transaction and 
employee termination benefit expenses, as well as impairment losses on certain remaining assets at the time. Gains in 
2004 from the sale of our North Carolina assets and the remaining systems in Florida were offset by an adjustment to 
gains reported in 2003, resulting in an overall net loss of $0.5 million in 2004. The adjustment to gains reported in 2003 
resulted primarily from an arbitration award in December 2004 relating to a gain-sharing provision on a system sold in 
2003. Net income was also down from 2003, due to the absence of operations from water and wastewater systems sold. 
The majority of Florida systems were sold in the fourth quarter of 2003. North Carolina assets were sold in June 2004. 
 
Financial results for 2002 included a $1.2 million loss related to our retail stores, primarily due to an exit charge. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle reflected the cumulative effect on prior years (to December 31, 2003) of changing to 
the equity method of accounting for investments in limited liability companies included in our emerging technology 
portfolio. (See Note 14.) 
 
 
2004 Compared to 2003 
 
Regulated Utility 

 
Operating revenue was up $45.0 million, or 9%, in 2004, primarily due to higher fuel clause recoveries resulting from 
increased purchased power costs (see operating expenses below) and increased retail sales. Overall, regulated utility 
kilowatthour sales were similar to 2003 (up 1%) as a 5% increase in sales to retail and municipal customers reduced 
the energy available for sale to other power suppliers. Much of the increase in retail and municipal electric sales was 
attributable to large industrial customers, due to their higher production levels in 2004. Outages at Company 
generating facilities and a scheduled maintenance outage at the Square Butte generating facility (see operating 
expenses) also contributed to less energy being available for sale to other power suppliers.  
 
Operating expenses in total were up $38.0 million, or 9%, in 2004, primarily due to a $34.3 million increase in fuel 
and purchased power expense. Increased purchased power was necessitated by outages at Company generating 
facilities and the Square Butte generating facility. In February 2004, we experienced a generator failure at our  
534-MW Boswell Unit 4. Unit 4 came back into service in June 2004. As a result of the failure, we replaced significant 
components of the generator at a capital cost of approximately $6 million. The majority of the replacement cost was 
covered by insurance, subject to a deductible of $1 million. We entered into power purchase agreements to replace 
the power lost during the Unit 4 outage. The cost of this additional power was recovered through the regulated utility 
fuel adjustment clause in Minnesota. While Unit 4 was down, some work originally planned for 2005 and 2006 was 
done during the outage to minimize future outages. This outage did not have a material impact on our results of 
operations. Two multi-week scheduled maintenance outages also took place at our 55-MW Laskin Unit 1 and at the 
Square Butte generating facility. Operating and maintenance expense was $3.2 million higher in 2004, primarily due 
to outages at our generating facilities. Our pro rata share of the Square Butte maintenance outage costs was 
approximately $5 million. In addition, 2004 reflected a $4.4 million increase in pension expense and a $1.7 million 
decrease in depreciation expense. In 2004, the MPUC approved longer depreciable lives for certain Company 
generating assets. 
 
Interest expense was down $1.9 million from 2003, due to lower debt balances in 2004. 
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2004 Compared to 2003 (Continued) 
 
Regulated Utility (Continued) 
 

Other income (expense) reflected $2.8 million less income in 2004, primarily due to the absence of equity in net 
income from Split Rock Energy. Minnesota Power withdrew from Split Rock Energy trading activities, effective 
November 1, 2003, and terminated the joint venture in March 2004. 

 
Nonregulated Energy Operations 

 
Operating revenue in 2004 was similar to 2003 as a 2% increase in kilowatthour sales was offset by lower wholesale 
prices. Kilowatthour sales were up 8% at Taconite Harbor despite a fourth quarter 2004 scheduled maintenance 
outage, while kilowatthour sales at Kendall County were down 26% from 2003.  
 
Operating expenses were up $6.8 million, or 7%, in 2004, due to $1.3 million of costs associated with a scheduled 
maintenance outage at Taconite Harbor, a $1.2 million transmission contract termination charge to exit the Kendall 
County agreement and a $0.9 million increase in costs for sulfur dioxide emission allowances. Expenses in 2003 
reflected a $0.9 million reduction in costs accrued in 2002 related to the indefinite delay of a generation project in 
Superior, Wisconsin. 
 
Other income (expense) reflected $1.3 million of less income in 2004. The decrease was attributable to a reduction 
in gains on prior Minnesota land sales due to an MPUC required land reevaluation.  

 
Real Estate 

 
Operating revenue was down $0.7 million, or 2%, in 2004. In 2004, we sold 1,479 acres and 211 lots for 
$35.8 million (1,394 acres and 265 lots for $36.0 million in 2003). At December 31, 2004, total land sales under 
contract were $71 million, of which $30 million were for properties in the Town Center development project at Palm 
Coast. Revenue in 2003 also included the recovery of a partially reserved receivable. 
 
Operating expenses were down $1.7 million, or 9%, in 2004 because the cost of property sold in 2004 was lower 
than in 2003. Cost of sales in 2004 was $6.5 million ($7.9 million in 2003). 
 

Other 
 
Operating revenue was up $14.6 million, or 44%, in 2004, reflecting increased revenue from our telecommunications 
business due to more equipment sales. 
 
Operating expenses were up $12.3 million, or 26%, in 2004, mostly due to higher cost of goods sold associated with 
increased sales at our telecommunications business. Corporate charges were down $2.2 million ($12.6 million in 
2004; $14.8 million in 2003). Lower corporate charges as a result of the spin-off of Automotive Services and an 
insurance refund partially offset higher incentive compensation and benefit costs, and expenses related to the 
reverse stock split. 
 
Interest expense (not specifically related to any one business segment) was down $16.8 million from 2003 
($11.2 million in 2004; $28.0 million in 2003), primarily due to lower debt balances. We repaid $25 million of 6 1/4% 
First Mortgage Bonds in July 2003; $50 million of 7 3/4% First Mortgage Bonds in November 2003; $75 million of 
mandatorily redeemable preferred securities in December 2003; $3.5 million of Industrial Development Revenue 
Bonds in January 2004; and $125 million of 7.80% Senior Notes in July 2004. In addition, $111 million of Pollution 
Control Refunding Revenue Bonds were refinanced at a lower rate in August 2004 and a $250 million credit 
agreement entered into in July 2003 was paid off early ($197 million in 2003; $53 million in April 2004). A combination 
of internally-generated funds, proceeds from the sale of our Water Services assets and proceeds received from 
ADESA were used to repay the debt. 
 
Other income (expense) reflected $10.5 million of additional expense in 2004, primarily due to an $18.5 million debt 
prepayment cost related to the early redemption of $125 million in senior notes in 2004 and $6.5 million of impairment 
losses recorded related to our emerging technology investments. In addition, $1.7 million of equity losses on 
emerging technology funds were recognized in 2004. These decreases were partially offset by an $11.5 million gain 
on the sale of ADESA shares held in our ESOP. (See Note 17.) In 2003, we recognized $3.5 million of losses related 
to the sale of shares we held directly in publicly-traded emerging technology investments.  
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2003 Compared to 2002 
 
Regulated Utility 

 
Operating revenue was up $12.1 million, or 2%, in 2003, mainly due to higher fuel clause recoveries and natural gas 
prices. Regulated utility kilowatthour sales were similar to 2002. Fuel clause recoveries increased, due to higher 
purchased power costs.  
 
Operating expenses were up $26.5 million, or 7%, in 2003, primarily due to a $5.8 million increase in fuel and 
purchased power expense, a $4.4 million increase in natural gas expense and a $4.8 million increase in employee 
pension and benefit expenses. Higher purchased power costs resulted from both increased wholesale prices and 
quantities purchased. Planned maintenance outages at our generating stations and lower output from our hydro 
facilities as a result of drier weather necessitated higher quantities of purchased power in 2003. Natural gas expense 
was higher in 2003, due to increased prices. Expenses for pension and post-retirement health benefits increased, 
mainly due to lower discount rates and expected rates of return on plan assets. Operating expenses in 2002 included 
a $4 million one-time deferral of costs recoverable through the utility fuel adjustment clause.  
 
Other income (expense) reflected $4.8 million less income in 2003, primarily due to less equity income from our joint 
venture in Split Rock Energy ($2.9 million in 2003; $7.3 million in 2002). Our 2003 equity in net income from Split 
Rock Energy reflected a $2.3 million charge accrued at the time we reached an agreement to withdraw from this joint 
venture. 
 

Nonregulated Energy Operations 
 
Operating revenue was up $21.9 million, or 26%, in 2003, primarily due to increased sales of nonregulated 
generation from our Taconite Harbor facility and improved wholesale power prices. Increased sales of nonregulated 
generation resulted from Taconite Harbor being available for a full 12 months in 2003. Taconite Harbor generation 
first came online at various times during the first half of 2002.  
 
Operating expenses were up $0.2 million, or less than 1%, in 2003, mainly due to fuel and purchased power 
expenses for nonregulated generation that came online during the first half of 2002. Purchased power expense in 
2003 included a full 12 months of demand charges related to the Kendall County power purchase agreement, while 
2002 included only eight months. Operating expenses in 2002 included a $9.5 million charge related to the indefinite 
delay of the generation project in Superior, Wisconsin.  
 
Interest expense was up $1.5 million, predominantly due to more interest capitalized in 2002. 
 

Real Estate 
 
Operating revenue was up $9 million, or 27%, in 2003, as a result of more land sales. In 2003, we sold 1,394 acres 
and 265 lots for $36.0 million (641 acres and 1,425 lots for $29.9 million in 2002). Revenue in 2003 also included the 
recovery of a partially reserved receivable. 
 
Operating expenses were up $2.7 million, or 17%, in 2003 because the cost of property sold in 2003 and selling 
expenses were higher than in 2002. Cost of sales in 2003 was $7.9 million ($6.8 million in 2002). 
  

Other 
 
Operating revenue was up $6.3 million, or 24%, in 2003, reflecting increased revenue from our telecommunications 
business, due to more equipment sales. 
 
Operating expenses were up $2.0 million, or 4%, in 2003, reflecting higher cost of goods sold associated with 
increased sales at our telecommunications business, partially offset by a $2.2 million decrease in corporate charges 
($14.8 million in 2003; $17.0 million in 2002). 
 
Interest expense was down $0.2 million, or less than 1%, in 2003 and reflected interest expense not specifically 
related to any one business segment ($28.0 million in 2003; $28.2 million in 2002).  
 
Other income (expense) reflected $2.1 million less income in 2003, primarily due to a $3.5 million loss related to the 
sale of shares the Company held directly in publicly-traded emerging technology investments. In 2002, we recognized 
a $3.3 million gain on the sale of certain emerging technology investments, which was more than offset by losses on 
our trading securities portfolio that was liquidated during the second half of 2002. 
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Critical Accounting Policies 
 
Certain accounting measurements under applicable generally accepted accounting principles involve management’s 
judgment about subjective factors and estimates, the effects of which are inherently uncertain. These policies are 
reviewed with the audit committee of our Board of Directors on a regular basis. The following summarizes those 
accounting measurements we believe are most critical to our reported results of operations and financial condition.  
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We annually review our assets for impairment. SFAS 144, “Accounting for the 
Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” is the basis for these analyses. Judgments and uncertainties affecting 
the application of accounting for asset impairment include economic conditions affecting market valuations, changes in 
our business strategy, and changes in our forecast of future operating cash flows and earnings.  
 
We account for our long-lived assets at depreciated historical cost. A long-lived asset is tested for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. We would recognize an 
impairment loss only if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash flows. 
Management judgment is involved in both deciding if testing for recoverability is necessary and in estimating undiscounted 
cash flows. As of December 31, 2004, no write-downs were required. 
 
Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Actuarial Assumptions. We account for our pension and postretirement 
benefit obligations in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS 106, 
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” These standards require the use of 
assumptions in determining the obligations and annual cost. An important actuarial assumption for pension and other 
postretirement benefit plans is the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. In establishing this assumption, we 
consider the diversification and allocation of plan assets, the actual long-term historical performance for the type of 
securities invested in, the actual long-term historical performance of plan assets and the impact of current economic 
conditions, if any, on long-term historical returns. Our pension asset allocation is approximately 70% equity and 30% 
fixed-rate securities. Equity securities consist of a mix of market capitalization sizes and also include investments in real 
estate and venture capital. We currently use an expected long-term rate of return of 9% in our pension actuarial study. We 
annually review our expected long-term rate of return assumption and will adjust it to respond to any changing market 
conditions. A 1/2% decrease in the expected long-term rate of return would increase the annual expense for pension and 
other postretirement benefits by approximately $1 million after tax; likewise, a 1/2% increase in the expected long-term 
rate of return would decrease the annual expense by approximately $1 million after tax. (See Note 16 for additional detail 
on our pension and postretirement health and life plans.) 
 
Valuation of Investments. As part of our emerging technology portfolio, we have several minority investments in venture 
capital funds and privately-held, start-up companies. We account for our investment in venture capital funds under the 
equity method and account for our direct investment in privately-held companies under the cost method. These 
investments are included in Investments on our consolidated balance sheet. Our policy is to quarterly review these 
investments for impairment by assessing such factors as continued commercial viability of products, cash flow and 
earnings. Any impairment would reduce the carrying value of the investment and be recognized as a loss. In 2004, we 
recorded $6.5 million pretax of impairment losses on these investments ($0 in 2003; $1.5 million pretax in 2002). 
 
Provision for Environmental Remediation. Our businesses are subject to regulation by various federal, state and local 
authorities concerning environmental matters. We review environmental matters on a quarterly basis. Accruals for 
environmental matters are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can 
be reasonably estimated, based on current law and existing technologies. These accruals are adjusted periodically as 
assessment and remediation efforts progress, or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Accruals 
for environmental liabilities are included in the balance sheet at undiscounted amounts and exclude claims for recoveries 
from insurance or other third parties. Costs related to environmental contamination treatment and cleanup are charged to 
expense. We do not currently anticipate that potential expenditures for environmental matters will be material; however, if 
we become subject to more stringent remediation at known sites, if we discover additional contamination or previously 
unknown sites, or if we become subject to related personal or property damage, we could incur material costs in 
connection with our environmental remediation. 
 
Taxation. We are required to make judgments regarding the potential tax effects of various financial transactions and our 
ongoing operations to estimate our obligations to taxing authorities. These tax obligations include income, real estate and 
use taxes. These judgments include reserves for potential adverse outcomes regarding tax positions that we have taken. 
We must also assess our ability to generate capital gains to realize tax benefits associated with capital losses expected to 
be generated in future periods. Capital losses may be deducted only to the extent of capital gains realized during the year 
of the loss or during the three prior or five succeeding years. As of December 31, 2004, we have, where appropriate, 
recorded an allowance against our deferred tax assets associated with impairment losses, which will become capital 
losses when realized for income tax purposes. While we believe the resulting tax reserve balances as of December 31, 
2004 reflect the most likely probable expected outcome of these tax matters in accordance with SFAS 5, “Accounting for 
Contingencies,” and SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” the ultimate outcome of such matters could result in 
additional adjustments to our consolidated financial statements and such adjustments could be material. 
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Outlook 
 
In the last 10 years, our average annual total shareholder return is 16%. Approximately 4% of this average was attributed 
to dividends. A $100 investment in ALLETE stock at the end of 1994 would have been worth $439 at the end of 2004, 
assuming reinvestment of dividends and shares received in the ADESA distribution were sold and reinvested in ALLETE. 
By comparison, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index averaged 12% for the same period, of which approximately 2% of the 
average was attributed to dividends. A $100 investment in the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index at the end of 1994 would 
have been worth $312 at the end of 2004, assuming reinvestment of dividends. 
 
Having completed the spin-off of our Automotive Services business and the sale of our Water Services businesses, our 
transformation in 2004 has made us a stronger company and positioned us for substantial growth in 2005.  
 
2005 Earnings Guidance. We expect ALLETE’s earnings per share from continuing operations to grow by 45% to 50% in 
2005. The growth is expected to come from continued strong real estate sales, lower interest expense and the transfer of 
the Kendall County purchased power agreement. The earnings expectation excludes an anticipated one-time charge 
related to the Kendall County agreement. 
 
The ESOP has been using proceeds from the sale of ADESA stock to purchase ALLETE common stock on the open 
market. Pursuant to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, “Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans,” 
unallocated ALLETE common stock currently held and purchased by the ESOP will be treated as unearned ESOP shares 
and not considered as outstanding for earnings per share computations. ESOP shares are included in earnings per share 
computations after they are allocated to participants. At December 31, 2004, the ESOP had purchased 1.0 million shares 
of ALLETE common stock and had $30.3 million of restricted cash. During January 2005, the ESOP purchased an 
additional 0.5 million shares of ALLETE common stock and had $8.9 million of restricted cash at January 31, 2005. (See 
Note 17.) 
 
Regulated Utility and Nonregulated Energy Operations. Over the next five years, we believe electric utilities will face 
three major issues: ongoing changes in regional transmission structure; the probable enactment of stricter environmental 
regulations; and possible federal legislation impacting the structure and organization of the electric utility industry. The 
FERC may consolidate transmission regions, which could impact states’ transmission regulation rights and create a more 
standardized wholesale power market to oversee how transmission prices are determined. As part of this larger policy 
effort, MISO will launch day-ahead and real-time energy market operations on April 1, 2005. We are not yet able to predict 
the impact of the soon-to-be initiated MISO Day 2 market on the Company’s operations. We have been diligently 
participating with MISO in market launch preparations and tests, and our systems and procedures for operating within the 
new market are in place. Stricter environmental requirements through legislation and/or rulemakings are expected to 
require significant capital investments in the 2008 to 2012 timeframe. The expenditures will relate to new emission 
controls on existing generating units. Congress is expected to take up energy legislation in 2005. Repeal of the Public 
Utility Holding Company Act (PUHCA) is likely to be one of the electric utility sector reforms addressed in the bill. PUHCA 
imposes geographic restrictions on large electric and gas utility operations and limits diversification into non-utility 
businesses. More electric industry consolidation could occur and new players could enter the industry if PUHCA is 
repealed.  
 
We believe our Regulated Utility and Nonregulated Energy Operations businesses are well positioned to successfully deal 
with the issues we have described and to compete successfully. Our access to and ownership of low-cost power are our 
greatest strengths. We anticipate securing additional competitive resources for our forecasted load growth. We anticipate 
that we will have ready access to sufficient capital for general business purposes. We believe electric industry 
deregulation is unlikely in Minnesota or Wisconsin in the next five years.  
 
Regulated Utility Strategy. We will leverage the strengths of our Regulated Utility business to improve the Company’s 
strategic and financial outlook. In addition, we will evaluate growth opportunities through merger, acquisition or asset 
additions in our region. 
 
Resource Plan. In 2004, we filed an integrated resource plan (Resource Plan) with the MPUC, detailing our retail energy 
demand projections and our energy sourcing options to meet the projected demand over the next 15 years. In the 
Resource Plan, we predict that retail demand by customers in our service territory will increase at an average annual rate 
of 1.7% to 2019. The Resource Plan forecasts growth of 20 MW to 30 MW per year, primarily from residential and smaller 
commercial expansion, and a positive outlook from Large Power Customers in northeastern Minnesota, such as taconite 
processing facilities and paper mills. We expect to realize a reduction in generating resource supply over the next few 
years under the terms of our long-term energy supply contract with Square Butte. The combination of increased demands 
and reduced supply means we will need to secure additional base load energy to serve our customers in future years. 
 
The Resource Plan sets forth several options designed to meet our predicted retail base load demand growth. Options 
range from purchasing additional power to building new base load energy generation facilities. We will further analyze 
portfolio alternatives for meeting our forecast and work with state regulators and other stakeholders over the next several 
months to further develop the Resource Plan. We anticipate that the MPUC will formally consider the Resource Plan 
during 2005. 
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Rate Case. In other regulatory activity, SWL&P filed a request with the PSCW in 2004 to increase retail rates. A ruling is 
anticipated during the first half of 2005. Minnesota Power does not expect to file a request to increase rates for its retail 
utility operations during 2005. We will, however, continue to monitor the costs of serving our retail customers and evaluate 
the need for a rate filing in the future. 
 
Industrial Customers. Approximately 50% of our regulated utility electric sales is made to taconite producers, paper 
producers and oil pipeline operators. During 2004, the multi-year domestic integrated-steel industry consolidation began 
to reach operating fruition. Combined with improving markets, a consolidated steel industry should continue to stabilize 
and potentially even increase the demand for taconite as a raw material in steel production. Based on our research of the 
taconite industry, Minnesota taconite production for 2005 is again anticipated to be about 41 million tons (41 million tons in 
2004; 35 million tons in 2003; 39 million tons in 2002). Although the current taconite pellet market looks strong, the 
taconite industry is cyclical and subject to several factors, which could dramatically change this forecast. In the event of a 
significant change in the taconite markets, we expect that any excess energy not used by our retail customers will be 
marketed primarily to the regional wholesale market. Paper prices have also improved and we anticipate a more profitable 
outlook for the domestic paper industry over the next few years.  
 
Since 2001, Mesabi Nugget, owned by Kobe Steel, Ltd., Cleveland-Cliffs Inc and Steel Dynamics, Inc., has been testing 
the technology of converting taconite into pig iron at a pilot plant in Silver Bay, Minnesota. Environmental permitting on a 
full-scale production plant in northeast Minnesota is under way and such plant would be a significant energy user. In 2004, 
UPM-Kymmene, a Large Power Customer, began a year-long economic and environmental study to assess the feasibility 
of expanding its Blandin Paper mill in Grand Rapids, Minnesota. A new paper machine would require an additional 
100 MW of electricity by 2008. The addition of these two potential major industrial energy users in northern Minnesota is 
positive for the Company, as well as the communities we serve.  
 
Our strong relationships with industrial customers are unique in the electric industry and enable us to work closely with 
them to help ensure their success. We continue to maintain these relationships with this group of customers to help retain 
a solid industrial base in our region. We continue to make investments to maintain and improve the integrity of our 
generating, transmission and distribution assets, and maintain environmental compliance.  
 
Fuel Clause. In 2003, the MPUC initiated an investigation into the continuing usefulness of the fuel clause as a regulatory 
tool for electric utilities. The initial steps of the investigation were to review the clause’s original purpose, structure and 
rationale (including its current operation and relevance in today’s regulatory environment), and then address its ongoing 
appropriateness and other issues if the need for continued use of the fuel adjustment clause is shown. The MPUC has not 
taken action on any proposal and, as a result, we are unable to predict the outcome or impact of this proceeding at this 
time. 
 
Kendall County. To eliminate ongoing losses from capacity charges for generation secured through the Kendall County 
power purchase agreement, in December 2004, we entered into an agreement to assign this power purchase agreement 
to Constellation Energy Commodities. Under the terms of the agreement, we will pay Constellation Energy Commodities 
$73 million in cash (approximately $47 million after taxes) to assume the power purchase agreement, which is in effect 
through mid-September 2017. The proposed transaction is subject to the approvals of LSP-Kendall Energy, as well as of 
its project lenders and the FERC. Pending these approvals, the transaction is scheduled to close in April 2005. We 
currently have approximately 130 MW of long-term capacity sales contracts for the Kendall County generation, which will 
also be transferred to Constellation Energy Commodities at closing. 
 
Taconite Harbor. A majority of the output from our Taconite Harbor generating unit is sold under long-term wholesale 
contracts through mid-2010. Remaining Taconite Harbor energy is sold on a shorter-term basis into the wholesale market.  
 
Nonregulated Energy Operations Strategy. Following the anticipated disposition of the Kendall County contractual position 
in April 2005, this business segment will be composed of generating assets in northeastern Minnesota and BNI Coal in 
North Dakota. Our strategy is to enhance the profitability of these operations where possible and seek growth 
opportunities in close geographic proximity to existing operations in Minnesota, North Dakota and Wisconsin. 
 
Real Estate. With an inventory of land in desirable Florida locations, ALLETE Properties is poised for a growing and 
consistent contribution to earnings and cash flow. A large portion of our real estate inventory is located in Florida’s Flagler 
and Volusia Counties, an area with one of the fastest growing populations in the United States. We expect this population 
growth to continue, which will increase the demand for real estate in the area.  
 
We have three major planned developments under way. They are Town Center at Palm Coast, which will be a new 
downtown for Palm Coast, Palm Coast Park, located in northwest Palm Coast, and Ormond Crossings, located in Ormond 
Beach along Interstate 95. As property within these developments is made available for sale, we expect that these 
projects will contribute a significant amount of net income for our real estate business. Other ongoing land sales and 
rental income at the retail shopping center in Winter Haven provide additional revenue. 
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ALLETE Properties plans to maximize the value of the property it currently owns through entitlement and infrastructure 
improvements, and then sell it at market prices. In addition to managing its current real estate inventory, ALLETE 
Properties will focus on identifying, acquiring and entitling vacant land in the coastal southeast United States. 
 
Other. We have the potential to recognize gains or losses on the sale of investments in our emerging technology portfolio. 
We plan to sell investments in our emerging technology portfolio as shares are distributed to us. Some restrictions on 
sales may apply, including but not limited to underwriter lock-up periods that typically extend for 180 days following an 
initial public offering. We have committed to make additional investments in certain emerging technology holdings. The 
total future commitment was $4.5 million at December 31, 2004 and is expected to be invested at various times through 
2007. We do not have plans to make any additional investments beyond this commitment. 
 
Diversification. We have a long history of both acquiring and selling companies in a variety of industries, and these 
activities have contributed significantly to overall financial results. We will seek to diversify our earnings stream to mitigate 
potential downside exposure to industrial customers in our Regulated Utility business and to provide additional earnings 
growth. 
 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
Cash Flow Activities 
 
A primary goal of our strategic plan is to improve cash flow from operations. Our strategy includes growing our businesses 
both internally by expanding facilities, services and operations (see Capital Requirements), and externally through 
acquisitions.  
 
We believe our financial condition is strong, as evidenced by cash and cash equivalents of $194.1 million and a debt to 
total capital ratio of 38% at December 31, 2004. We continued to generate strong cash flow from operating activities, 
which amounted to $62.3 million in 2004, excluding discontinued operations ($118.0 million in 2003; $226.5 million in 
2002). Cash from operating activities was lower in 2004, due to a $6.7 million outstanding receivable from American 
Transmission Company for work on the Duluth-to-Wausau transmission line. This receivable was paid in January 2005. 
Cash from operating activities in 2003 included the receipt of a $20.9 million outstanding receivable in 2002 related to a 
turbine generator sold following the indefinite delay of a generation project in Superior, Wisconsin. Cash from operating 
activities in 2002 included proceeds from the liquidation of our trading securities portfolio; the proceeds were used to pay 
down short-term debt. 
 
Cash from investing activities, excluding discontinued operations, was higher in 2004, primarily due to $12.0 million 
received from Split Rock Energy upon termination of the joint venture and lower additions to property, plant and 
equipment, which vary from year to year depending on special projects. Additions to property, plant and equipment in 
2003 included expenses related to BNI Coal’s dragline project; 2002 included expenses related to a generation project in 
Superior, Wisconsin. 
 
Cash for financing activities, excluding discontinued operations, reflected significant debt repayment in all periods 
presented ($183.1 million in 2004; $431.5 million in 2003; $171.5 million in 2002). A combination of internally-generated 
funds, proceeds from the sale of our Water Services assets in 2003 and 2004, and proceeds received from ADESA in 
2004 were used to repay the debt in 2003 and 2004. See Note 8 for additional detail on debt repaid. The reduction in 
2002 debt was primarily the repayment of commercial paper with proceeds from the liquidation of our trading securities 
portfolio.  
 
Working Capital. Additional working capital, if and when needed, generally is provided by the sale of commercial paper. 
Approximately 1 million original issue shares of our common stock are available for issuance through Invest Direct, our 
direct stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan. We have bank lines of credit aggregating $111.5 million, the 
majority of which expire in December 2007. These bank lines of credit provide credit support for our commercial paper 
program. The amount and timing of future sales of our securities will depend upon market conditions and our specific 
needs. We may sell securities to meet capital requirements, to provide for the retirement or early redemption of issues of 
long-term debt, to reduce short-term debt and for other corporate purposes. 
 
Our lines of credit and long-term debt agreements contain various financial covenants. The most restrictive of these 
covenants are discussed in Note 8. 
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Securities 
 
In March 2001, ALLETE, ALLETE Capital II and ALLETE Capital III, jointly filed a registration statement with the SEC, 
pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933. The registration statement, which has been declared effective by 
the SEC, relates to the possible issuance of a remaining aggregate amount of $387 million of securities, which may 
include ALLETE common stock, first mortgage bonds and other debt securities, and ALLETE Capital II and ALLETE 
Capital III preferred trust securities. ALLETE also previously filed a registration statement, which has been declared 
effective by the SEC, relating to the possible issuance of $25 million of first mortgage bonds and other debt securities. We 
may sell all or a portion of the remaining registered securities if warranted by market conditions and our capital 
requirements. Any offer and sale of the above mentioned securities will be made only by means of a prospectus meeting 
the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 and the rules and regulations thereunder. 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
Off-balance sheet arrangements are discussed in Note 11. 
 
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
 
Our long-term debt obligations, including long-term debt due within one year, represent the principal amount of bonds, 
notes and loans which are recorded on our consolidated balance sheet, plus interest. The following table assumes the 
interest rate in effect at December 31, 2004 remains constant through remaining term. 
 
Unconditional purchase obligations represent our Square Butte and Kendall County power purchase agreements, and 
minimum purchase commitments under coal and rail contracts. 
 
Under our power purchase agreement with Square Butte that extends through 2026, we are obligated to pay our pro rata 
share of Square Butte’s costs based on our entitlement to the output of Square Butte’s 455 MW coal-fired generating unit 
near Center, North Dakota. Our payment obligation is suspended if Square Butte fails to deliver any power, whether 
produced or purchased, for a period of one year. Square Butte’s fixed costs consist primarily of debt service. The table 
below reflects our share of future debt service based on our output entitlement of approximately 71% in 2005, 66% in 
2006 and 60% thereafter. Upon compliance with a two-year advance notice requirement, Minnkota Power has the option 
to reduce our entitlement by approximately 5% annually, to a minimum of 50%. (See Note 11.) 
 
Under the Kendall County agreement, we pay a fixed capacity charge for the right, but not the obligation, to utilize one 
275 MW generating unit near Chicago, Illinois. We are responsible for arranging the natural gas fuel supply and are 
entitled to the electricity produced. In December 2004, we entered into an agreement to assign this power purchase 
agreement to Constellation Energy Commodities. Pending certain approvals, the proposed transaction is scheduled to 
close in April 2005. The following table assumes the fixed capacity charge ends April 1, 2005. (See Note 11.) 
 

 Payments Due by Period 
  Less than 1 to 3 4 to 5 After 
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years 

Millions 
 
Long-Term Debt $ 593.7  $24.1 $229.2 $34.3 $306.1 
Capital Lease Obligations   –  –  –  –  – 
Operating Lease Obligations  76.2  6.3 16.5 8.6 44.8 
Unconditional Purchase Obligations  434.9  55.4 79.4 37.0 263.1 
 
 $ 1,104.8  $85.8 $325.1 $79.9 $614.0 
 
In 2005, we expect to contribute approximately $6 million to our postretirement health and life plans. We are not required 
to make any contributions to our defined benefit pension plans in 2005. We are unable to predict contribution levels after 
2005. 
 
Emerging Technology Portfolio. We have investments in emerging technologies through the minority investments in 
venture capital funds and privately-held, start-up companies. We have committed to make additional investments in 
certain emerging technology holdings. The total future commitment was $4.5 million at December 31, 2004 ($4.8 million at 
December 31, 2003) and is expected to be invested at various times through 2007. We do not have plans to make any 
additional investments beyond this commitment. 
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Credit Ratings 
 
Our securities have been rated by Standard & Poor’s and by Moody’s. Rating agencies use both quantitative and 
qualitative measures in determining a company’s credit rating. These measures include business risk, liquidity risk, 
competitive position, capital mix, financial condition, predictability of cash flows, management strength and future 
direction. Some of the quantitative measures can be analyzed through a few key financial ratios, while the qualitative ones 
are more subjective. The disclosure of these credit ratings is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold our securities. 
Ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization. Each rating should be 
evaluated independently of any other rating. 
  
Credit Ratings Standard & Poor’s Moody’s 
 
Issuer Credit Rating BBB+ Baa2 
Commercial Paper A-2 P-2 
Senior Secured 
 First Mortgage Bonds A Baa1 
 Pollution Control Bonds A Baa1 
Unsecured Debt 
 Collier County Industrial Development Revenue Bonds BBB – 
 
Payout Ratio 
 
In 2004, we paid out 77% (40% in 2003; 66% in 2002) of our per share earnings in dividends.  
 
 
Capital Requirements 
 
Continuing Operations. Capital expenditures for 2004 totaled $63.0 million ($73.6 million in 2003; $86.6 million in 2002). 
Expenditures for 2004 included $41.7 million for Regulated Utility, $15.7 million for Nonregulated Energy Operations and 
$5.6 million for Other, which consisted of $5.2 million for our telecommunications business and $0.4 million for general 
corporate purposes. Except for BNI Coal’s new dragline, which was funded with an operating lease, internally-generated 
funds were the source of funding for these expenditures.  
 
Capital expenditures are expected to be $61 million in 2005 and total about $500 million for 2006 through 2009. The 2005 
amount includes $48 million for system component replacement and upgrades within Regulated Utility, $11 million for 
system component replacement and upgrades, and coal handling equipment within Nonregulated Energy Operations and 
$2 million for telecommunication fiber within Other. We expect to use internally-generated funds to fund all capital 
expenditures. Although the regulations have not yet been finalized, we believe that approximately half of the estimated 
expenditures for 2006 through 2009 may be necessary for environmental upgrades at our generation facilities. 
 
Discontinued Operations. Capital expenditures for discontinued operations for 2004 totaled $16.2 million ($62.7 million 
in 2003; $114.6 million in 2002). Expenditures for 2004 included $13.1 million for Automotive Services capital 
expenditures incurred prior to the September 2004 spin-off and $3.1 million to maintain our remaining Water Services 
businesses while they were in the process of being sold.  
 
 
Environmental and Other Matters 
 
As previously mentioned in our Critical Accounting Policies section, our businesses are subject to regulation by various 
federal, state and local authorities concerning environmental matters. We anticipate that potential expenditures for 
environmental matters will be material in the future, due to stricter environmental requirements through legislation and/or 
rulemakings that are expected to require significant capital investments. We are unable to predict the outcome of the 
issues discussed in Note 11. 
 
 
Market Risk 
 
Securities Investments 
 
Our securities investments include certain securities held for an indefinite period of time, which are accounted for as 
available-for-sale securities. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses 
included in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. Unrealized losses that are other than temporary are 
recognized in earnings. 
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At December 31, 2004, our available-for-sale securities portfolio consisted of securities in a grantor trust established to 
fund certain employee benefits. Our available-for-sale securities portfolio had a fair value of $30.2 million at December 31, 
2004 ($25.5 million at December 31, 2003) and a total unrealized after-tax gain of $1.5 million at December 31, 2004 
($0.8 million at December 31, 2003). We use the specific identification method as the basis for determining the cost of 
securities sold. Our policy is to review on a quarterly basis available-for-sale securities for other than temporary 
impairment by assessing such factors as the continued viability of products offered, cash flow, share price trends and the 
impact of overall market conditions. As a result of our periodic assessments, we did not record any impairment write-down 
on available-for-sale securities in 2004 or 2003.  
 
As part of our emerging technology portfolio, we have several minority investments in venture capital funds and direct 
investments in privately-held, start-up companies. We account for our investment in venture capital funds under the equity 
method and account for our direct investment in privately-held companies under the cost method. The total carrying value 
of our emerging technology portfolio was $13.6 million at December 31, 2004, down $23.9 million from December 31, 
2003. The decline was primarily due to a change to the equity method of accounting for the venture capital funds (see 
Note 14) and impairments related to investments in privately-held companies. Our basis in cost method investments 
included in the emerging technology portfolio was $4.5 million ($11.0 million in 2003). Our policy is to review these 
investments quarterly for impairment by assessing such factors as continued commercial viability of products, cash flow 
and earnings. Any impairment would reduce the carrying value of the investment. In 2004, we recorded $6.5 million 
($4.1 million after tax) of impairment losses related to direct investments in certain privately-held, start-up companies 
whose future business prospects have diminished significantly. Recent developments at these companies indicated that 
future commercial viability is unlikely, as is new financing necessary to continue development. We did not record any 
impairment loss on these investments in 2003 ($1.5 million pretax in 2002).  
 
Interest Rate Sensitive Financial Instruments 
 

 Principal Cash Flow by Expected Maturity Date 
        Fair 
 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total Value 

Dollars in Millions 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 Fixed Rate $0.9 $1.6 $115.9 $56.6 $1.3 $155.4 $331.7 $336.3 
 Average Interest Rate – % 7.1 6.2 7.1 7.0 6.7 5.4 6.3 
 
 Variable Rate $0.9 $0.8 $3.3 $0.8 $9.0 $45.5 $60.3 $60.4 
 Average Interest Rate – % (a) 3.8 3.8 2.6 3.8 2.4 2.4 2.5 
 
(a) Assumes rate in effect at December 31, 2004 remains constant through remaining term. 
 
Commodity Price Risk 
 
Our regulated utility operations in Minnesota and Wisconsin incur costs for fuel (primarily coal), power and natural gas 
purchased for resale in our regulated service territories, and related transportation. Our regulated utilities’ exposure to 
price risk for these commodities is significantly mitigated by the current ratemaking process and regulatory environment 
which generally allows a fuel clause surcharge if costs are in excess of those in our last rate filing. Conversely, costs 
below those in our last rate filing result in a rate credit. We seek to prudently manage our customers’ exposure to price 
risk by entering into contracts of various durations and terms for the purchase of coal and power (in Minnesota), power 
and natural gas (in Wisconsin), and related transportation costs. 
 
Power Marketing 
 
Our power marketing activities consist of (1) purchasing energy in the wholesale market for resale in our regulated service 
territories when retail energy requirements exceed generation output, and (2) selling excess available regulated utility 
generation and purchased power, as well as selling nonregulated generation. 
 
From time to time, our regulated utility operations may have excess generation that is temporarily not required by retail 
and municipal customers in our regulated service territory. We actively sell this generation to the wholesale market to 
optimize the value of our generating facilities. This generation is generally sold in the spot market or under short-term 
contracts at market prices. 
 
We have approximately 500 MW of nonregulated generation available for sale to the wholesale markets. This primarily 
consists of about 200 MW at our Taconite Harbor facility in northern Minnesota and 275 MW obtained through a 15-year 
power purchase agreement with an independent power producer at a facility in Kendall County near Chicago, Illinois. 
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Taconite Harbor’s capability of approximately 200 MW has been sold through various short-term and long-term capacity 
and energy contracts. Short term, we have approximately 116 MW of capacity and energy sales contracts, all of which 
expire on April 30, 2005. Long term, we have entered into two capacity and energy sales contracts totaling 175 MW 
(201 MW including a 15% reserve), which are effective May 1, 2005 and expire on April 30, 2010. Both contracts contain 
fixed monthly capacity charges and fixed minimum energy charges. One contract provides for an annual escalator to the 
energy charge based on increases in our cost of coal, subject to a small minimum annual escalation. The other contract 
provides that the energy charge will be the greater of a fixed minimum charge or an amount based on the variable 
production cost of a combined-cycle, natural gas unit. Our exposure in the event of a full or partial outage at our Taconite 
Harbor facility is significantly limited under both contracts. When the buyer is notified at least two months prior to an 
outage, there is no exposure. Outages with less than two months’ notice are subject to an annual duration limitation 
typical of this type of contract. We also have a 50 MW capacity and energy sales contract that extends through April 2008 
and a 15 MW energy sales contract that extends through May 2007. The 50 MW capacity and energy sales contract has 
fixed pricing through January 2006 and market-based pricing thereafter.  
 
Under the Kendall County agreement, which expires in September 2017, we pay a fixed capacity charge for the right, but 
not the obligation, to capacity and energy from a 275-MW generating unit. We are responsible for arranging the natural 
gas fuel supply. To date, this power purchase agreement has resulted in losses to us due to negative spark spreads (the 
differential between electric and natural gas prices) in the wholesale power market and our resulting inability to cover the 
fixed capacity charge on the unsold capacity (currently 145 MW). To eliminate ongoing losses from generation secured 
through the Kendall County agreement, in December 2004, we entered into an agreement to assign this power purchase 
agreement to Constellation Energy Commodities. Pending certain approvals, the transaction is scheduled to close in April 
2005. We currently have approximately 130 MW of long-term capacity sales contracts for the Kendall County generation, 
which will also be transferred to Constellation Energy Commodities at closing. 
 
 
New Accounting Standards 
 
New accounting standards are discussed in Note 2. 
 

     
 
 
Factors that May Affect Future Results 
 
Readers are cautioned that forward-looking statements, including those contained in this Form 10-K, should be 
read in conjunction with our disclosures under the heading: “Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995” located on page 3 of this Form 10-K and the factors described below. The risks 
and uncertainties described in this Form 10-K are not the only ones facing our Company. Additional risks and 
uncertainties that we are not presently aware of, or that we currently consider immaterial, may also affect our 
business operations. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer if the concerns set 
forth below are realized. 
 
If our significant customers are negatively impacted by world economics, our revenue may be negatively 
impacted. 
 
Our industrial customers are impacted by world economics that affect their competitive position and profitability. Taconite 
producers, and paper and wood products customers served by Minnesota Power compete in this world marketplace. Their 
inability to compete in their global markets could have a material adverse effect on their operations and continuation as a 
business. Any such failure could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and the communities we 
serve. 
 
Our energy business is subject to increased competition. 
 
The independent power industry includes numerous strong and capable competitors, many of which have extensive 
experience in the operation, acquisition and development of power generation facilities. Our competition is based primarily 
on price and reputation for quality, safety and reliability. The electric utility and natural gas industries are also experiencing 
increased competitive pressures as a result of consumer demands, technological advances, deregulation, greater 
availability of natural gas-fired generation and other factors. 
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We are subject to extensive governmental regulations that may have a negative impact on our business and 
results of operations.  
 
We are subject to prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including those of the United States Congress, 
state legislatures, the FERC, the MPUC, the FPSC, the PSCW, and various local and county regulators, and city 
administrators. These governmental regulations relate to allowed rates of return, financings, industry and rate structure, 
acquisition and disposal of assets and facilities, real estate development, operation and construction of plant facilities, 
recovery of purchased power and capital investments, and present or prospective wholesale and retail competition 
(including but not limited to transmission costs). These governmental regulations significantly influence our operating 
environment and may affect our ability to recover costs from our customers. We are required to have numerous permits, 
approvals and certificates from the agencies that regulate our business. We believe the necessary permits, approvals and 
certificates have been obtained for existing operations and that our business is conducted in accordance with applicable 
laws; however, we are unable to predict the impact on operating results from the future regulatory activities of any of these 
agencies. Changes in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations could have an adverse impact on our results 
of operations.  
 
Our Regulated Utility and Nonregulated Energy Operations pose certain environmental risks which could 
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. 
 
We are subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations affecting many aspects of our present and future 
operations, including air quality, water quality, waste management, reclamation and other environmental considerations. 
These laws and regulations can result in increased capital, operating, and other costs, as a result of compliance, 
remediation, containment and monitoring obligations, particularly with regard to laws relating to power plant emissions. 
These laws and regulations generally require us to obtain and comply with a wide variety of environmental licenses, 
permits, inspections and other approvals. Both public officials and private individuals may seek to enforce applicable 
environmental laws and regulations. We cannot predict the financial or operational outcome of any related litigation that 
may arise. 
 
There are no assurances that existing environmental regulations will not be revised or that new regulations seeking to 
protect the environment will not be adopted or become applicable to us. Revised or additional regulations, which result in 
increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions, particularly if those costs are not fully recoverable from 
customers, could have a material effect on our results of operations. 
 
We cannot predict with certainty the amount or timing of all future expenditures related to environmental matters because 
of the difficulty of estimating such costs. There is also uncertainty in quantifying liabilities under environmental laws that 
impose joint and several liability on all potentially responsible parties. (See Note 11.) 
 
The operation and maintenance of our generating facilities involves risks that could significantly increase the 
cost of doing business. 
 
The operation of generating facilities involves many risks, including start-up risks, breakdown or failure of facilities, lack of 
sufficient capital to maintain the facilities, the dependence on a specific fuel source, or the impact of unusual or adverse 
weather conditions or other natural events, as well as the risk of performance below expected levels of output or 
efficiency, the occurrence of any of which could result in lost revenue and/or increased expenses. A significant portion of 
Minnesota Power’s facilities was constructed many years ago. In particular, older generating equipment, even if 
maintained in accordance with good engineering practices, may require significant capital expenditures to keep it 
operating at peak efficiency. This equipment is also likely to require periodic upgrading and improvement. Minnesota 
Power could be subject to costs associated with any unexpected failure to produce power, including failure caused by 
breakdown or forced outage, as well as repairing damage to facilities due to storms, natural disasters, wars, terrorist acts 
and other catastrophic events. Further, our ability to successfully and timely complete capital improvements to existing 
facilities or other capital projects is contingent upon many variables and subject to substantial risks. Should any such 
efforts be unsuccessful, we could be subject to additional costs and/or the write-off of our investment in the project or 
improvement. 
 
We must have adequate and reliable transmission and distribution facilities to deliver our electricity to our 
customers. 
 
Minnesota Power depends on transmission and distribution facilities owned and operated by other utilities, as well as its 
own such facilities, to deliver the electricity it produces and sells to its customers, as well as to other energy suppliers. If 
transmission capacity is inadequate, our ability to sell and deliver electricity may be hindered, we may have to forgo sales 
or we may have to buy more expensive wholesale electricity that is available in the capacity-constrained area. The cost to 
provide service to these customers may exceed the cost to serve other customers, resulting in lower gross margins. In 
addition, any infrastructure failure that interrupts or impairs delivery of electricity to our customers could negatively impact 
the satisfaction of our customers with our service. 
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The price of one of our major products, electricity, and/or one of our major expenses, fuel, may be volatile. 
 
Volatility in market prices for electricity and fuel may result from: 
 

• severe or unexpected weather conditions; 
• seasonality; 
• changes in electricity usage; 
• the current diminished liquidity in the wholesale power markets, as well as any future illiquidity in these or other 

markets; 
• transmission or transportation constraints, inoperability or inefficiencies; 
• availability of competitively priced alternative energy sources; 
• changes in supply and demand for energy commodities; 
• changes in power production capacity; 
• outages at Minnesota Power’s generating facilities or those of our competitors; 
• changes in production and storage levels of natural gas, lignite, coal, and crude oil and refined products; 
• natural disasters, wars, sabotage, terrorist acts and other catastrophic events; and 
• federal, state, local and foreign energy, environmental, and other regulation and legislation. 

 
Since fluctuations in fuel expense related to our regulated utility operations are passed on to customers through our fuel 
clause, risk of volatility in market prices for fuel and electricity mainly impacts our nonregulated operations at this time. 
 
We are dependent on good labor relations. 
 
We believe our relations to be good with our approximately 1,500 employees. Approximately 700 of these employees are 
members of either the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 31 or Local 1593. Failure to successfully 
renegotiate labor agreements could adversely affect the services we provide and our results of operations. The labor 
agreements with Local 31 expire on January 31, 2006. The labor agreement with Local 1593 at BNI Coal ends on 
March 31, 2005, and negotiations are under way for a new contract. 
 
A downturn in economic conditions could adversely affect our real estate business. 
 
The ability of our real estate business to generate revenue is directly related to the Florida real estate market, the national 
and local economy in general, and changes in interest rates. While real estate market conditions have remained healthy in 
our regions of development, continued demand for land is dependent on long-term prospects for strong, in-migration 
population expansion. 
 
Over the last several years, investors have increasingly utilized real estate as an investment. Florida real estate has 
particularly benefited from this trend, creating demand for our land. If this trend were to lessen, the demand for our land 
could decline, potentially impacting selling prices. 
 
We are exposed to risks associated with real estate development. 
 
Our real estate development activities entail risks that include construction delays or cost overruns, which may increase 
project development costs. 
 
In addition, our real estate development activities require significant capital expenditures. We obtain funds for our capital 
expenditures through cash flow from operations and financings. We cannot be sure that the funds available from these 
sources will be sufficient to fund our required or desired capital expenditures for development. If we are unable to obtain 
sufficient funds, we may have to defer or otherwise limit our development activities. If we are unsuccessful in our selling 
efforts, we may not be able to recover these capital expenditures. 
 
Our real estate business is subject to extensive regulation, which makes it difficult and expensive for us to 
conduct our operations. 
 
Development of real property in Florida entails an extensive approval process involving overlapping regulatory 
jurisdictions. Real estate projects must generally comply with the provisions of the Local Government Comprehensive 
Planning and Land Development Regulation Act (Growth Management Act). In addition, development projects that exceed 
certain specified regulatory thresholds require approval of a comprehensive Development of Regional Impact (DRI) 
application. Compliance with the Growth Management Act and the DRI process is usually lengthy and costly and can be 
expected to materially affect our real estate development activities.  
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The Growth Management Act requires counties and cities to adopt comprehensive plans guiding and controlling future 
real property development in their respective jurisdictions. After a local government adopts its comprehensive plan, all 
development orders and development permits must be consistent with the plan. Each plan must address such topics as 
future land use, capital improvements, traffic circulation, sanitation, sewerage, potable water, drainage and solid waste 
disposal. The local governments’ comprehensive plans must also establish “levels of service” with respect to certain 
specified public facilities and services to residents. Local governments are prohibited from issuing development orders or 
permits if facilities and services are not operating at established levels of service, or if the projects for which permits are 
requested will reduce the level of service for public facilities below the level of service established in the local 
government’s comprehensive plan. If the proposed development would reduce the established level of services below the 
level set by the plan, the development order will require that, at the outset of the project, the developer either sufficiently 
improve the services to meet the required level or provide financial assurances that the additional services will be 
provided as the project progresses.  
 
The Growth Management Act, in some instances, can significantly affect the ability of developers to obtain local 
government approval in Florida. In many areas, infrastructure funding has not kept pace with growth. As a result, 
substandard facilities and services can delay or prevent the issuance of permits. Consequently, the Growth Management 
Act could adversely affect our ability to develop our real estate projects.  
 
The DRI review process includes an evaluation of a project’s impact on the environment, infrastructure and government 
services, and requires the involvement of numerous state and local environmental, zoning and community development 
agencies. Local government approval of any DRI is subject to appeal to the Governor and Cabinet by the Florida 
Department of Community Affairs, and adverse decisions by the Governor or Cabinet are subject to judicial appeal. The 
DRI approval process is usually lengthy and costly, and conditions, standards or requirements may be imposed on a 
developer with respect to a particular project, which may materially increase the cost of the project. The DRI approval 
process is expected to have a material impact on our real estate development activities in the future. 
 
Environmental and other regulations may have an adverse effect on our real estate business. 
 
A substantial portion of our development properties in Florida is subject to federal, state, and local regulations and 
restrictions that may impose significant costs or limitations on our ability to develop our properties. Much of our property is 
vacant land and some is located in areas where development may affect the natural habitats of various protected wildlife 
species or in sensitive environmental areas such as wetlands. 
 
Risks associated with acquisitions may hinder our ability to increase revenue and earnings.  
 
The energy industry is considered a mature industry in which low, single-digit growth is expected in industry unit sales. 
Accordingly, our future growth depends in large part on our ability to increase our volumes relative to our competition, 
acquire additional businesses, replenish land inventories for our real estate business, manage expansion, control costs in 
our operations, introduce new services and consolidate future acquisitions into existing operations. In pursuing a strategy 
of acquiring other businesses, we face risks commonly encountered with growth through acquisitions. These risks include, 
but are not limited to: 
 

• incurring significantly higher capital expenditures and operating expenses;  
• failing to assimilate the operations and personnel of the acquired businesses;  
• entering new, unfamiliar markets;  
• potential undiscovered liabilities at acquired businesses;  
• disrupting our ongoing business;  
• diverting our limited management resources;  
• failing to maintain uniform standards, controls and policies; 
• impairing relationships with employees and customers as a result of changes in management; and 
• increasing expenses for accounting and computer systems, as well as integration difficulties.  

 
We may not adequately anticipate all of the demands that our growth will impose on our systems, procedures and 
structures, including our financial and reporting control systems, data processing systems and management structure. If 
we cannot adequately anticipate and respond to these demands, our business could be materially harmed. 
 
Although we conduct what we believe to be a prudent level of investigation regarding the operating condition of the 
businesses we purchase, in light of the circumstances of each transaction, an unavoidable level of risk remains regarding 
the actual operating condition of these businesses. Until we actually assume operating control of such business assets, 
we may not be able to ascertain the actual value of the acquired entity. 
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We can offer you no assurances that we will be able to execute an acquisition strategy without the costs of future 
acquisitions escalating. 
 
Although there are potential acquisition candidates that fit our acquisition criteria, we are not certain that we will be able to 
consummate any such transactions in the future or identify those candidates that would result in the most successful 
combinations, or that future acquisitions will be able to be consummated at acceptable prices and terms. In addition, 
increased competition for acquisition candidates could result in fewer acquisition opportunities for us and higher 
acquisition prices. The magnitude, timing, pricing and nature of future acquisitions will depend upon various factors, 
including: 
 

• the availability of suitable acquisition candidates;  
• competition with other industry groups or new industry consolidators for suitable acquisitions;  
• the negotiation of acceptable terms;  
• our financial capabilities; 
• the availability of skilled employees to manage the acquired companies; and  
• general economic and business conditions.  

 
Our credit ratings could be revised downward.  
 
The current credit ratings for our long-term debt are investment grade. A rating reflects only the view of a rating agency, 
and it is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. Any rating can be revised upward or downward at any time 
by a rating agency if such rating agency decides that circumstances warrant such a change. If Standard & Poor’s or 
Moody’s were to downgrade our long-term ratings, particularly below investment grade, borrowing costs would increase 
and the potential pool of investors and funding sources would likely decrease.  
 
We rely heavily on technology to automate and maximize the efficiencies of our businesses. Technology is 
constantly evolving and in order for us to remain competitive we will embrace new technologies as they become 
proven and are economically viable. 
 
Technology is an integral part of the operating and administrative functions of our businesses. The information systems 
and processes necessary to support business areas such as risk management, sales, customer service, and procurement 
and supply are complex and are constantly evolving. To successfully compete in our businesses, we must adapt to the 
evolving market by continually improving the responsiveness, functionality, and features of our services and systems to 
meet our customers’ and other stakeholders’ needs. Increased automation through proven, economically viable 
technologies is among the primary tools that we use to enhance our competitive position; without these technologies, our 
businesses would not be able to safely operate or adequately respond to customer and other stakeholder needs. 
 
Tax reserves and the recoverability of our deferred tax assets may have a significant impact on our results of 
operations. 
 
We are required to make judgments regarding the potential tax effects of various financial transactions and our ongoing 
operations to estimate our obligations to taxing authorities. These tax obligations include income, real estate, use and 
employment-related taxes. These judgments include reserves for potential adverse outcomes regarding tax positions that 
we have taken. We must also assess our ability to generate capital gains to realize tax benefits associated with capital 
losses expected to be generated in future periods. Capital losses may be deducted only to the extent of capital gains 
realized during the year of the loss or during the three prior or five succeeding years. As of December 31, 2004, we have, 
where appropriate, recorded an allowance against our deferred tax assets associated with impairment losses, which will 
become capital losses when realized for income tax purposes. The ultimate outcome of such matters could result in 
adjustments to our consolidated financial statements and such adjustments could be material. 
 
Adequate insurance protection may not be cost effective or available to minimize risk. 
 
Insurance, warranties or performance guarantees may not cover any or all of the lost revenue or increased expenses, 
including the cost of replacement power. Likewise, our ability to obtain insurance, and the cost of and coverage provided 
by such insurance, could be affected by events outside our control. 
 
If we are not able to retain our executive officers and key employees, we may not be able to implement our 
business strategy and our business could suffer.  
 
The success of our business heavily depends on the leadership of our executive officers, all of whom are employees-at-
will and none of whom are subject to any agreements not to compete. If we lose the service of one or more of our 
executive officers or key employees, or if one or more of them decides to join a competitor or otherwise compete directly 
or indirectly with us, we may not be able to successfully manage our business or achieve our business objectives. We 
may have difficulty in retaining and attracting customers, developing new services, negotiating favorable agreements with 
customers and providing acceptable levels of customer service. 
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 
 
See Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition – Market Risk for 
information related to quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk. 
 
 
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
 
See our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2004, and supplementary data, also included, which are indexed in Item 15(a). 
 
 
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 
 
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal 
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under 
Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based on this 
evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.  
 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as 
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, 
including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of 
our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework 
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting 
was effective as of December 31, 2004.  
 
Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2004, has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in 
their report which is included herein.  
 
 
Item 9B. Other Information 
 
On December 14, 2004, ALLETE entered into a committed, syndicated, unsecured, revolving credit facility with LaSalle 
Bank, National Association for $100 million (Line). The Line matures on December 14, 2007. The Line may be used by 
ALLETE for general corporate purposes, working capital and to provide liquidity in support of the ALLETE’s commercial 
paper program. ALLETE may prepay amounts outstanding under the Line in whole or in part at its discretion. Additionally, 
ALLETE may irrevocably terminate or reduce the size of the Line prior to maturity. 
 
ALLETE has agreed to certain financial covenants related to the Line. The most restrictive covenants require ALLETE 
(1) to not exceed a maximum ratio of funded debt to total capital of .65 to 1.00; and (2) to maintain an interest coverage 
ratio of not less than 3.00 to 1.00. The Line also contains a cross-default provision, under which an event of default would 
arise if other ALLETE obligations in excess of $5.0 million were in default. (See Note 8.) 
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Part III 
 
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 
 
Unless otherwise stated, the information required for this Item is incorporated by reference herein from our Proxy 
Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (2005 Proxy Statement) under the following headings: 
 

• Directors. The information regarding directors will be included in the “Election of Directors” section; 

• Audit Committee Financial Expert. The information regarding the audit committee financial expert will be 
included in the “Report of the Audit Committee” section; 

• Audit Committee Members. The identity of the audit committee members is included in the “Report of the Audit 
Committee” section; 

• Executive Officers. The information regarding executive officers is included in Part I of this Form 10-K; and 

• Section 16(a) Compliance. The information regarding Section 16(a) compliance will be included in the “Section 
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” section. 

 
Our 2005 Proxy Statement will be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our 2004 fiscal year. 
 
Code of Ethics. We have adopted a written Code of Ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our chief 
executive officer, chief financial officer and controller. A copy of our Code of Ethics is available on our website at 
www.allete.com and print copies are available upon request without charge. Any amendment to the Code of Ethics or any 
waiver of the Code of Ethics will be disclosed on our website at www.allete.com promptly following the date of such 
amendment or waiver. 
 
Corporate Governance. The following documents are available on our website at www.allete.com and print copies are 
available upon request: 
 

• Corporate Governance Guidelines; 

• Audit Committee Charter; 

• Executive Compensation Committee Charter; and 

• Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee Charter. 
 
Any amendment to these documents will be disclosed on our website at www.allete.com promptly following the date of 
such amendment. 
 
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation 
 
The information required for this Item is incorporated by reference herein from the “Compensation of Executive Officers” 
and the “Director Compensation” sections in our 2005 Proxy Statement. 
 
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
 Matters 
 
The information required for this Item is incorporated by reference herein from the “Security Ownership of Certain 
Beneficial Owners and Management” and the “Equity Compensation Plan Information” sections in our 2005 Proxy 
Statement. 
 
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
 
None. 
 
 
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
 
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein from the “Report of the Audit Committee” section 
in our 2005 Proxy Statement. 
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Part IV 
 
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 
 
(a) Certain Documents Filed as Part of this Form 10-K. 
 
(1) Financial Statements Page 
  ALLETE 
  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ......................................................................... 47 
  Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2004 and 2003 ................................................................... 48 
  For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2004 
   Consolidated Statement of Income ....................................................................................................... 49 
   Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ................................................................................................ 50 
   Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity.................................................................................. 51 
  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............................................................................................... 52–76 
 
(2) Financial Statement Schedules 
  Schedule II – ALLETE Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves................................................... 77 
 

All other schedules have been omitted either because the information is not required to be reported by ALLETE or 
because the information is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes. 

 
(3) Exhibits including those incorporated by reference. 
 
Exhibit Number 
 
 *2 - Stock Purchase Agreement (without Exhibits and Schedules), dated November 20, 2003, by and 

between Philadelphia Suburban Corporation (now Aqua America, Inc.), as Purchaser, and ALLETE 
Water Services, Inc., as Shareholder, related to the sale of Heater Utilities, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 2(b) to 
the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 *3(a)1 - Articles of Incorporation, amended and restated as of May 8, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to the March 31, 
2001 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 

 *3(a)2 - Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective 12:00 p.m. Eastern Time on September 20, 2004 (filed 
as Exhibit 3 to the September 21, 2004 Form 8-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 *3(a)3 - Amendment to Certificate of Assumed Name, filed with the Minnesota Secretary of State on May 8, 
2001 (filed as Exhibit 3(a) to the March 31, 2001 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 

 *3(b) - Bylaws, as amended effective August 24, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 3 to the August 25, 2004 Form 8-K, File 
No. 1-3548). 

 *4(a)1 - Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of September 1, 1945, between Minnesota Power & Light 
Company (now ALLETE) and The Bank of New York (formerly Irving Trust Company) and Douglas J. 
MacInnes (successor to Richard H. West), Trustees (filed as Exhibit 7(c), File No. 2-5865). 

 *4(a)2  - Supplemental Indentures to ALLETE’s Mortgage and Deed of Trust: 
 Number Dated as of Reference File Exhibit 
 First March 1, 1949 2-7826 7(b) 
 Second July 1, 1951 2-9036 7(c) 
 Third March 1, 1957 2-13075 2(c) 
 Fourth January 1, 1968 2-27794 2(c) 
 Fifth April 1, 1971 2-39537 2(c) 
 Sixth August 1, 1975 2-54116 2(c) 
 Seventh September 1, 1976 2-57014 2(c) 
 Eighth September 1, 1977 2-59690 2(c) 
 Ninth April 1, 1978 2-60866 2(c) 
 Tenth August 1, 1978 2-62852 2(d)2 
 Eleventh December 1, 1982 2-56649 4(a)3 
 Twelfth April 1, 1987 33-30224 4(a)3 
 Thirteenth March 1, 1992 33-47438 4(b) 
 Fourteenth June 1, 1992 33-55240 4(b) 
 Fifteenth July 1, 1992 33-55240 4(c) 
 Sixteenth July 1, 1992 33-55240 4(d) 
 Seventeenth February 1, 1993 33-50143 4(b) 
 Eighteenth July 1, 1993 33-50143 4(c) 
 Nineteenth February 1, 1997 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(a)3 
 Twentieth November 1, 1997 1-3548 (1997 Form 10-K) 4(a)3 
 Twenty-first October 1, 2000 333-54330 4(c)3 
 Twenty-second July 1, 2003 1-3548 (June 30, 2003 Form 10-Q) 4 
 Twenty-third August 1, 2004 1-3548 (Sept. 30, 2004 Form 10-Q) 4(a) 
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Exhibit Number 
 
 *4(b)1 - Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2004, between the City of Cohasset, Minnesota and U.S. Bank 

National Association, as Trustee relating to $111 Million Collateralized Pollution Control Refunding 
Revenue Bonds (filed as Exhibit 4(b) to the September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 

 *4(b)2 - Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2004, between the City of Cohasset, Minnesota and ALLETE 
relating to $111 Million Collateralized Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds (filed as Exhibit 4(c) 
to the September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).  

 *4(c)1 - Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of March 1, 1943, between Superior Water, Light and Power 
Company and Chemical Bank & Trust Company and Howard B. Smith, as Trustees, both succeeded by 
U.S. Bank Trust N.A., as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 7(c), File No. 2-8668). 

 *4(c)2 - Supplemental Indentures to Superior Water, Light and Power Company’s Mortgage and Deed of Trust: 
 Number Dated as of Reference File Exhibit 
 First March 1, 1951 2-59690 2(d)(1) 
 Second March 1, 1962 2-27794 2(d)1 
 Third July 1, 1976 2-57478 2(e)1 
 Fourth March 1, 1985 2-78641 4(b) 
 Fifth December 1, 1992 1-3548 (1992 Form 10-K) 4(b)1 
 Sixth March 24, 1994 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(b)1 
 Seventh November 1, 1994 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(b)2 
 Eighth January 1, 1997 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(b)3 
 *4(d)1 - Rights Agreement, dated as of July 24, 1996, between Minnesota Power & Light Company (now 

ALLETE) and the Corporate Secretary of the Company, as Rights Agent (filed as Exhibit 4 to the 
August 2, 1996 Form 8-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 *4(d)2 - Certificate of Adjustment to the Rights Agreement as amended, dated as of July 24, 1996, between 
Minnesota Power & Light Company (now ALLETE) and the Corporate Secretary of the Company, as 
Rights Agent (filed as Exhibit 4(d) to the September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 

 *10(a) - Power Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of May 29, 1998, between Minnesota Power, Inc. (now 
ALLETE) and Square Butte Electric Cooperative (filed as Exhibit 10 to the June 30, 1998 Form 10-Q, 
File No. 1-3548). 

 *10(b) - Amended and Restated Withdrawal Agreement (without Exhibits and Schedules), dated January 30, 
2004, by and between Great River Energy and Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) (filed as Exhibit 10(p) 
to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 10(c) - Master Agreement (without Appendices and Exhibits), dated December 28, 2004, by and between 
Rainy River Energy Corporation and Constellation Energy Commodities Group, Inc. 

 *10(d)1 - Third Amended and Restated Committed Facility Letter (without Exhibits), dated December 23, 2003, to 
ALLETE from LaSalle Bank National Association, as Agent (filed as Exhibit 10(s) to the 2003 Form 
10-K, File No. 1-3548).  

 10(d)2 - First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Committed Facility Letter, dated December 14, 2004, 
by and among ALLETE and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Agent.  

 *10(e) - Master Separation Agreement, dated June 4, 2004, between ALLETE, Inc. and ADESA, Inc. (filed as 
Exhibit 10.1 to ADESA, Inc.’s June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-32198). 

 +*10(f)1 - Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Executive Annual Incentive Plan, as amended, effective January 1, 
1999 with amendments through January 2003 (filed as Exhibit 10 to the September 30, 2003 Form 
10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 

 +*10(f)2 - November 2003 Amendment to the ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(t)2 to 
the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 +*10(f)3 - July 2004 Amendment to the ALLETE Executive Annual Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(a) to the 
June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 

 +*10(g) - ALLETE and Affiliated Companies Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated, 
effective January 1, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10(u) to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 +*10(h)1 - Executive Investment Plan I, as amended and restated, effective November 1, 1988 (filed as Exhibit 
10(c) to the 1988 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 +*10(h)2 - Amendments through December 2003 to the Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Executive 
Investment Plan I (filed as Exhibit 10(v)2 to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 

 +*10(h)3 - July 2004 Amendment to the Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Executive Investment Plan I 
(filed as Exhibit 10(b) to the June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).  
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Exhibit Number 
 
 +*10(i)1 - Executive Investment Plan II, as amended and restated, effective November 1, 1988 (filed as Exhibit 

10(d) to the 1988 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(i)2 - Amendments through December 2003 to the Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Executive 

Investment Plan II (filed as Exhibit 10(w)2 to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(i)3 - July 2004 Amendment to the Minnesota Power and Affiliated Companies Executive Investment Plan II 

(filed as Exhibit 10(c) to the June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).  
 +*10(j) - Deferred Compensation Trust Agreement, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 1989 (filed as 

Exhibit 10(f) to the 1988 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(k)1 - Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, effective 

January 1, 1996 (filed as Exhibit 10(a) to the June 30, 1996 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(k)2 - Amendments through January 2003 to the Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Executive Long-Term 

Incentive Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(z)2 to the 2002 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(k)3 - July 2004 Amendment to the ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (filed as 

Exhibit 10(d) to the June 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 
 +10(k)4 - Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Grant. 
 +10(k)5 - Form of ALLETE Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Performance Share Grant. 
 +*10(l)1 - Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Director Stock Plan, effective January 1, 1995 (filed as Exhibit 10 to 

the March 31, 1995 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(l)2  - Amendments through December 2003 to the Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Director Stock Plan (filed 

as Exhibit 10(z)2 to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(l)3 - July 2004 Amendment to the ALLETE Director Stock Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(e) to the June 30, 2004 

Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 
+*10(m)1 - Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Director Compensation Deferral Plan Amended and Restated, 

effective January 1, 1990 (filed as Exhibit 10(ac) to the 2002 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
+*10(m)2 - October 2003 Amendment to the Minnesota Power (now ALLETE) Director Compensation Deferral Plan 

(filed as Exhibit 10(aa)2 to the 2003 Form 10-K, File No. 1-3548). 
 +*10(n) - ALLETE Director Compensation Trust Agreement, effective October 11, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10(a) to 

the September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548). 
 12 - Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 
 *21 - Subsidiaries of the Registrant (reference is made to ALLETE’s Form U-3A-2 for the year ended 

December 31, 2004, File No. 69-78). 
 23(a) - Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 
 23(b) - Consent of General Counsel. 
 31(a) - Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
 31(b) - Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
 32 - Section 1350 Certification of Annual Report by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
 
We are a party to other long-term debt instruments that, pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 601(b)(4)(iii), are not filed as 
exhibits since the total amount of debt authorized under each such omitted instrument does not exceed 10% of our total 
consolidated assets. These instruments include the following: 
 

• $38,995,000 City of Cohasset, Minnesota, Variable Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds (ALLETE,  
formerly Minnesota Power & Light Company, Project) Series 1997A, Series 1997B, Series 1997C and 
Series 1997D. 

• $35,105,000 Collier County Industrial Development Authority, 6.50% Industrial Development Refunding 
Revenue Bonds (Florida Water Services Corporation, formerly Southern States Utilities, Inc., Project) 
Series 1996. 

 
We will furnish copies of these instruments to the SEC upon its request. 
     
* Incorporated herein by reference as indicated. 
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to Item 15(c) of 

Form 10-K. 
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Signatures 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
   ALLETE, Inc. 
  
 
Dated: February 11, 2005 By  /s/ Donald J. Shippar  
   Donald J. Shippar 
   President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 
 
 Signature Title Date 
 
 
 
 /s/ Donald J. Shippar  President, Chief Executive Officer February 11, 2005 
 Donald J. Shippar  and Director 
 
 
 /s/ James K. Vizanko  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 11, 2005 
 James K. Vizanko   
 
 
 /s/ Mark A. Schober  Senior Vice President and Controller February 11, 2005 
 Mark A. Schober 
 
 
 /s/ Heidi J. Eddins  Director February 11, 2005 
 Heidi J. Eddins 
 
 
 /s/ Peter J. Johnson  Director February 11, 2005 
 Peter J. Johnson 
 
 
 /s/ Madeleine W. Ludlow  Director February 11, 2005 
 Madeleine W. Ludlow 
 
 
 /s/ George L. Mayer  Director February 11, 2005 
 George L. Mayer 
 
 
 /s/ Roger D. Peirce  Director February 11, 2005 
 Roger D. Peirce 
 
 
 /s/ Jack I. Rajala  Director February 11, 2005 
 Jack I. Rajala 
 
 
 /s/ Nick Smith  Director February 11, 2005 
 Nick Smith 
 
 
 /s/ Bruce W. Stender  Chairman and Director February 11, 2005 
 Bruce W. Stender 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ALLETE, Inc.:  
We have completed an integrated audit of ALLETE, Inc.’s 2004 consolidated financial statements and of its internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our 
opinions, based on our audits, are presented below. 
 
Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule  
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of ALLETE, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule 
listed in the accompanying index under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth 
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and 
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of 
these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, in 2004 the Company changed its method of accounting for 
investments in limited liability companies in accordance with EITF 03-16, “Accounting for Investments in Limited Liability 
Companies.”  
 
Internal control over financial reporting 
 
Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those 
criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework 
issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the 
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding 
of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.  
 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.  
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
 
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
February 7, 2005 
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Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
 
ALLETE Consolidated Balance Sheet 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Assets  
Current Assets 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 194.1 $ 110.2 
 Restricted Cash  30.3   – 
 Accounts Receivable (Less Allowance of $2.0 and $1.3)  86.1  63.4 
 Inventories  34.0  31.8 
 Prepayments and Other  21.6  17.9 
 Discontinued Operations  2.0  476.7 
 
  Total Current Assets  368.1  700.0  
Property, Plant and Equipment – Net  883.1  919.3  
Investments  124.5  175.7  
Other Assets  52.8  59.0  
Discontinued Operations  2.9  1,247.3 
 
Total Assets $ 1,431.4 $ 3,101.3 
 
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  
Liabilities  
Current Liabilities 
 Accounts Payable $ 40.0  $ 38.5 
 Accrued Taxes   23.3   18.3 
 Accrued Interest  6.9   11.5 
 Notes Payable   –  53.0 
 Long-Term Debt Due Within One Year  1.8   35.6 
 Other   24.7   28.6 
 Discontinued Operations  12.0   340.7 
 
  Total Current Liabilities  108.7   526.2  
Long-Term Debt  390.2   514.7  
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes  143.9   150.8  
Other Liabilities  158.1   154.6  
Discontinued Operations   –  294.8  
Commitments and Contingencies 
 
  Total Liabilities  800.9   1,641.1 
 
Shareholders’ Equity  
Common Stock Without Par Value, 43.3 Shares Authorized 
 29.7 and 29.1 Shares Outstanding  400.1   859.2  
Unearned ESOP Shares  (51.4)  (45.4)  
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss – Continuing Operations  (11.4)  (9.0)  
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Gain – Discontinued Operations   –  23.5  
Retained Earnings  293.2   631.9 
 
  Total Shareholders’ Equity  630.5   1,460.2 
 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 1,431.4  $ 3,101.3 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Income 
 
For the Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions Except Per Share Amounts 
 
Operating Revenue $751.4 $692.3 $643.0 
 
Operating Expenses 
 Fuel and Purchased Power 287.9 252.5 234.8 
 Operating and Maintenance 285.1 263.1 250.9 
 Depreciation 49.7 51.2 48.9 
 Taxes Other than Income 28.9 29.4 30.2 
 
  Total Operating Expenses 651.6 596.2 564.8 
 
Operating Income from Continuing Operations 99.8 96.1 78.2 
 
Other Income (Expense) 
 Interest Expense (31.8) (50.6) (49.3) 
 Other (12.1) 2.5 8.1 
 
  Total Other Expense (43.9) (48.1) (41.2) 
 
Income from Continuing Operations 
 Before Income Taxes 55.9 48.0 37.0 
 
Income Tax Expense 16.8 18.2 12.3 
 
Income from Continuing Operations Before 
 Change in Accounting Principle 39.1 29.8 24.7 
 
Income from Discontinued Operations – Net of Tax 73.1 206.6 112.5 
 
Change in Accounting Principle – Net of Tax (7.8)  –  – 
 
Net Income $104.4 $236.4 $137.2 
 
Average Shares of Common Stock 
 Basic 28.3 27.6 27.0 
 Diluted 28.4 27.8 27.2 
 
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock 
 Continuing Operations $1.39 $1.08 $0.91 
 Discontinued Operations 2.58 7.48 4.16 
 Change in Accounting Principle (0.28)  –  – 
 
  $3.69 $8.56 $5.07 
 
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock 
 Continuing Operations $1.37 $1.08 $0.91 
 Discontinued Operations 2.57 7.44 4.13 
 Change in Accounting Principle (0.27)  –  – 
 
  $3.67 $8.52 $5.04 
 
Dividends Per Share of Common Stock $2.8425 $3.39 $3.30 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
 
For the Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
Operating Activities 
 Income from Continuing Operations $ 31.3 $ 29.8 $ 24.7 
 Change in Accounting Principle  7.8   –   – 
 Depreciation  49.7  51.2  48.9 
 Deferred Income Taxes  (1.9)  10.8  9.4 
 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 
  Accounts Receivable  (22.7)  15.1  4.1 
  Trading Securities   –  1.8  153.8 
  Inventories  (2.2)  0.2  (4.3) 
  Prepayments and Other  (3.7)  (1.6)  (5.1) 
  Accounts Payable  1.5  6.5  (1.7) 
  Other Current Liabilities  (3.5)  4.6  (17.2) 
 Other Assets  6.2  (0.6)  6.0 
 Other Liabilities  (0.2)  0.2  7.9 
 Net Operating Activities from Discontinued Operations  106.2  129.4  227.0 
 
   Cash from Operating Activities  168.5  247.4  453.5 
 
Investing Activities 
 Proceeds from Sale of Available-For-Sale Securities  1.6  7.4  1.9 
 Changes to Investments  18.9  (16.6)  (24.9) 
 Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment  (63.0)  (73.6)  (86.6) 
 Other   2.3  4.3  1.9 
 Net Investing Activities from (for) Discontinued Operations  69.4  288.8  (137.1) 
 
   Cash from (for) Investing Activities  29.2  210.3  (244.8) 
 
Financing Activities 
 Issuance of Common Stock  49.0  44.3  43.2 
 Issuance of Long-Term Debt  9.8  37.3  16.4 
 Reacquired Common Stock  (5.8)   –   – 
 Changes in Notes Payable – Net  (53.0)  (20.8)  (163.4) 
 Reductions of Long-Term Debt  (130.1)  (335.7)  (8.1) 
 Dividends on Common Stock  (79.7)  (93.2)  (89.2) 
 Redemption of Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities   –  (75.0)   – 
 Net Financing Activities for Discontinued Operations  (18.9)  (27.6)  (41.5) 
 
   Cash for Financing Activities  (228.7)  (470.7)  (242.6) 
 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash – Discontinued Operations   –  39.2  2.7 
 
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (31.0)  26.2  (31.2)  
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period  226.3  200.1  231.3 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period (a) $ 195.3 $ 226.3 $ 200.1 
 
Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
 Cash Paid During the Period for 
  Interest – Net of Capitalized $46.7  $69.2 $71.9 
  Income Taxes $75.7  $87.4 $49.2 
 
(a) Included $1.2 million of cash from Discontinued Operations at December 31, 2004 ($116.1 million at December 31, 2003; 

$138.0 million at December 31, 2002). 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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ALLETE Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity 
 
   Accumulated 
 Total  Other Unearned  
 Shareholders’ Retained Comprehensive ESOP Common 
 Equity Earnings Income (Loss) Shares Stock 
Millions 
 
Balance at December 31, 2001 $1,143.8 $440.7 $(14.5) $(52.7) $770.3 
 
Comprehensive Income 
 Net Income  137.2 137.2 
 Other Comprehensive Income – Net of Tax 
  Unrealized Gains on Securities – Net  (8.1)  (8.1) 
  Interest Rate Swap  1.3  1.3 
  Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments  2.6  2.6 
  Additional Pension Liability  (3.5)  (3.5) 
   Total Comprehensive Income  129.5 
 
Common Stock Issued – Net  44.6    44.6 
 
Dividends Declared  (89.2) (89.2) 
 
ESOP Shares Earned  3.7   3.7 
 
Balance at December 31, 2002  1,232.4 488.7 (22.2) (49.0) 814.9 
 
Comprehensive Income 
 Net Income  236.4 236.4 
 Other Comprehensive Income – Net of Tax 
  Unrealized Gains on Securities – Net   3.6  3.6 
  Interest Rate Swap  0.2  0.2 
  Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments  39.2  39.2 
  Additional Pension Liability  (6.3)  (6.3) 
   Total Comprehensive Income  273.1 
 
Common Stock Issued – Net  44.3    44.3 
 
Dividends Declared  (93.2) (93.2) 
 
ESOP Shares Earned  3.6   3.6 
 
Balance at December 31, 2003  1,460.2 631.9 14.5 (45.4) 859.2 
 
Comprehensive Income 
 Net Income  104.4 104.4 
 Other Comprehensive Income – Net of Tax 
  Unrealized Gains on Securities – Net   0.7  0.7 
  Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments  (23.5)  (23.5) 
  Additional Pension Liability  (3.1)  (3.1) 
   Total Comprehensive Income  78.5 
 
Common Stock Issued – Net  43.2    43.2 
 
ADESA IPO  70.1    70.1 
 
Spin-Off of ADESA  (963.6) (363.4)   (600.2) 
 
Receipt of ADESA Stock by ESOP  54.3   26.5 27.8 
 
Purchase of ALLETE Shares by ESOP  (35.6)   (35.6) 
 
Dividends Declared  (79.7) (79.7) 
 
ESOP Shares Earned  3.1   3.1 
 
Balance at December 31, 2004 $ 630.5 $293.2 $(11.4) $(51.4) $400.1 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Note 1. Business Segments 
   Nonregulated 
  Regulated Energy Real 
For the Year Ended December 31 Consolidated Utility Operations Estate Other 

Millions 
 
2004 
 
Operating Revenue $751.4   $555.0 $106.8 $41.9 $ 47.7 
Fuel and Purchased Power 287.9   246.8  41.1  –   – 
Other Operating Expenses 314.0   181.9  59.3 16.4  56.4 
Depreciation Expense 49.7   39.5  7.2 0.1  2.9 
 
Operating Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 99.8   86.8  (0.8) 25.4  (11.6) 
Interest Expense (31.8)  (18.5)  (1.5) (0.3)  (11.5) 
Other Income (Expense) (12.1)  0.1  0.6  –  (12.8) 
 
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 
 Before Income Taxes 55.9   68.4  (1.7) 25.1  (35.9) 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 16.8   25.6  (1.4) 10.4  (17.8) 
 
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 39.1  $ 42.8 $ (0.3) $14.7 $ (18.1) 

 
Income from Discontinued Operations – Net of Tax 73.1  
Change in Accounting Principle – Net of Tax (7.8)   
Net Income $104.4 
 
Total Assets $1,431.4 (a) $902.8 $161.4 $75.1 $287.2  
Capital Expenditures $79.2 (a) $41.7 $15.7  – $5.6  
 
2003 
 
Operating Revenue $692.3  $ 510.0 $ 106.6 $42.6 $ 33.1 
Fuel and Purchased Power 252.5   212.5  40.0  –   – 
Other Operating Expenses 292.5   176.5  53.4 18.1  44.5 
Depreciation Expense 51.2   41.2  7.4 0.1  2.5 
 
Operating Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 96.1   79.8  5.8 24.4  (13.9) 
Interest Expense (50.6)  (20.4)  (1.8) (0.2)  (28.2) 
Other Income (Expense) 2.5   2.9  1.9  –  (2.3) 
 
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations   
 Before Income Taxes 48.0   62.3  5.9 24.2  (44.4) 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 18.2   24.4  2.2 10.1  (18.5) 
 
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 29.8  $ 37.9 $ 3.7 $14.1 $ (25.9) 

 
Income from Discontinued Operations – Net of Tax 206.6   
Net Income $236.4 
 
Total Assets $3,101.3 (a) $917.3 $194.7 $78.6 $186.7  
Capital Expenditures $136.3 (a) $42.2 $26.5  – $4.9  
 
2002 
 
Operating Revenue $643.0  $ 497.9 $ 84.7 $33.6  $ 26.8 
Fuel and Purchased Power 234.8   206.7  28.1  –   – 
Other Operating Expenses 281.1   156.5  66.3 15.4  42.9 
Depreciation Expense 48.9   40.5  6.2 0.1  2.1 
 
Operating Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 78.2   94.2  (15.9) 18.1  (18.2) 
Interest Expense (49.3)  (20.6)  (0.3)  –  (28.4) 
Other Income (Expense) 8.1   7.7  0.6  –  (0.2) 
 
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 
 Before Income Taxes 37.0   81.3  (15.6) 18.1  (46.8) 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 12.3   30.9  (6.9) 6.9  (18.6) 
 
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 24.7  $ 50.4 $ (8.7) $11.2  $(28.2) 

 
Income from Discontinued Operations – Net of Tax 112.5   
Net Income $137.2 
 
Total Assets $3,147.2 (a) $902.8 $170.1 $84.1 $147.1  
Capital Expenditures $201.2 (a) $33.6 $42.1  – $10.9  
 
(a)  Discontinued Operations represented $4.9 million of total assets in 2004 ($1,724.0 million in 2003; $1,843.1 million in 2002) and 

$16.2 million of capital expenditures in 2004 ($62.7 million in 2003; $114.6 million in 2002). 
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Note 2.  Operations and Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Financial Statement Preparation. References in this report to “we,” “us” and “our” are to ALLETE and its subsidiaries, 
collectively. We prepare our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. These principles require management to make informed judgments, best estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
Principles of Consolidation. Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ALLETE and all of our 
majority-owned subsidiary companies. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. Information for prior periods has been reclassified to present comparable information for all periods. 
 
Business Segments. Our Regulated Utility, Nonregulated Energy Operations and Real Estate segments were 
determined based on products and services provided. We measure performance of our operations through careful 
budgeting and monitoring of contributions to consolidated net income by each business segment. Discontinued 
Operations includes our Automotive Services business that was spun off in September 2004, our Water Services 
businesses, the majority of which were sold in 2003, costs associated with the spin-off of ADESA incurred by ALLETE, 
and our retail stores, which we exited in 2002.  
 
Regulated Utility includes retail and wholesale rate-regulated electric, water and gas services in northeastern Minnesota 
and northwestern Wisconsin. Minnesota Power, an operating division of ALLETE, and SWL&P, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary, provide regulated utility electric service to 150,000 retail customers in northeastern Minnesota and 
northwestern Wisconsin. Approximately 45% of regulated utility electric revenue is from Large Power Customers (32% of 
consolidated revenue). Large Power Customers consist of five taconite producers, four paper and pulp mills, two pipeline 
companies and one manufacturer under all-requirements contracts with expiration dates extending from February 2006 
through April 2009. Revenue of $88.3 million (11.8% of consolidated revenue) was received from one taconite producer in 
2004 (less than 10% in 2003 and 2002). Regulated utility rates are under the jurisdiction of various state and federal 
regulatory authorities. Billings are rendered on a cycle basis. Revenue is accrued for service provided but not billed. 
Regulated utility electric rates include adjustment clauses that bill or credit customers for fuel and purchased energy costs 
above or below the base levels in rate schedules and that bill retail customers for the recovery of CIP expenditures not 
collected in base rates.  
 
Minnesota Power withdrew from Split Rock Energy, a joint venture with Great River Energy, in 2004. Upon withdrawal, we 
received a $12.0 million distribution in 2004. We accounted for our 50% ownership interest in Split Rock Energy under the 
equity method of accounting. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our pre-tax equity income from Split Rock Energy 
was less than $0.1 million ($2.9 million in 2003; $7.3 million in 2002). In 2004, prior to our withdrawal, we made power 
purchases from Split Rock Energy of $6.2 million ($50.9 million in 2003; $34.3 million in 2002) and power sales to Split 
Rock Energy of $1.9 million ($19.6 million in 2003; $14.5 million in 2002).  
 
Nonregulated Energy Operations includes nonregulated generation (non-rate base generation sold at market-based 
rates to the wholesale market), consisting primarily of generation from Taconite Harbor in northern Minnesota and 
generation secured through the Kendall County power purchase agreement. Subject to certain approvals, we expect to 
transfer the Kendall power purchase agreement to Constellation Energy Commodities in April 2005. (See Note 11.) 
Revenue for nonregulated generation is recognized under terms of contracts and as energy is delivered. Nonregulated 
Energy Operations also includes our coal mining activities in North Dakota. BNI Coal, a wholly-owned subsidiary, mines 
and sells lignite coal to two North Dakota mine-mouth generating units, one of which is Square Butte. Square Butte 
supplies approximately 71% (323 MW) of its output to Minnesota Power under a long-term contract. (See Note 11.) Coal 
sales are recognized when delivered at the cost of production plus a specified profit per ton of coal delivered. 
 
Real Estate includes our Florida real estate operations. Our real estate operations include several wholly-owned 
subsidiaries and an 80% ownership in Lehigh Acquisition Corporation, which are consolidated in ALLETE’s financial 
statements. All of our Florida real estate companies are principally engaged in real estate acquisitions, development and 
sales. Full profit recognition is recorded on sales upon closing, provided cash collections are at least 20% of the contract 
price and the other requirements of SFAS 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,” are met. Costs of real estate sales 
include capitalized costs incurred since acquisition and the allocated cost of the underlying real estate determined at 
acquisition. Land held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value determined by the evaluation of individual land 
parcels. 
 
Other includes our telecommunications activities, investments in emerging technologies related to the electric utility 
industry, earnings on cash, and general corporate charges and interest not specifically related to any one business 
segment. General corporate charges include employee salaries and benefits, as well as legal and other outside service 
fees. Enventis Telecom, a wholly-owned subsidiary, is our telecommunications business, which is an integrated data 
services provider offering fiber optic-based communication and advanced data services to businesses and communities in 
Minnesota and Wisconsin. Revenue is generally recognized when equipment is delivered and when services are 
completed under short-term contracts. Revenue from fiber-optic sales is recognized under the straight-line basis for 
contracts over 12 months. 
 
Other included Operation and Other Expense totaling $12.6 million in 2004 ($14.8 million in 2003; $17.0 million in 2002) 
for general corporate expenses such as employee salaries and benefits, and legal and other outside contract service fees, 
and Interest Expense of $11.2 million in 2004 ($28.0 million in 2003; $28.2 million in 2002). 
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Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are recorded at original cost and are reported on the 
balance sheet net of accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for additions and significant replacements and 
improvements are capitalized; maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditures for major plant 
overhauls are also accounted for using this same policy. Gains or losses on nonregulated property, plant and equipment 
are recognized when they are retired or otherwise disposed of. When regulated utility property, plant and equipment are 
retired or otherwise disposed of, no gain or loss is recognized. Our Regulated Utility operations capitalize an allowance for 
funds used during construction, which includes both an interest and equity component. Our other operations capitalize 
interest during the course of a construction project. 
 
Long-Lived Asset Impairments. We annually review our assets for impairment. SFAS 144, “Accounting for the 
Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” is the basis for these analyses. Judgments and uncertainties affecting 
the application of accounting for asset impairment include economic conditions affecting market valuations, changes in 
our business strategy, and changes in our forecast of future operating cash flows and earnings.  
 
We account for our long-lived assets at depreciated historical cost. A long-lived asset is tested for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. We would recognize an 
impairment loss only if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash flows. 
Management judgment is involved in both deciding if testing for recoverability is necessary and in estimating undiscounted 
cash flows. As of December 31, 2004, no write-downs were required. 
 
Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable are reported on the balance sheet net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. 
The allowance is based on our evaluation of the receivable portfolio under current conditions, the size of the portfolio, 
overall portfolio quality, review of specific problems and such other factors that, in our judgment, deserve recognition in 
estimating losses. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Trade Accounts Receivable 
  Billed  $77.4 $54.0 
  Unbilled 10.2 9.7 
  Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 2.0 1.3 
 
    85.6 62.4 
Finance Receivables – Net 0.5 1.0 
 
Total Accounts Receivable – Net $86.1 $63.4 
 
Finance receivables consist of short-term seller financing at our real estate operations. 
 
Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the average cost method. 
 
Inventories 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Fuel   $11.4 $12.2 
Materials and Supplies 20.4 19.3 
Other   2.2 0.3 
 
    $34.0 $31.8 
 
Unamortized Expense, Discount and Premium on Debt. Expense, discount and premium on debt are deferred and 
amortized over the lives of the related issues. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents. We consider all investments purchased with maturities of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. 
 
Restricted Cash. We sponsor a leveraged ESOP as part of our Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan. The 
ESOP had $30.3 million in cash, which is being used to purchase ALLETE common stock on the open market. We 
reflected the cash held by the ESOP as Restricted Cash on our consolidated balance sheet. (See Note 17.)  
 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. We have elected to account for stock-based compensation under the 
intrinsic value method in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Accordingly, 
we recognize expense for performance share awards granted and do not recognize expense for employee stock options 
granted. The after-tax expense recognized for performance share awards was approximately $1 million in 2004 ($3 million 
in 2003). The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value 
recognition provisions of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” 
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Effect of SFAS 123 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation 
For the Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions Except Per Share Amounts 
 
Net Income 
  As Reported $104.4 $236.4 $137.2 
  Less: Employee Stock Compensation Expense 
   Determined Under SFAS 123 – Net of Tax (0.3) (0.5) (1.4) 
 
  Pro Forma $104.1 $235.9 $135.8 
 
Basic Earnings Per Share 
  As Reported $3.69 $8.56 $5.07 
  Pro Forma $3.68 $8.55 $5.03 
 
Diluted Earnings Per Share 
  As Reported  $3.67 $8.52 $5.04 
  Pro Forma $3.66 $8.49 $4.99 
 
In the previous table, the expense for employee stock options granted determined under SFAS 123 was calculated using 
the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the following assumptions: 
 
 2004 2003 2002 
 
Risk-Free Interest Rate 3.3% 3.1% 4.4% 
Expected Life – Years 5 5 5 
Expected Volatility 28.1% 25.2% 24.2% 
Dividend Growth Rate 2% 2% 2% 
 
Foreign Currency Translation. Results of operations for our Canadian and Mexican automotive subsidiaries prior to the 
spin-off were translated into United States dollars using the average exchange rates. Assets and liabilities were translated 
into United States dollars using the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Resulting translation adjustments were 
recorded in the Accumulated Other Comprehensive Gain – Discontinued Operations section of Shareholders’ Equity on 
our consolidated balance sheet. 
 
Other Liabilities 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Deferred Regulatory Credits (See Note 5)  $ 35.9 $ 39.3 
Deferred Compensation and Accrued Postretirement Benefits  66.3  62.2 
Asset Retirement Obligations (See Note 4)  22.4  20.7 
Other    33.5  32.4 
 
    $158.1 $154.6 
 
Environmental Liabilities. We review environmental matters on a quarterly basis. Accruals for environmental matters are 
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated, 
based on current law and existing technologies. These accruals are adjusted periodically as assessment and remediation 
efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Accruals for environmental liabilities are 
included in the balance sheet at undiscounted amounts and exclude claims for recoveries from insurance or other third 
parties. Costs related to environmental contamination treatment and cleanup are charged to expense. 
 
Income Taxes. We file a consolidated federal income tax return. Income taxes are allocated to each subsidiary based on 
their taxable income. We account for income taxes using the liability method as prescribed by SFAS 109, “Accounting for 
Income Taxes.” Under the liability method, deferred income tax liabilities are established for all temporary differences in 
the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities, based upon enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which 
the taxes become payable. Due to the effects of regulation on Minnesota Power, certain adjustments made to deferred 
income taxes are, in turn, recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities. Investment tax credits have been recorded as 
deferred credits and are being amortized to income tax expense over the service lives of the related property. 
 
Excise Taxes. We collect excise taxes from our customers levied by government entities. These taxes are stated 
separately on the billing to the customer and recorded as a liability to be remitted to the government entity. We account for 
the collection and payment of these taxes on the net basis and neither the amounts collected or paid are reflected on our 
consolidated statement of income. 
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New Accounting Standards. In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which will be 
effective for public entities as of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. SFAS 123(R) 
replaces SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for 
Stock Issued to Employees.” The new standard requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment be 
recognized in financial statements at fair value. As such, reporting employee stock options under the intrinsic value-based 
method prescribed by APB 25 will no longer be allowed. We have historically elected to use the intrinsic value method and 
have not recognized expense for employee stock options granted. We estimate that the impact of adoption of 
SFAS 123(R) in 2005 will be an additional expense of approximately $0.2 million after tax. We also have an Employee 
Stock Purchase Plan that provides a discount of 5% from market price. Current accounting rules do not require the 
recognition of compensation expense for employee stock purchase plans such as ours, and SFAS 123(R) continues this 
exception. 
 
 
Note 3. Discontinued Operations 
 
Automotive Services. On September 20, 2004, the spin-off of Automotive Services was completed by distributing to 
ALLETE shareholders all of ALLETE’s shares of ADESA common stock. One share of ADESA common stock was 
distributed for each outstanding share of ALLETE common stock held at the close of business on the September 13, 2004 
record date. The distribution was made from ALLETE’s retained earnings to the extent of ADESA’s undistributed earnings 
($363.4 million), with the remainder made from common stock ($600.2 million). 
 
In June 2004, ADESA issued 6.3 million shares of common stock through an IPO priced at $24.00 per share, which netted 
proceeds of $136.0 million after transaction costs, issued $125 million of senior notes and borrowed $275 million under a 
new $525 million credit facility. With these funds, ADESA repaid previously existing debt and all intercompany debt 
outstanding to ALLETE. The IPO represented 6.6% of ADESA’s 94.9 million shares then outstanding. As a result of the 
IPO, ALLETE recorded a $70.1 million increase to Common Stock with no gain recognized pursuant to SEC Staff 
Accounting Bulletin Topic 5H, “Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary.” We accounted for the 6.6% public 
ownership of ADESA as a minority interest and continued to own and consolidate the remaining portion of ADESA until 
the spin-off was completed on September 20, 2004.  
 
In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we have reported our 
Automotive Services business in Discontinued Operations. 
 
Water Services. During 2003, we sold, under condemnation or imminent threat of condemnation, substantially all of our 
water assets in Florida for a total sales price of approximately $445 million. Income from discontinued operations for 2003 
included a $71.6 million after-tax gain on the sale of substantially all our Water Services businesses. The gain was net of 
all selling, transaction and employee termination benefit expenses, as well as impairment losses on certain remaining 
assets.  
 
In June 2004, we essentially concluded our strategy to exit our Water Services businesses when we completed the sale of 
our North Carolina water assets and the sale of the remaining 72 water and wastewater systems in Florida. Aqua America 
purchased our North Carolina water assets for $48 million and assumed approximately $28 million in debt, and also 
purchased 63 of our water and wastewater systems in Florida for $14 million. Seminole County purchased the remaining 
9 Florida systems for a total of $4 million. The FPSC approved the Seminole County transaction in September 2004. The 
transaction relating to the sale of 63 water and wastewater systems in Florida to Aqua America remains subject to 
regulatory approval by the FPSC. The approval process may result in an adjustment to the final purchase price, based on 
the FPSC’s determination of plant investment for the systems. A decision is expected in late 2005. Gains in 2004 from the 
sale of our North Carolina assets and the remaining systems in Florida were offset by an adjustment to gains reported in 
2003, resulting in an overall net loss of $0.5 million in 2004. The adjustment to gains reported in 2003 resulted primarily 
from an arbitration award in December 2004 relating to a gain-sharing provision on a system sold in 2003; $5.1 million 
was recorded in 2004 ($1.2 million in 2003). We sold our wastewater assets in Georgia in February 2005.  
 
The net cash proceeds from the sale of all water assets in 2003 and 2004, after transaction costs, retirement of most 
Florida Water debt and payment of income taxes, were approximately $300 million. These net proceeds were used to 
retire debt at ALLETE.  
 
In accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we suspended 
depreciating our Water Services assets when they were classified as held-for-sale in 2001. Had we not suspended 
depreciation, depreciation expense at our Water Services businesses would have been $2.6 million in 2004 ($12.9 million 
in 2003; $14.7 million in 2002). 
 
Electric Odyssey. In 2002 we exited our retail stores. 
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Summary of Discontinued Operations 

Millions 
 
Income Statement 
For the Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 
 
Operating Revenue  
 Automotive Services $ 681.7  $ 924.1  $852.2 
 Water Services  18.5   107.4  117.2 
 Electric Odyssey   –   – 0.4 
 
   $ 700.2  $1,031.5 $969.8 
 
Pre-Tax Income (Loss) from Operations 
 Automotive Services  $ 132.5   $185.4  $149.2 
 Water Services  (1.7)  34.4  41.8 
 
    130.8   219.8  191.0 
 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 
 Automotive Services  54.0   73.1  58.3 
 Water Services  (0.9)  13.0  16.3 
 
    53.1   86.1  74.6 
 
  Total Net Income from Operations  77.7   133.7  116.4 
 
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 
 Automotive Services  (6.7)  2.0  (3.7) 
 Water Services  6.2   110.1   – 
 Electric Odyssey   –   – (2.1) 
 
    (0.5)  112.1  (5.8) 
 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 
 Automotive Services  (2.6)  0.7  (1.0) 
 Water Services  6.7   38.5   – 
 Electric Odyssey   –   – (0.9) 
 
    4.1   39.2  (1.9) 
 
  Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal  (4.6)  72.9  (3.9) 
 
Income from Discontinued Operations $ 73.1   $206.6  $112.5 
 
 
Balance Sheet Information 
December 31 2004 2003 
 
Assets of Discontinued Operations  
 Cash and Cash Equivalents $1.2  $116.1 
 Other Current Assets $0.8  $360.6 
 Property, Plant and Equipment $2.9  $660.9 
 Investments  – $34.5 
 Goodwill  – $511.0 
 Other Intangibles  – $33.3 
 Other Assets  – $7.6 
 
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations 
 Current Liabilities $12.0  $340.7 
 Long-Term Debt  – $252.8 
 Other Liabilities  – $42.0 
 Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment  – $23.5 
 
 



ALLETE 2004 Form 10-K  Page 58  

Note 4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Regulated Utility $ 1,431.9 $ 1,409.5 
Construction Work in Progress  10.4  11.9 
Accumulated Depreciation  (716.4)  (692.3) 
 
 Regulated Utility Plant – Net  725.9  729.1 
 
Nonregulated Energy Operations  155.5  185.4 
Construction Work in Progress  1.1  1.6 
Accumulated Depreciation  (39.6)  (35.8) 
 
 Nonregulated Energy Operations Plant – Net  117.0  151.2 
 
Other Plant – Net  40.2  39.0 
 
 Property, Plant and Equipment – Net $ 883.1 $ 919.3 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the various classes of plant. 
The MPUC and the PSCW have approved depreciation rates for our Regulated Utility plant. 
 
Estimated Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Regulated Utility – Generation 5 to 30 years  Nonregulated Energy Operations 5 to 35 years 
 Transmission 40 to 60 years Other Plant 5 to 40 years 
 Distribution 30 to 70 years   
 
Asset Retirement Obligations. Pursuant to SFAS 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” we recognize, at 
fair value, obligations associated with the retirement of tangible, long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, 
construction or development and/or normal operation of the asset. The associated retirement costs are capitalized as part 
of the related long-lived asset and depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Asset retirement obligations relate 
primarily to the decommissioning of our utility steam generating facilities and reclamation at BNI Coal, and are included in 
Other Liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet. Removal costs associated with certain distribution and transmission 
assets have not been recognized as these facilities have been determined to have indeterminate useful lives. Prior to the 
adoption of SFAS 143, utility decommissioning obligations were accrued through depreciation expense at depreciation 
rates approved by the MPUC. Upon implementation of SFAS 143, we reclassified previously recorded liabilities of 
$12.5 million from Accumulated Depreciation and capitalized a net asset retirement cost of $6.7 million. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligation 

Millions 
 
Obligation at December 31, 2002  – 
Initial Obligation Upon Adoption of SFAS 143 $19.0 
Accretion Expense 0.7 
Additional Liabilities Incurred in 2003 1.0 
 
Obligation at December 31, 2003 20.7 
Accretion Expense 1.2 
Additional Liabilities Incurred in 2004 0.5 
 
Obligation at December 31, 2004 $22.4 
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Note 5. Regulatory Matters 
 
Entities within our regulated utility segment file for periodic rate revisions with the MPUC, the FERC or the PSCW. 
Minnesota Power’s last retail rate filing with the MPUC was in 1994. SWL&P’s current retail rates are based on a 2001 
PSCW retail rate order. During 2004, SWL&P filed an application with the PSCW to increase retail utility rates by an 
average of approximately 6%. New rates, if approved, are expected to go into effect in the first half of 2005. In 2004, 70% 
of our consolidated operating revenue was under regulatory authority (69% in 2003; 73% in 2002). The MPUC had 
regulatory authority over approximately 56% of our consolidated operating revenue in 2004 (54% in 2003; 58% in 2002). 
 
Electric Rates. Federal legislation and FERC regulations have been proposed that aim to maintain reliability, assure 
adequate energy supply, and address wholesale price volatility while encouraging wholesale competition. Legislation or 
regulation that initiates a process which may lead to retail customer choice of their electric service provider currently lacks 
momentum in both Minnesota and Wisconsin. Legislative and regulatory activity, as well as the actions of competitors, 
affect the way Minnesota Power strategically plans for its future. We cannot predict the timing or substance of any future 
legislation or regulation. 
 
Deferred Regulatory Charges and Credits. Our regulated utility operations are subject to the provisions of SFAS 71, 
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” We capitalize as deferred regulatory charges incurred costs 
which are probable of recovery in future utility rates. Deferred regulatory credits represent amounts expected to be 
credited to customers in rates. Deferred regulatory charges and credits are included in Other Assets and Other Liabilities 
on our consolidated balance sheet.  
 
Deferred Regulatory Charges and Credits 
December 31 2004 2003 
Millions 
 
Deferred Charges 
 Income Taxes $ 13.7 $ 14.1 
 Conservation Improvement Programs  0.6  1.5 
 Premium on Reacquired Debt  4.1  3.8 
 Other  0.6  0.5 
 
   19.0  19.9 
Deferred Credits – Income Taxes  35.9  39.3 
 
Net Deferred Regulatory Liabilities  $(16.9) $(19.4) 
 
 
Note 6.  Investments 
 
At December 31, 2004, Investments included the real estate assets of ALLETE Properties, debt and equity securities 
consisting primarily of securities held for employee benefits, and our emerging technology investments.  
 
Investments 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Real Estate Assets $ 75.1 $ 78.6 
Debt and Equity Securities  35.8  59.6 
Emerging Technology Investments (See Note 7)  13.6  37.5 
 
  $124.5 $ 175.7 
 
Real Estate. At December 31, 2004, real estate assets included land of $47.2 million ($50.7 million at December 31, 
2003), long-term finance receivables of $9.7 million ($9.6 million at December 31, 2003) and $18.2 million ($18.3 million at 
December 31, 2003) of other assets, which consisted primarily of a shopping center. Finance receivables have maturities 
ranging up to ten years, accrue interest at market-based rates and are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$0.7 million at December 31, 2004 ($1.2 million at December 31, 2003). Minority interest associated with real estate 
operations was $5.6 million at December 31, 2004 ($7.5 million at December 31, 2003). 
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Note 7.  Financial Instruments 
 
Securities Investments. At December 31, 2004, Investments included securities accounted for as available-for-sale 
under SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” and securities in our emerging 
technology portfolio. Income and realized gains and losses from securities investments were included in Other Income 
(Expense) on our consolidated income statement. 
 
Available-For-Sale Securities. At December 31, 2004, our available-for-sale securities portfolio consisted of securities in a 
grantor trust established to fund certain employee benefits. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value with 
unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. Unrealized losses that are 
other than temporary are recognized in earnings. We use the specific identification method as the basis for determining 
the cost of securities sold. Our policy is to review on a quarterly basis available-for-sale securities for other than temporary 
impairment by assessing such factors as the continued viability of products offered, cash flow, share price trends and the 
impact of overall market conditions. As a result of our periodic assessments, we did not record any impairment write-down 
on available-for-sale securities in 2004 or 2003.  
 
During the fourth quarter of 2004, we sold 3.3 million shares of ADESA stock received by our ESOP plan (see Note 17) as 
a result of the September 2004 spin-off of ADESA. In total, the ESOP received total proceeds of $65.9 million, resulting in 
a gain of $11.5 million, which we recognized during the fourth quarter. We accounted for the ADESA stock as available-
for-sale.  
 
During the second quarter of 2003, we sold the publicly-traded investments held in our emerging technology portfolio and 
recognized a $2.3 million after-tax loss. These publicly-traded emerging technology investments were accounted for as 
available-for-sale securities prior to sale. 
 
Available-For-Sale Securities 
Millions 

 Gross Unrealized  
At December 31 Cost Gain (Loss) Fair Value 
 
2004 $27.2 $3.1 $(0.1) $30.2 
2003 $24.1 $1.4  – $25.5 
2002 $25.4 $0.7 $(5.2) $20.9 
 
     Net 
     Unrealized 
     Gain (Loss) 
     in Other 
Year Ended Sales  Gross Realized  Comprehensive 
December 31 Proceeds Gain  (Loss) Income 
 
2004 $65.9 $11.5  – $1.6 
2003 $6.4 $1.2 $(4.7) $2.4 
2002 $12.1 $1.0  – $(11.8) 
 
Emerging Technology Portfolio. As part of our emerging technology portfolio, we have several minority investments in 
venture capital funds and direct investments in privately-held, start-up companies. We account for our investment in 
venture capital funds under the equity method and account for our direct investment in privately-held companies under the 
cost method. The total carrying value of our emerging technology portfolio was $13.6 million at December 31, 2004, down 
$23.9 million from December 31, 2003. The decline was primarily due to a change to the equity method of accounting for 
the venture capital funds (see Note 14) and impairments related to investments in privately-held companies. Our basis in 
cost method investments included in the emerging technology portfolio was $4.5 million ($11.0 million in 2003). Our policy 
is to review these investments quarterly for impairment by assessing such factors as continued commercial viability of 
products, cash flow and earnings. Any impairment would reduce the carrying value of the investment. In 2004, we 
recorded $6.5 million ($4.1 million after tax) of impairment losses related to direct investments in certain privately-held, 
start-up companies whose future business prospects have diminished significantly. Recent developments at these 
companies indicated that future commercial viability is unlikely, as is new financing necessary to continue development. 
We did not record any impairment loss on these investments in 2003 ($1.5 million pretax in 2002). 
 
Other. During the second half of 2002, we substantially liquidated our trading securities portfolio and incurred a 
$2.9 million after-tax loss. Prior to liquidation, the trading securities portfolio consisted primarily of the common stock of 
various publicly traded companies and was included in current assets at fair value. 
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments. With the exception of the items listed below, the estimated fair values of all 
financial instruments approximate the carrying amount. The fair values for the items below were based on quoted market 
prices for the same or similar instruments. 
 
Financial Instruments 
December 31 Carrying Amount Fair Value 
Millions 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 2004 $392.0 $396.7 
 2003 $550.3 $587.4 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of 
accounts receivable. Minnesota Power sells electricity to 12 Large Power Customers. Receivables from these customers 
totaled approximately $9 million at December 31, 2004 ($9 million at December 31, 2003). Minnesota Power does not 
obtain collateral to support utility receivables, but monitors the credit standing of major customers. In addition, our 
taconite-producing Large Power Customers are on a weekly billing cycle. 
 
 
Note 8. Short-Term and Long-Term Debt 
 
Short-Term Debt. Total short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2004 was $1.8 million ($88.6 million at 
December 31, 2003.) This consisted of $0 in Notes Payable ($53 million at December 31, 2003) and $1.8 million of Long-
Term Debt Due Within One Year ($35.6 million at December 31, 2003). 
 
In July 2003, ALLETE entered into a one-year credit agreement for $250 million. The proceeds were used to redeem 
$250 million of the Company’s Floating Rate First Mortgage Bonds due October 20, 2003. In April 2004, ALLETE used 
internally generated funds and proceeds from the sale of water assets to repay $53.0 million outstanding under this credit 
agreement. The credit agreement contained certain mandatory prepayment provisions, including a requirement to repay 
an amount equal to 75% of the net proceeds from the sale of water assets. In accordance with these provisions, 
$197.0 million was repaid in 2003.  
 
We have bank lines of credit aggregating $111.5 million ($176.5 million at December 31, 2003), the majority of which will 
expire in December 2007. These bank lines of credit make financing available through short-term bank loans and provide 
credit support for commercial paper. At December 31, 2004, $111.5 million was available for use ($176.5 million at 
December 31, 2003). Certain lines of credit require a commitment fee of 0.15%. There was no commercial paper issued 
as of December 31, 2004 or December 31, 2003. 
 
Our lines of credit contain financial covenants. The most restrictive covenants require ALLETE (1) to not exceed a 
maximum ratio of funded debt to total capital of .60 to 1.0 and (2) to maintain an interest coverage ratio of not less than 
3.00 to 1.00. Failure to meet these covenants could give rise to an event of default, if not corrected after notice from the 
lender, in which event ALLETE may need to pursue alternative sources of funding. Certain of ALLETE’s lines of credit 
contain cross-default provisions under which an event of default would arise if other ALLETE obligations in excess of 
$5.0 million were in default. As of December 31, 2004, ALLETE was in compliance with these financial covenants. 
 
 
 



ALLETE 2004 Form 10-K  Page 62  

Long-Term Debt. The aggregate amount of long-term debt maturing during 2005 is $1.8 million ($2.4 million in 2006; 
$119.2 million in 2007; $57.5 million in 2008; $10.3 million in 2009; and $200.8 million thereafter). Substantially all of our 
electric plant is subject to the lien of the mortgages securing various first mortgage bonds. 
 
At December 31, 2003, BNI Coal had a $28.8 million long-term bank line of credit outstanding. The amount was repaid in 
2004 when BNI Coal entered into a new operating lease agreement. (See Note 11.) 
 
In January 2004, we used internally-generated funds to retire approximately $3.5 million in principal amount of Industrial 
Development Revenue Bonds Series 1994-A, due January 1, 2004. 
 
In July 2004, we repaid $125 million in principal amount of 7.80% Senior Notes due 2008. Proceeds from the sale of our 
water assets and proceeds received from ADESA were used to repay this debt. As a result of the redemption, we 
recognized an expense of $18.5 million in the third quarter of 2004 comprised of an early redemption premium and the 
write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs.  
 
In August 2004, we issued $111 million in principal amount of 4.95% Collateralized Pollution Control Refunding Revenue 
Bonds Series 2004 due 2022. Proceeds were used to redeem $111 million in principal amount of 6% Collateralized 
Pollution Control Refunding Revenue Bonds Series E due 2022. 
 
ALLETE’s letters of credit supporting certain long-term debt arrangements contain financial covenants. The most 
restrictive covenant requires ALLETE not to exceed a maximum ratio of funded debt to total capital of .65 to 1.0. Failure to 
meet these covenants may give rise to an event of default, if not corrected after notice from the trustee or security holder. 
Some of ALLETE’s long-term debt arrangements contain “cross-default” provisions that would result in an event of default 
if there is a failure under other financing arrangements to meet payment terms or to observe other covenants that would 
result in an acceleration of payments due. As of December 31, 2004, ALLETE was in compliance with these financial 
covenants. 
 
 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
First Mortgage Bonds 
 6.68% Series Due 2007 $ 20.0  $ 20.0 
 7% Series Due 2007  60.0   60.0 
 7 1/2% Series Due 2007  35.0   35.0 
 7% Series Due 2008  50.0   50.0 
 6% Pollution Control Series E Due 2022   –  111.0 
 4.95% Pollution Control Series F Due 2022  111.0    – 
Senior Notes, 7.80%   –  125.0 
Variable Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds  
 Series 1997 A, B, C and D Due 2007 – 2020  39.0   39.0 
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds 6.5% Due 2025  35.1   35.1 
Other Long-Term Debt, 2.0% – 8.5% Due 2005 – 2025  41.9   75.2 
 
Total Long-Term Debt  392.0   550.3 
Less Due Within One Year  1.8   35.6 
 
Net Long-Term Debt $390.2 $514.7 
 
The 6.68% Series Due 2007 and the 7% Series Due 2007 cannot be redeemed prior to maturity. The 7 1/2% Series Due 
2007 are redeemable after August 1, 2005, and the 7% Series Due 2008 are redeemable after March 1, 2006. The 
remaining debt may be redeemed in whole or in part at our option, according to the terms of the obligations. 
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Note 9. Common Stock and Earnings Per Share 
 
Our Articles of Incorporation and mortgages contain provisions that, under certain circumstances, would restrict the 
payment of common stock dividends. As of December 31, 2004, no retained earnings were restricted as a result of these 
provisions. 
 
Reverse Common Stock Split. On September 20, 2004, our one-for-three reverse common stock split became effective. 
All common share and per share amounts have been adjusted for all periods to reflect the one-for-three reverse stock 
split. 
 
Summary of Common Stock Shares Equity 

Millions 
 
Balance at December 31, 2001 28.0 $ 770.3 
2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 0.0  1.4 
 Invest Direct (a) 0.3  19.6 
 Other 0.2  23.6 
 
Balance at December 31, 2002 28.5  814.9 
2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 0.0  1.4 
 Invest Direct (a) 0.3  19.9 
 Other 0.3  23.0 
 
Balance at December 31, 2003 29.1  859.2 
2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 0.0  1.0 
 Invest Direct (a) 0.3  18.1 
 ADESA IPO (See Note 3)  –  70.1 
 Spin-off of ADESA (See Note 3)  –  (600.2) 
 Receipt of ADESA Stock by ESOP  –  27.8 
 Reacquired  (0.1)  (5.8) 
 Other 0.4  29.9 
 
Balance at December 31, 2004 29.7 $ 400.1 
 
(a)  Invest Direct is ALLETE’s direct stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan. 
 
Shareholder Rights Plan. In 1996, we adopted a rights plan that provides for a dividend distribution of one preferred 
share purchase right (Right) to be attached to each share of common stock.  
 
The Rights, which are currently not exercisable or transferable apart from our common stock, entitle the holder to 
purchase one-and-a-half of one-hundredth (three two-hundredths) of a share of ALLETE’s Junior Serial Preferred 
Stock A, without par value. The purchase price as defined in the Rights Plan, remains at $90. These Rights would 
become exercisable if a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our common stock or 
announces a tender offer which would increase the person’s or group’s beneficial ownership interest to 15% or more of 
our common stock, subject to certain exceptions. If the 15% threshold is met, each Right entitles the holder (other than 
the acquiring person or group) to purchase common stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, property or other securities 
of ours) having a market price equal to twice the exercise price of the Right. If we are acquired in a merger or business 
combination, or 50% or more of our assets or earning power are sold, each exercisable Right entitles the holder to 
purchase common stock of the acquiring or surviving company having a value equal to twice the exercise price of the 
Right. Certain stock acquisitions will also trigger a provision permitting the Board of Directors to exchange each Right for 
one share of our common stock. 
 
The Rights, which expire on July 23, 2006, are nonvoting and may be redeemed by us at a price of $0.005 per Right at 
any time they are not exercisable. One million shares of Junior Serial Preferred Stock A have been authorized and are 
reserved for issuance under the plan. 
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Earnings Per Share. The difference between basic and diluted earnings per share arises from outstanding stock options 
and performance share awards granted under our Executive and Director Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plans.  
 
Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted 
Earnings Per Share  Dilutive  
For the Year Ended December 31 Basic Securities Diluted 
Millions Except Per Share Amounts 
 
2004 
 
Net Income from Continuing Operations 
 Before Change in Accounting Principle $39.1 – $39.1 
Common Shares  28.3 0.1 28.4 
Per Share from Continuing Operations $1.39 – $1.37 
 
2003 
 
Net Income from Continuing Operations $29.8 – $29.8 
Common Shares  27.6 0.2 27.8 
Per Share from Continuing Operations $1.08 – $1.08 
 
2002 
 
Net Income from Continuing Operations $24.7 – $24.7 
Common Shares  27.0 0.2 27.2 
Per Share from Continuing Operations $0.91 – $0.91 
 
 
Note 10.  Jointly-Owned Electric Facility 
 
We own 80% of the 537-MW Boswell Energy Center Unit 4 (Boswell Unit 4). While we operate the plant, certain decisions 
about the operations of Boswell Unit 4 are subject to the oversight of a committee on which we and Wisconsin Public 
Power, Inc. (WPPI), the owner of the other 20% of Boswell Unit 4, have equal representation and voting rights. Each of us 
must provide our own financing and is obligated to pay our ownership share of operating costs. Our share of direct 
operating expenses of Boswell Unit 4 is included in operating expense on our consolidated statement of income. Our 80% 
share of the original cost included in property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2004 was $309 million ($308 million 
at December 31, 2003). The corresponding accumulated depreciation balance was $157 million at December 31, 2004 
($154 million at December 31, 2003).  
 
 
Note 11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies 
 
Square Butte Power Purchase Agreement. Minnesota Power has a power purchase agreement with Square Butte that 
extends through 2026 (Agreement). It provides a long-term supply of low-cost energy to customers in our electric service 
territory and enables Minnesota Power to meet power pool reserve requirements. Square Butte, a North Dakota 
cooperative corporation, owns a 455-MW coal-fired generating unit (Unit) near Center, North Dakota. The Unit is adjacent 
to a generating unit owned by Minnkota Power, a North Dakota cooperative corporation whose Class A members are also 
members of Square Butte. Minnkota Power serves as the operator of the Unit and also purchases power from Square 
Butte. 
 
Minnesota Power is entitled to approximately 71% of the Unit’s output under the Agreement. After 2005, and upon 
compliance with a two-year advance notice requirement, Minnkota Power has the option to reduce Minnesota Power’s 
entitlement by approximately 5% annually, to a minimum of 50%. In December 2004 and 2003, we received notices from 
Minnkota Power that they will reduce our output entitlement by approximately 5% in 2006 and 2007, to 66% and 60%, 
respectively.  
 
Minnesota Power is obligated to pay its pro rata share of Square Butte’s costs based on Minnesota Power’s entitlement to 
Unit output. Minnesota Power’s payment obligation will be suspended if Square Butte fails to deliver any power, whether 
produced or purchased, for a period of one year. Square Butte’s fixed costs consist primarily of debt service. At 
December 31, 2004, Square Butte had total debt outstanding of $314.9 million. Total annual debt service for Square Butte 
is expected to be approximately $25 million in each of the years 2005 through 2009. Variable operating costs include the 
price of coal purchased from BNI Coal, our subsidiary, under a long-term contract.  
 
Minnesota Power’s cost of power purchased from Square Butte during 2004 was $56.1 million ($52.3 million in 2003 and 
$60.9 million in 2002). This reflects Minnesota Power’s pro rata share of total Square Butte costs, based on the 71% 
output entitlement in 2004, 2003 and 2002. Included in this amount was Minnesota Power’s pro rata share of interest 
expense of $12.6 million in 2004 ($12.8 million in 2003; $13.7 million in 2002). Minnesota Power’s payments to Square 
Butte are approved as a purchased power expense for ratemaking purposes by both the MPUC and the FERC. 
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Leasing Agreements. In September 2004, BNI Coal entered into an operating lease agreement for a new dragline that 
was placed in service at BNI Coal’s mine on September 30, 2004. BNI Coal is obligated to make lease payments totaling 
$2.8 million annually for the lease term which expires in 2027. BNI Coal has the option at the end of the lease term to 
renew the lease at a fair market rental, to purchase the dragline at fair market value, or to surrender the dragline and pay 
a $3.0 million termination fee. 
 
We lease other properties and equipment under operating lease agreements with terms expiring through 2013. The 
aggregate amount of minimum lease payments for all of these other operating leases is $6.3 million in 2005, $6.0 million 
in 2006, $5.6 million in 2007, $4.9 million in 2008 and $53.4 million thereafter. Total rent expense was $2.8 million in 2004 
($3.8 million in 2003; $3.2 million in 2002).  
 
Kendall County Power Purchase Agreement. We have 275 MW of nonregulated generation (non rate-base generation 
sold at market-based rates to the wholesale market) through an agreement with LSP-Kendall Energy that extends through 
mid-September 2017. Under the agreement, we pay a fixed capacity charge for the right, but not the obligation, to 
capacity and energy from a 275-MW generating unit at a facility in Kendall County near Chicago, Illinois. We currently 
have 130 MW of long-term capacity sales contracts for the Kendall County generation, with 50 MW expiring in April 2012 
and 80 MW expiring in September 2017. To date, this power purchase agreement has resulted in losses to us due to 
negative spark spreads (the differential between electric and natural gas prices) in the wholesale power market and our 
resulting inability to cover the fixed capacity charge on unsold capacity (currently 145 MW). An after-tax loss of 
approximately $8 million was recognized in 2004. 
 
In December 2004, we entered into an agreement to assign this power purchase agreement to Constellation Energy 
Commodities. Under the terms of the agreement, we will pay Constellation Energy Commodities $73 million in cash to 
assume the power purchase agreement. The proposed transaction is subject to the approvals of LSP-Kendall Energy, as 
well as of its project lenders and the FERC. Pending these approvals, the transaction is scheduled to close in April 2005. 
The 130 MW of long-term capacity sales contracts will also be transferred to Constellation Energy Commodities at 
closing. We will recognize an after-tax loss of approximately $47 million upon the closing of this transaction. 
 
Coal and Shipping Contracts. We have three coal supply agreements with various expiration dates ranging from 
December 2006 to December 2009. We also have rail and shipping agreements for transportation of all of our coal, with 
various expiration dates ranging from December 2005 to December 2011. Our minimum annual obligation under these 
coal and shipping agreements ranges from approximately $32 million in 2005 to $6 million in 2009. 
 
Emerging Technology Portfolio. We have investments in emerging technologies through minority investments in 
venture capital funds structured as limited liability companies, and direct investments in privately-held, start-up 
companies. We have committed to make additional investments in certain emerging technology holdings. The total future 
commitment was $4.5 million at December 31, 2004 ($4.8 million at December 31, 2003) and is expected to be invested 
at various times through 2007. We do not have plans to make any additional investments beyond this commitment. 
 
Environmental Matters. Our businesses are subject to regulation by various federal, state and local authorities 
concerning environmental matters. We anticipate that potential expenditures for environmental matters will be material in 
the future, due to stricter environmental requirements through legislation and/or rulemakings that are expected to require 
significant capital investments. We are unable to predict if and when any such stricter environmental requirements will be 
imposed and the impact they will have on the Company. We review environmental matters on a quarterly basis. Accruals 
for environmental matters are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability 
can be reasonably estimated, based on current law and existing technologies. These accruals are adjusted periodically as 
assessment and remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Accruals 
for environmental liabilities are included in the balance sheet at undiscounted amounts and exclude claims for recoveries 
from insurance or other third parties. Costs related to environmental contamination treatment and cleanup are charged to 
expense unless recoverable in rates from customers. 
 
SWL&P Manufactured Gas Plant. In May 2001, SWL&P received notice from the WDNR that the City of Superior had 
found soil contamination on property adjoining a former Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) site owned and operated by 
SWL&P’s predecessors from 1889 to 1904. The WDNR requested SWL&P to initiate an environmental investigation. The 
WDNR also issued SWL&P a Responsible Party letter in February 2002. The environmental investigation is under way. In 
February 2003, SWL&P submitted a Phase II environmental site investigation report to the WDNR. This report identified 
some MGP-like chemicals that were found in the soil near the former plant site. During March and April 2003, sediment 
samples were taken from nearby Superior Bay. The report on the results of this sampling was completed and sent to the 
WDNR during the first quarter of 2004. The next phase of the investigation is to determine any impact to soil or ground 
water between the former MGP site and Superior Bay. The site work for this phase of the investigation was performed 
during October 2004, and the final report is expected to be sent to the WDNR during the first quarter of 2005. It is 
anticipated that additional site investigation will be needed during 2005. Although it is not possible to quantify the potential 
clean-up cost until the investigation is completed, a $0.5 million liability was recorded in December 2003 to address the 
known areas of contamination. We have recorded a corresponding dollar amount as a regulatory asset to offset this 
liability. The PSCW has approved SWL&P’s deferral of these MGP environmental investigation and potential clean-up 
costs for future recovery in rates, subject to a regulatory prudency review. ALLETE maintains pollution liability insurance 
coverage that includes coverage for SWL&P. A claim has been filed with respect to this matter. The insurance carrier has 
issued a reservation of rights letter and we continue to work with the insurer to determine the availability of insurance 
coverage. 
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Square Butte Generating Facility. In June 2002, Minnkota Power, the operator of Square Butte, received a Notice of 
Violation from the EPA regarding alleged New Source Review violations at the M.R. Young Station, which includes the 
Square Butte generating unit. The EPA claims certain capital projects completed by Minnkota Power should have been 
reviewed pursuant to the New Source Review regulations, potentially resulting in new air permit operating conditions. 
Minnkota Power has held several meetings with the EPA to discuss the alleged violations. Discussions with the EPA are 
ongoing and we are unable to predict the outcome or cost impacts. If Square Butte is required to make significant capital 
expenditures to comply with EPA requirements, we expect such capital expenditures to be debt financed. Our future cost 
of purchased power would include our pro rata share of this additional debt service. 
 
Other. We are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. Also in the normal course of business, we 
are involved in tax, regulatory and other governmental audits, inspections, investigations and other proceedings that 
involve state and federal taxes, safety, compliance with regulations, rate base and cost of service issues, among other 
things. While the resolution of such matters could have a material effect on earnings and cash flows in the year of 
resolution, none of these matters are expected to change materially our present liquidity position, nor have a material 
adverse effect on our financial condition. 
 
 
Note 12.  Other Income (Expense) 
 
For the Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
Debt Prepayment Premium and Unamortized Debt      
 Issuance Costs (See Note 8) $(18.5)   –  – 
Gain on ESOP’s Sale of ADESA Stock (See Note 17) 11.5    –  – 
Income (Loss) on Emerging Technology Investments (8.6) $ (3.4) $1.9 
Split Rock Energy Equity Income (See Note 2)  –  2.9  7.3 
Investments and Other Income (Loss) 3.5   3.0  (1.1) 
 
   $(12.1) $ 2.5  $8.1 
 
 
Note 13. Income Tax Expense 
 
Income Tax Expense 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
Current Tax Expense 
 Federal $11.4  $ 4.2 $ 0.6 
 State 6.4   3.1  2.2 
 
   17.8   7.3  2.8 
 
Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit) 
 Federal 1.7   10.2  9.5 
 State (2.3)  2.0  1.3 
 
   (0.6)  12.2  10.8 
 
Change in Valuation Allowance 0.9   0.1  0.1 
Deferred Tax Credits (1.3)  (1.4)  (1.4) 
 
Income Tax from Continuing Operations 16.8   18.2  12.3  
Income Tax from Discontinued Operations 57.2   125.3  72.7  
Change in Accounting Principle (5.5)   –   – 
 
Total Income Tax Expense $68.5  $ 143.5 $85.0 
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Reconciliation of Taxes from Federal Statutory 
Rate to Total Income Tax Expense for Continuing Operations 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes $55.9  $48.0  $37.0 
 
Statutory Federal Income Tax Rate 35% 35% 35% 
 
Income Taxes Computed at 35% Statutory Federal Rate  19.6  16.8  13.0 
 
Increase (Decrease) in Tax Due to:  
 Sale of ADESA Stock by ESOP (4.1)  –  – 
 Amortization of Deferred Investment Tax Credits (1.3) (1.4) (1.4) 
 State Income Taxes – Net of Federal Income Tax Benefit 3.6  2.9  3.0 
 Depletion (0.6) (0.7) (0.7) 
 Other (0.4) 0.6  (1.6) 
 
Total Income Tax Expense for Continuing Operations $16.8  $18.2  $12.3 
 
 
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Deferred Tax Assets 
 Employee Benefits and Compensation $ 47.5 $ 44.2 
 Property Related  29.5  29.4 
 Investment Tax Credits  13.8  14.8 
 Unrealized Loss Booked Through Equity  8.2  6.4 
 Excess of Tax Value Over Book Value (a)  4.9  0.3 
 Other  10.6  13.5 
 
  Gross Deferred Tax Assets  114.5  108.6 
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance  (1.1)   (0.2) 
 
Total Deferred Tax Assets  113.4  108.4 
 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
 Property Related  216.3  213.4 
 Investment Tax Credits  19.7  21.0 
 Employee Benefits and Compensation  14.6  15.1 
 Other  6.7  9.7 
 
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities  257.3  259.2 
 
Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes $ 143.9 $ 150.8 
 
(a) Included impairments related to the emerging technology portfolio. 
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Note 14. Change in Accounting Principle 
 
In the third quarter of 2004, we adopted EITF 03-16, “Accounting for Investments in Limited Liability Companies,” which 
requires the use of the equity method of accounting for investments in all limited liability companies, including investments 
we have in venture capital funds within our emerging technology portfolio. EITF 03-16 was issued in the second quarter of 
2004. We had previously accounted for these investments under the cost method of accounting. EITF 03-16 is effective 
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004. Pursuant to EITF 03-16, the effect of adoption is reported as the 
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The cumulative effect of this change on prior years was a loss of 
$13.3 million ($7.8 million after-tax), which was recorded as a change in accounting principle and reflected in income for 
the year ended December 31, 2004. During 2004, $1.6 million of current losses under the equity method were recognized. 
 
Pro Forma Amounts Assuming the Equity Method Was Applied Retroactively 
For the Year Ended December 31  2003 2002 

Millions Except Per Share Amounts 
 
Net Income 
  As Reported $236.4 $137.2 
  Pro Forma Adjustment (2.3) (1.9) 
 
  Pro Forma $234.1 $135.3 
 
Basic Earnings Per Share 
  As Reported $8.56 $5.07 
  Pro Forma Adjustment (0.08) (0.07) 
 
  Pro Forma $8.48 $5.00 
   
Diluted Earnings Per Share  
  As Reported $8.52 $5.04 
  Pro Forma Adjustment (0.08) (0.07) 
 
  Pro Forma $8.44 $4.97 
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Note 15. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
 
Other Comprehensive Income Pre-Tax Tax Expense Net-of-Tax 
Year Ended December 31 Amount (Benefit) Amount 
Millions 
 
2004 
 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Securities 
 Gain During the Year $ 13.1 $ 0.9  $ 12.2 
 Less: Gain Included in Net Income  11.5   –  11.5 
 
  Net Unrealized Gain on Securities  1.6  0.9   0.7 
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments  (23.5)   –  (23.5) 
Additional Pension Liability  (5.7)  (2.6)  (3.1) 
 
Other Comprehensive Loss $(27.6) $ (1.7) $(25.9) 
 
2003 
 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Securities 
 Gain During the Year $ 2.4 $ 1.0  $ 1.4 
 Add: Loss Included in Net Income  3.5  1.3   2.2 
 
  Net Unrealized Gain on Securities  5.9  2.3   3.6 
Interest Rate Swap  0.2   –  0.2 
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments  39.2   –  39.2 
Additional Pension Liability  (10.8)  (4.5)  (6.3) 
 
Other Comprehensive Income $ 34.5 $ (2.2) $ 36.7 
 
2002 
 
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Securities 
 Loss During the Year $(11.8) $ (4.3) $ (7.5) 
 Less: Gain Included in Net Income  1.0  0.4   0.6 
 
  Net Unrealized Loss on Securities  (12.8)  (4.7)  (8.1) 
Interest Rate Swap  2.3  1.0   1.3 
Foreign Currency Transaction Adjustment  2.6   –  2.6 
Additional Pension Liability  (6.0)  (2.5)  (3.5) 
 
Other Comprehensive Loss $(13.9) $ (6.2) $ (7.7) 
 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
December 31 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Unrealized Gain on Securities $ 1.5 $ 0.8 
Additional Pension Liability  (12.9)  (9.8) 
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment – Discontinued Operations   –  23.5 
 
   $(11.4) $14.5 
 



ALLETE 2004 Form 10-K  Page 70  

Note 16. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 
 
We have noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering eligible employees. The plans provide defined benefits 
based on years of service and final average pay. We also have defined contribution pension plans covering substantially 
all employees; employer contributions are made through our employee stock ownership plan (see Note 17), except for 
BNI Coal, which made cash contributions of $0.6 million in 2004 ($0.6 million in 2003). 
 
We have postretirement health care and life insurance plans covering eligible employees. The postretirement health plans 
are contributory with participant contributions adjusted annually. Postretirement health and life benefits are funded through 
a combination of Voluntary Employee Benefit Association trusts (VEBAs), established under section 501(c)(9) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, and an irrevocable grantor trust. Contributions deductible for income tax purposes are made 
directly to the VEBAs; nondeductible contributions are made to the irrevocable grantor trust. Amounts are transferred from 
the irrevocable grantor trust to the VEBAs when they become deductible for income tax purposes. 
 
We use a September 30 measurement date for the pension and postretirement health and life plans.  
 
Pension Obligation and Funded Status 
At September 30 2004 2003 
Millions 
 
Change in Benefit Obligation 
 Obligation, Beginning of Year $ 353.4  $ 297.9 
 Service Cost  8.4   6.7 
 Interest Cost  20.7   19.5 
 Actuarial Loss  10.0   43.7 
 Benefits Paid  (17.3)  (16.4) 
 Other  4.8   2.0 
 
 Obligation, End of Year  380.0   353.4 
 
Change in Plan Assets 
 Fair Value, Beginning of Year  285.3   265.7 
 Actual Return on Assets  28.9   33.5 
 Employer Contribution  8.4   0.5 
 Benefits Paid  (17.3)  (16.4) 
 Other  4.8   2.0 
 
 Fair Value, End of Year  310.1   285.3 
 
Funded Status  (69.9)  (68.1) 
 Unrecognized Amounts  
  Net Loss  89.3   82.3 
  Prior Service Cost  5.2   6.0 
  Transition Obligation   –  0.3 
 
Net Asset Recognized $ 24.6  $ 20.5 
 
Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet Consist of: 
 Prepaid Pension Cost $33.3 $31.9 
 Accrued Benefit Liability (33.8) (31.2) 
 Intangible Asset 2.6 3.0 
 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 22.5 16.8 
 
Net Asset Recognized $24.6 $20.5 
 
Components of Net Periodic Pension Expense (Income) 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 
Millions 
 
Service Cost $ 8.4  $ 6.7  $ 5.6 
Interest Cost  20.7   19.5   19.5 
Expected Return on Assets  (27.4)  (28.8)  (30.4) 
Amortized Amounts 
 Unrecognized Loss (Gain)  1.4    –  (1.4) 
 Prior Service Cost  0.8   0.9   0.8 
 Transition Obligation  0.3   0.2   0.2 
 
Net Pension Expense (Income) $ 4.2  $ (1.5) $ (5.7) 
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Information for Pension Plans with an 
Accumulated Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets 
At September 30 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Projected Benefit Obligation $163.1 $147.9 
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $140.6 $124.6 
Fair Value of Plan Assets $108.8 $95.1 
 
Additional Pension Information 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
Increase in Minimum Liability Included in Other Comprehensive Income $5.7 $10.8 $6.0 
 
The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $332.9 million and $303.5 million at 
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 
 
Postretirement Health and Life Obligation and Funded Status 
At September 30 2004 2003 
Millions 
 
Change in Benefit Obligation 
 Obligation, Beginning of Year  $117.2 $ 99.5 
 Service Cost  3.9  3.7 
 Interest Cost  6.5  6.6 
 Actuarial Loss (Gain)  (6.6)  10.8 
 Participation Contributions  1.1  0.9 
 Benefits Paid  (4.9)  (4.3) 
 
 Obligation, End of Year  117.2  117.2 
 
Change in Plan Assets 
 Fair Value, Beginning of Year  50.9  39.5 
 Actual Return on Assets  6.3  6.6 
 Employer Contribution  5.0  8.2 
 Participation Contributions  1.1  0.9 
 Benefits Paid  (4.9)  (4.3) 
 
 Fair Value, End of Year  58.4  50.9 
 
Funded Status  (58.8)  (66.3) 
 Unrecognized Amounts  
  Net Loss  15.5  23.9 
  Transition Obligation  20.0  22.4 
 
Accrued Cost  $(23.3) $(20.0) 
 
Under SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” only assets in the VEBAs 
are treated as plan assets in the table above for the purpose of determining funded status. In addition to the 
postretirement health and life assets reported above, we had $24.4 million in an irrevocable grantor trust at December 31, 
2004 ($20.2 million at December 31, 2003). We consolidate the irrevocable grantor trust and it is included in Investments 
on our consolidated balance sheet.  
 
Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Health and Life Expense 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
Service Cost $3.9  $3.7 $2.9 
Interest Cost 6.6  6.6 5.9 
Expected Return on Assets (4.6) (4.0) (3.9) 
Amortized Amounts 
 Unrecognized Loss (Gain) 0.4  0.1 (0.2) 
 Transition Obligation 2.4  2.4 2.4 
 
Net Expense $8.7  $8.8 $7.1 
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  Postretirement 
Estimated Future Benefit Payments Pension Health and Life 

Millions 
 
2005  $17 $4 
2006  $17 $5 
2007  $18 $5 
2008  $19 $5 
2009  $20 $6 
Years 2010 – 2014 $113 $38 
 
Weighted-Average Assumptions  
Used to Determine Benefit Obligation  
At September 30 2004 2003 

Millions 
 
Discount Rate 5.75% 6.0% 
Rate of Compensation Increase 3.5 – 4.5% 3.5 – 4.5% 
Health Care Trend Rates 
 Trend Rate 11% 10% 
 Ultimate Trend Rate 5% 5% 
 Year Ultimate Trend Rate Effective 2011 2008 
 
Weighted-Average Assumptions  
Used to Determine Net Periodic Benefit Costs 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 
 
Discount Rate 6.0% 6.75% 7.75% 
Expected Long-Term Return on Plan Assets 
 Pension 9.0% 9.5% 10.0% 
 Postretirement Health and Life 7.2 – 9.0% 7.6 – 9.5% 8.0 – 10.0% 
Rate of Compensation Increase 3.5 – 4.5% 3.5 – 4.5% 3.5 – 4.5% 
 
In establishing the expected long-term return on plan assets, we consider the diversification and allocation of plan assets, 
the actual long-term historical performance for the type of securities invested in, the actual long-term historical 
performance of plan assets and the impact of current economic conditions, if any, on long-term historical returns.  
 
Sensitivity of a One-Percentage-Point  One Percent One Percent 
Change in Health Care Trend Rates Increase Decrease 
Millions 
 
Effect on Total of Postretirement Health and Life Service and Interest Cost $0.7 $(0.5) 
Effect on Postretirement Health and Life Obligation $14.2 $(12.1) 
 
    
  Postretirement
 Pension Health and Life (a) 
Plan Asset Allocations 2004 2003 2004 2003 
 
Equity Securities 60.4% 61.6% 64.4% 62.2% 
Debt Securities 30.9  27.8 34.9 36.3 
Real Estate 2.2  2.8  –  – 
Venture Capital  5.2  5.6  –  – 
Cash 1.3  2.2 0.7 1.5 
 
 100.0 % 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
 
(a) Included VEBAs and irrevocable grantor trust. 
 
Pension plan equity securities include ALLETE common stock in the amounts of $22.6 million (7.3% of total plan assets) 
and $25.8 million (9.1% of total plan assets) at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  
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To achieve strong returns within managed risk, we diversify our asset portfolio to approximate the target allocations in the 
table below. Equity securities are diversified among domestic companies with large, mid and small market capitalizations, 
as well as investments in international companies. In addition, all debt securities must have a Standard & Poor’s credit 
rating of A or higher. 
 
  Postretirement 
Plan Asset Target Allocations Pension Health and Life (a) 
 
Equity Securities 58 % 62 % 
Debt Securities 30  35 
Real Estate 5  – 
Venture Capital  6  – 
Cash 1  3 
 
 100 % 100 % 
 
(a) Included VEBAs and irrevocable grantor trust. 
 
We expect to contribute approximately $6 million to our postretirement health and life plans in 2005. We are not required 
to make any contributions to our defined benefit pension plans in 2005. 
 
In May 2004, the FASB issued FSP 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (Act),” which provides accounting and disclosure 
guidance for employers that sponsor postretirement health care plans that provide prescription drug benefits. FSP 106-2 
requires that the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and postretirement benefit cost reflect the impact of the 
Act upon adoption. We provide postretirement health benefits that include prescription drug benefits and have concluded 
that our prescription drug benefits will qualify us for the federal subsidy to be provided for under the Act. We adopted 
FSP 106-2 in the third quarter of 2004. The impact of adoption reduced our after-tax postretirement medical expense by 
$1.6 million for 2004.  
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Note 17. Employee Stock and Incentive Plans 
 
Employee Stock Ownership Plan. We sponsor a leveraged employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) within the 
Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan (RSOP) that covers certain eligible employees. In 1989, the ESOP used 
the proceeds from a $16.5 million third-party loan, guaranteed by us, to purchase 0.4 million shares of our common stock 
on the open market. This loan was fully repaid in 2004, and all shares originally purchased with loan proceeds have been 
allocated to participants. In 1990, the ESOP issued a $75 million note (term not to exceed 25 years at 10.25%) to us as 
consideration for 1.9 million shares of our newly issued common stock. The Company makes annual contributions to the 
ESOP equal to the ESOP’s debt service less available dividends received by the ESOP. The majority of dividends 
received by the ESOP are used to pay debt service, with the balance distributed to participants. The ESOP shares were 
initially pledged as collateral for its debt. As the debt is repaid, shares are released from collateral and allocated to 
participants, based on the proportion of debt service paid in the year. As shares are released from collateral, the 
Company reports compensation expense equal to the current market price of the shares. Dividends on allocated ESOP 
shares are recorded as a reduction of retained earnings; available dividends on unallocated ESOP shares are recorded 
as a reduction of debt and accrued interest. ESOP compensation expense was $5.0 million in 2004 ($3.7 million in 2003; 
$3.9 million in 2002). 
 
As a result of the September 2004 spin-off of ADESA, the ESOP received 3.3 million shares of ADESA stock related to 
unearned ESOP shares that have not been allocated to participants. The ESOP was required to sell the ADESA stock 
and use the proceeds to purchase ALLETE common stock on the open market. In accordance with a private letter ruling 
received from the Internal Revenue Service in December 2004, the ESOP has until May 2006 to complete the sale of 
ADESA stock and the purchase of ALLETE common stock. At December 31, 2004, the ESOP had sold all of these 
ADESA shares. The 3.3 million ADESA shares sold by the ESOP in 2004 resulted in total proceeds of $65.9 million and 
an after-tax gain of $11.5 million, which we recognized in the fourth quarter of 2004. The ESOP used $35.6 million of the 
proceeds to purchase 1.0 million shares of ALLETE common stock during the fourth quarter of 2004. Under the direction 
of an independent trustee, the ESOP had $30.3 million of cash available at December 31, 2004 to purchase ALLETE 
common stock; we reported the cash held by the ESOP as Restricted Cash on our consolidated balance sheet. During 
January 2005, the trustee purchased an additional 0.5 million shares of ALLETE common stock and $8.9 million remains 
as Restricted Cash. 
 
As of January 31, 2005, participants in the RSOP had $52.2 million, or 2.5 million shares, invested in ADESA common 
stock. Beginning later in 2005, the RSOP trustee will be selling the ADESA common stock and purchasing ALLETE 
common stock according to the requirements of the RSOP. Participants may transfer out of the ADESA common stock 
fund at any time. That decision also initiates a sale of ADESA common stock but may not initiate an ALLETE purchase, 
unless the participant chooses to transfer to the ALLETE common stock fund.  
 
Pursuant to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, “Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans,” 
unallocated ALLETE common stock currently held and purchased by the ESOP will be treated as unearned ESOP shares 
and not considered as outstanding for earnings per share computations. ESOP shares are included in earnings per share 
computations after they are allocated to participants.  
 
Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 

Millions 
 
ESOP Shares 
 Allocated 1.4  1.2 1.3 
 Unallocated 2.0  1.1 1.2 
 
 Total 3.4  2.3 2.5 
 
Fair Value of Unallocated Shares $72.7  $105.0 $84.0 
 
Stock Option and Award Plans. We have an Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (Executive Plan) and a 
Director Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (Director Plan). The Executive Plan allows for the grant of up to 3.2 million 
shares of our common stock to key employees. To date, these grants have taken the form of stock options, performance 
share awards and restricted stock awards. The Director Plan allows for the grant of up to 0.1 million shares of our 
common stock to nonemployee directors. Each nonemployee director may receive an annual grant of 500 stock options 
and a biennial grant of performance shares equal to $10,000 in value of common stock at the date of grant. No grants 
have been made since 2003 under the Director Plan. Stock options are exercisable at the market price of common shares 
on the date the options are granted and vest in equal annual installments over two years, with expiration ten years from 
the date of grant. Performance shares are earned over multi-year time periods and are contingent upon the attainment of 
certain performance goals of ALLETE. Restricted stock vests once certain periods of time have elapsed. At December 31, 
2004, 1.3 million shares were held in reserve for future issuance under the Executive Plan and Director Plan. 
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 2004 2003 2002 
  Average  Average  Average 
  Exercise  Exercise  Exercise 
Stock Option Activity (a) Options Price  Options Price  Options Price 
Options in Millions 
 
Outstanding, Beginning of Period 0.8 $64.47 0.8 $67.44 0.8 $60.54 
Granted 0.1 $97.65 0.2 $61.77 0.2 $77.76 
Exercised (0.4) $67.14 (0.2) $61.32 (0.2) $56.10 
Cancelled  –  –  – $68.13  – $71.31 
 
Outstanding, End of Period 0.5 $69.85 0.8 $64.47 0.8 $67.44 
 
Exercisable, End of Period  –  – 0.5 $67.26 0.4 $60.69 
 
Fair Value of Options  
 Granted During the Period  $20.01  $8.16  $13.65 
 
(a) All amounts above are prior to the ADESA spin-off and the historical option and average exercise prices have been adjusted for the 

one-for-three reverse stock split on September 20, 2004. The 2004 amounts are up to the September 20, 2004 spin-off of ADESA. 
 

 2004 
      Average 
      Exercise 
Stock Option Activity (a)      Options Price 

Options in Millions 
 
Outstanding as of September 20, 2004, after spin-off 0.5 $28.56 
Granted  –  – 
Exercised (0.1) $24.40 
Cancelled   –  – 
 
Outstanding, End of Year 0.4 $28.94 
 
Exercisable, End of Year 0.3 $26.57 
 
(a) Amounts subsequent to the ADESA spin-off. 
 
The employee stock options outstanding at the date of the spin-off were converted to reflect the spin-off and one-for-three 
reverse stock split. This conversion was done to preserve the noncompensatory nature of the options under FASB 
Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation.” 
 
At December 31, 2004, options outstanding consisted of less than 0.1 million with an exercise price of $15.88 to $18.85, 
0.3 million with an exercise price of $23.79 to $29.79 and 0.1 million with an exercise price of $37.76. The options with an 
exercise price of $23.79 to $29.79 have an average remaining contractual life of 6.6 years, with 0.3 million exercisable on 
December 31, 2004, at an average price of $27.46. The options with an exercise price of $37.76 have an average 
remaining contractual life of 9 years, with 0.1 million exercisable on December 31, 2004. 
 
A total of 0.1 million performance share grants were awarded in February 2004 for performance periods ending in 2005 
and 2006. The ultimate issuance is contingent upon the attainment of certain future performance goals of ALLETE during 
the performance periods. The grant date fair value of the performance share awards was $1.6 million. 
 
A total of 0.1 million performance share grants were awarded in 2002 and 2003 for the performance period ended 
December 31, 2003. The grant date fair value of the share awards was $8.3 million. In early 2004, 50% of the shares 
were issued with the balance to be issued in 2005. 
 
In February 2005, we granted stock options to purchase less than 0.1 million shares of common stock (exercise price of 
$41.35 per share). 
 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that permits eligible employees to buy up 
to $23,750 per year of our common stock at 95% of the market price. At December 31, 2004, 1.3 million shares had been 
issued under the plan and 0.1 million shares were held in reserve for future issuance. 
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Note 18. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 
 
Information for any one quarterly period is not necessarily indicative of the results which may be expected for the year. 
Financial results for the first quarter of 2004 included a $7.8 million, or $0.27 per share, non-cash after-tax charge for a 
change in accounting principle related to investments in our emerging technology portfolio. Financial results for the third 
quarter of 2004 included a $10.9 million, or $0.38 per share, after-tax debt prepayment cost as part of ALLETE’s financial 
restructuring in preparation for the spin-off of ADESA, which occurred on September 20, 2004. Financial results for the 
fourth quarter of 2004 included an $11.5 million, or $0.41 per share, after-tax gain on the sale of ADESA shares held by 
our ESOP. The ESOP received the ADESA shares as a result of the spin-off. 
 
Financial results for 2003 included a $71.6 million, or $2.59 per share, after-tax gain on the sale of substantially all our 
Water Services businesses ($0.2 million first quarter and second quarter; $3.0 million, or $0.11 per share, third quarter; 
$68.2 million, or $2.47 per share, fourth quarter). The gain was net of all selling, transaction and employee termination 
benefit expenses, as well as impairment losses on certain remaining assets.  
 
Quarter Ended Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 

Millions Except Earnings Per Share 
 
2004 
 
Operating Revenue $209.0 $186.2  $177.6 $178.6 
 
Operating Income from Continuing Operations $42.7 $18.8  $23.2 $15.1 
 
Net Income (Loss)  Continuing Operations $21.4 $ 2.4  $ (0.6) $15.9 
   Discontinued Operations 31.3  34.3   13.7 (6.2) 
   Change in Accounting Principle (7.8)   –   –  – 
 
    $44.9 $36.7 $ 13.1 $9.7 
 
Earnings Available for Common Stock $44.9 $36.7 $ 13.1 $9.7 
 
Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock  
 Basic  Continuing Operations $0.77 $0.08 $(0.03) $0.57 
   Discontinued Operations 1.11 1.21  0.48 (0.22) 
   Change in Accounting Principle (0.28)  –   –  – 
 
    $1.60 $1.29 $ 0.45 $0.35 
 
 Diluted Continuing Operations $0.76 $0.08 $(0.02) $0.55 
   Discontinued Operations 1.10 1.21  0.47 (0.21) 
   Change in Accounting Principle (0.27)  –   –  – 
 
    $1.59 $1.29 $ 0.45 $0.34 
 
2003 
 
Operating Revenue $186.0 $171.4 $169.0 $165.9 
 
Operating Income from Continuing Operations $26.9 $20.3 $30.3 $18.6 
 
Net Income Continuing Operations $11.3 $ 3.4 $10.9 $ 4.2 
   Discontinued Operations 33.0  41.0 36.7  95.9 
 
    $44.3 $ 44.4 $47.6 $ 100.1 
 
Earnings Available for Common Stock $44.3 $ 44.4 $47.6 $ 100.1 
 
Earnings Per Share of Common Stock  
 Basic Continuing Operations $0.41 $0.12 $0.40 $0.15 
   Discontinued Operations 1.21 1.49 1.32 3.46 
 
    $1.62 $1.61 $1.72 $3.61 
 
 Diluted Continuing Operations $0.41 $0.12 $0.40 $0.15 
   Discontinued Operations 1.20 1.49 1.31 3.44 
 
    $1.61 $1.61 $1.71 $3.59 
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Schedule II 
 

ALLETE 
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 
 
 
 Balance at Additions Deductions Balance at 
  Beginning Charged Other from End of 
For the Year Ended December 31  of Year to Income Changes Reserves (a) Period 

Millions 
 
Reserve Deducted from Related Assets 

 Reserve For Uncollectible Accounts 

  2004 Trade Accounts Receivable $1.3 $1.7 – $1.0  $2.0
   Finance Receivables – Long-Term 1.2  – – 0.5  0.7 

  2003 Trade Accounts Receivable 2.2 (0.1) – 0.8  1.3 
   Finance Receivables – Long-Term 1.7  – – 0.5  1.2 

  2002 Trade Accounts Receivable 1.4 2.2 – 1.4  2.2 
   Finance Receivables – Long-Term 2.7 0.4 – 1.4  1.7 

 Deferred Asset Valuation Allowance 

  2004 Deferred Tax Assets 0.2 0.9 –  – 1.1 

  2003 Deferred Tax Assets 0.1 0.1 –  – 0.2 

  2002  Deferred Tax Assets 0.0 0.1 –  – 0.1 
 
(a) Included uncollectible accounts written off. 
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Exhibit 12 
 
ALLETE 
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges (Unaudited) 
 
 
For the Year Ended December 31 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Millions Except Ratios 
 
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes  $ 55.9 $ 48.0  $ 37.0 $ 83.2  $129.0 
 
Add (Deduct) 
 Undistributed Income from Less than 50%  
  Owned Equity Investments   –  (2.9)  (4.7)  (1.5)  – 
 Minority Interest   –   –   –  0.1   – 
 
    55.9  45.1   32.3  81.8  129.0 
 
Fixed Charges 
 Interest on Long-Term Debt  60.3  70.0   73.9  80.0  60.5 
 Capitalized Interest  0.7  1.2   0.8  1.0  0.9 
 Other Interest Charges  8.7  4.3   5.3  12.9  15.9 
 Interest Component of All Rentals  3.5  8.0   9.9  10.4  8.5 
 
  Total Fixed Charges  73.2  83.5   89.9  104.3  85.8 
 
Earnings Before Income Taxes and Fixed Charges 
 (Excluding Capitalized Interest) $128.4 $127.4 $ 121.4 $ 185.1  $213.9 
 
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 1.75 1.53 1.35 1.77 2.49 
 
 
 
 




